
Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 7/18/2023 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 5 min

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval of the agenda for the July 18, 2023, meeting.

• Recommended motion: Approve or amend.

• Prepared by: Drema Smith

Department:     Contact Number: 7758470968

• Staff Summary: See attached.

• Supporting Materials: See attached

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

      4



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 7/18/2023 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 5 minutes

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval of the minutes from the May 16th, 2023,
meeting.

• Recommended motion: Approve or amend as necessary.

• Prepared by: Jim Hindle

Department:     Contact Number: 17758470969

• Staff Summary: See Attached

• Supporting Materials: See attached

• Fiscal Impact: none

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

   5



1 

STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF 
COUNTYCOMMISSIONERS MEETING   

5/16/2023 10:00 AM   
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NV 

__________________________________________________________________ 

MEETING MINUTES 

JAY CARMONA CLAY MITCHELL LANCE GILMAN 
CHAIRMAN VICE-CHAIRMAN COMMISSIONER 

ANNE LANGER JIM HINDLE 
DISTRICT ATTORNEY CLERK & TREASURER 
__________________________________________________________________ 

Roll Call: Commission Chairman Jay Carmona, Commission Vice-Chair Clay Mitchell, 
Commissioner Lance Gilman, Recorder Dru McPherson, Sheriff Mike Cullen, County 
Manager Austin Osborne, Deputy District Attorney Keith Loomis, Comptroller Jennifer 
McCain, IT Director James Deane, Fire Chief Jeremy Loncar, Public Works Director 
Jason Wierzbicki, Operations and Project Manager Mike Northan, Communications 
Director Becky Parsons, Business Development Manager Lara Mather, Community 
Relations Director Honey Menefee, Community Development Director Pete Renaud, 
Senior Center Director Stacy York, Emergency Management Director Michael Bullian 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.
Commissioner Carmona called the meeting to order at 10:02 a.m.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of the
Agenda for the May 16, 2023, meeting.

County Manager Osborne asked to move Item #21 to immediately after Item #11.



2 

Public Comment: None 

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve our Agenda for the May 16, 2023, 
meeting with the one noted change in the order. Seconded by: Lance Gilman. Vote: Motion 
passed unanimously. 

4. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of the
minutes from the March 21, 2023, meeting.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve the Minutes for the March 21, 2023,
meeting as presented. Seconded by: Lance Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously.

5. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of the
minutes from the March 23, 2023, special meeting.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve the Minutes for the March 23, 2023,
special meeting as presented. Seconded by: Lance Gilman. Vote: Motion passed
unanimously.

5. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of the
minutes from the March 30, 2023, special meeting.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve the Minutes for the March 30, 2023,
special meeting as presented. Seconded by: Lance Gilman. Vote: Motion passed
unanimously.

7. CONSENT AGENDA FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:
I For possible action, approval of business license first readings:

A. AQ&B LLC – Out of County / 5470 Sidehill Dr. ~ Sun Valley, NV
B. DeHart Plumbing, heating & Air, Inc. – Contractor / 1842 Hymer Ave ~ Sparks, NV
C. LGCY Installation Services LLC – Contractor / 3333 N. Digital Dr. # 600 ~ Lehi, UT
D. Revere Mechanical, LLC – Contractor / 3325 W. Ali Baba Ln. # 612 ~ Las Vegas, NV
E. Suncrest Design & Construction – Contractor / 395 Freeport Blvd # 1 ~ Sparks, NV
F. Sunbelt Rentals, Inc. – General / 201 Wildhorse Canyon ~ Sparks, NV
G. The Webstaurant Store LLC – General / 265 Milan ~ Sparks, NV

II Approval of claims in the amount of $1,019,295.71. 



3 

Public Comment: None 

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve today's Consent Agenda as presented. 
Seconded by: Lance Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 

9. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action): None

9. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports

Sheriff Cullen 
• On April 12, Sheriff Cullen and Cpl. Stan Glowniak went to Carson City where Cpl.

Glowniak was honored as crisis intervention officer of the year for Storey County. A
Storey County deputy will be nominated every year in the future.

• On May 13 the Sheriff's Office held a Car Safety Seat Check at Hillside Elementary
School. The next one will be on May 27 in the Silverland Parking lot.

• On Tuesday, May 9, there was a multi-agency law enforcement incident in the Highlands,
with NSP and NDI assisting multiple regional law enforcement. The Sheriff thanked
residents for their cooperation during the incident.

Public Works Director Jason Wierzbicki 
• Public Works is doing drainage work and installing culverts in the Highlands. Cleanup

will start soon in Six Mile Canyon soon. Carson Street drainage is being sandbagged.
• Carson and Taylor streets are flowing with water runoff and culverts are being looked at.

Lousetown Road is also being worked on.

Communications Director Becky Parsons 
• Testing is being done to fill two positions.

Emergency Management Director Mike Bullian 
• EMS is working with FEMA, and the county will be receiving reimbursable funds for

damage over the winter. The department is trying to get sandbags filled in advance to
fight runoff.

VCTC Tourism Director Todd Tuttle 
• The VCTC's Merchant Mix and Mingle at Piper's Opera House was well-attended, and

that event will happen the second Tuesday of every month at Piper's Opera House starting
at 6 pm.

• May 20-21 is the Chili Cookoff, from 10 a.m. to 4 p.m. both days. C Street will be closed
from Taylor to Union streets. The Memorial Parade is at noon on Saturday, May 20.



4 

Comptroller Jennifer McCain 
• The Comptroller, County Manager and other staff attended a Tyler conference to train on

the new cloud software.

IT Director James Deane 
• The IT Department has completed the microwave move from St. Mary's fire escape and

also completed voice-over phones for the county. The amateur radio repeater is also live
in Virginia City.

Community Development Director Pete Renaud 
• The Community Development Department is sending out notices to renew business

licenses. The department is asking that business owners not pay their renewals until they
get their notices.

Senior Center Director Stacy York 
• The Senior Center will have a booth at the Chili Cookoff for the People's Choice Award.
• Technology classes are held at the Virginia City Senior Center every Thursday in May,

from 10 a.m. to 2 p.m.
• On June 3, the Lockwood Senior Center will have its annual Car Show.

Community Chest Executive Director Erik Schoen 
• All Community Chest services are open. Check the website at

www.communitychestnevada.net

County Manager Austin Osborne 
• NVEnergy will have a town hall in Storey County sometime in June.
• Thanked Public Works for their efforts.
• The Tyler conference had 60 or 70 classes for representatives from all over the country,

and all other government entities are having the same challenges as Storey County.

11. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)
• Commissioner Mitchell thanked the staff for their efforts.
• Commissioner Carmona noted the passing of Highlands’ resident Chandra Butcher.

21. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of the
CVS and Allergan Settlement Participation forms. By these forms Storey County releases
any claims it may have in the ongoing opioid litigation proceedings against CVS Pharmacy
and its associated entities as well as Allergan and its associated entities. If the settlement
agreements are approved, then the State of Nevada is expected to receive $26,508, 912.00
while Storey County would receive a little more than $18,000.00 over a seven-year period.
Under the CVS settlement, the State of Nevada would receive $66,605,257.00 and Storey
County would receive $102,357.00 over a ten-year period.

http://www.communitychestnevada.net/


5 

Deputy District Attorney Keith Loomis said this is part of the ongoing opioid litigation. In 
contrast to other settlements which required 85 percent approval of participants, this requires 
100 percent approval.   

Mr. Loomis introduced Mr. Mark Krueger, Chief Deputy Attorney General of the Nevada 
Attorney General’s Office. Mr. Krueger said the document allows the state to come to the 
table and lobby for additional revenue to fight the opioid epidemic. 

Public Comment: None 

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve the Allergan and CVS Pharmacy 
Settlement Participation forms and authorize the County Manager to sign. Seconded by: 
Lance Gilman. Vote: Motion passed 2-1, with Commissioner Carmona voting No.  

12. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION
DISTRICT BOARD

13. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Review and possible approval of the 2023-
2024 Storey County Fire District Final Budget for submission to the Nevada Department of
Taxation.

Comptroller Jennifer McCain said she submitted two options for the final Fire District budget
because they were unsure if the Collective Bargaining Agreement would be approved by this
time. It has not been, so the BOC will have a choice. Option 1) is a budget that does not
include potential changes and Option 2) includes all the changes that Ms. McCain knew of by
May 8. She recommended Option 2) to plan for the totality of outcomes and if all funds are
not spent, OK. This budget has no additional changes except a $260,000 difference between
the two options. With that, Option 1) and 2) revenues are budgeted at about $13 million. Of
that, about $4.7 million is property tax alone. The expenses in Option 2) are about $11
million, and Option 1) about $10 million. Ending fund balance for Option 2) would be about
$4.6 million and for Option 1), about $4.9 million.  The fire district still has a buffer in case
of a catastrophe. The total budget is $15.9 million with transfers in of 1.3 million across all
funds. Transfers out across all funds is $1,422,000.

Commissioner Gilman supported Option 2).

Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Fire Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve the 2023-2024 Storey County Fire
District Final Budget Option 2), and direct the Storey County Comptroller to submit the final
budget to the Department of Taxation. Seconded by: Lance Gilman. Vote: Motion passed
unanimously.



6 

14. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: To approve Lara Mather, Storey County’s
Business Development Officer to renew The System of Award Management (SAM) account
on behalf of the Fire District.

Fire Chief Jeremy Loncar said this is for our notification on grants from the federal
government and it allows Lara Mather to sign on the Fire District’s behalf.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve Lara Mather, Storey County’s Business
Development Officer to renew The System of Award Management (SAM) account on behalf
of the Fire District. Seconded by: Lance Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously.

15. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY WATER AND SEWER BOARD

16. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Review and possible approval of the 2023-
2024 Storey County Sewer Final Budget for submission to the Nevada Department of
Taxation

Comptroller McCain said she and Mr. Wierzbicki restructured the budget and found two line-
items to increase, telephone account and retiree insurance. But also found areas to decrease,
such as a double entry for Sierra Controls, computer equipment. Total decrease in expenses
for the Water Fund budget is $42,600. Ms. McCain said revenues are increasing 11 percent.
The expected ending fund balance as of June 30, 2024, is $1,573,000. No significant changes
to the Sewer Fund, where the ending fund balance is expected to increase by 4 percent to
total $952,000.

Commissioner Mitchell asked if the Water Fund was included in the Sewer budget? Ms.
McCain said, “No, the Water Fund is included in the Storey County budget and the Sewer
Fund has its own budget.”

Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve the 2023-2024 Storey County Sewer
Final Budget and direct the Storey County Comptroller to submit the final budget to the
Department of Taxation. Seconded by: Lance Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously.

17. RECESS TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS

18. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Review and possible approval of the 2023-
2024 Storey County Final Budget for submission to the Nevada Department of Taxation.



7 

Comptroller McCain said that in the Capital Projects Fund, Community Development and 
Human Resources are exploring opportunities for additional software for about $28,000. 
Rolled two items from this year into next, including Electric Avenue, which is about $3.4 to 
$4 million added to the budget. $4 million was added and the project won’t be done. The 
other is a piece of equipment, a small-town plow at $150,000, but will not be ready by June 
30. The Sheriff’s Office has added 4 license-plate readers, 3 fixed and one mobile, at a cost
of $19,000, to its budget under Capital Projects. Ms. McCain said she budgeted for elected
officials’ salary increases that are being considered by the Legislature in case they come to
fruition. Thos are the only changes not discussed in previous meetings. Revenues are
expected to be $27 million, of which $17 million will come from property tax. Expenses are
$26.4 million, with a contingency of about $900,000. This gives the county an excess
revenue of $21,000, so it is close to a zero budget. Transfers out are at $9 million, which
brings the ending fund balance down to approximately $15 million, and 25 percent of
expenses will bring that down to $7 million. We have dropped our ending fund balance
significantly, but still have enough to operate. The total Storey County budget is about $45
million, with transfers in being, across all funds, $14 million. Our expenses are $62.8 million,
and that includes transfers out of that $14 million. Capital Projects Fund, Equipment
Acquisition and Infrastructure Funds are the significant expenses across the budget. The
county is rolling over $1.5 million in projects that could not be completed in time. . That
includes the Lockwood Substation, Station 72 in the Virginia City Highlands, fuel pump
updates in TRIC and Virginia City, The Justice Court parking lot and Courthouse fence
repairs. Beginning will be Lockwood Senior Center and Station 71, for another $4.2 million.
Capital Projects are $15 million, with additions of IT budgeting of $5 million. In Equipment
Acquisition, purchases include eight vehicles. Also, a new water project for the B Street
waterlines.

County Manager Osborne said that Tesla would pay over $2 million for the Electric Avenue 
project.  

Public Comment: None 

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, approve the 2023-2024 Storey County Final Budget and 
direct the Storey County Comptroller to submit the final budget to the Department of 
Taxation. Seconded by: Lance Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 

19. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Authorize the County Manager to approve a
contract modification with the United States Geological Survey (USGS) to continue a five-
year program of voluntary monitoring of groundwater levels and quality, aquifer conditions,
and other geotechnical review in the Highlands neighborhood of Storey County. The joint
funding agreement contract modification will include extending the period of performance
from September 30, 2023, to September 30, 2027. Total funding for the additional five-year
project extension will be $51,450 paid by Storey County and $37,250 paid by the USGS for a
total project cost of $88,700.



8 

County Manager Osborne said in 2017 we started a water resources study for the Virginia City 
Highlands. It was a five-year program. They would like to go another five years for that. 
$5,000 to $6,000 per year. It would be a 60-40 distribution of funds instead of 50-50, and the 
number of wells will be modified but remain about 40 wells. 

David Smith with USGS said this would last from 2023-2027. Monitoring frequency would 
change, and 20 wells would be added annually. He said different areas had various changes, 
some with higher levels and others with lower levels. Data is available on the USGS web site. 
This will measure recharge during both wet and drought years. 

Public Comment: None 

Motion: Based on the recommendation by staff, I, Commissioner Mitchell, authorize the 
County Manager to approve a contract modification with the United States Geological Survey 
(USGS) to continue a five-year program, of voluntary monitoring of groundwater levels and 
quality, aquifer conditions, and other geotechnical review in the “Highlands” neighborhood of 
Storey County. The joint funding agreement contract modification will include extending the 
period of performance from September 30, 2023, to September 30, 2027. Total funding for the 
additional five-year project extension will be $51,450 paid by Storey County and $37,250 
paid by the USGS for a total project cost of $88,700. Seconded by: Lance Gilman. Vote: 
Motion passed unanimously. 

20. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of
amendment to rental agreement with Nova Geotechnical and Inspection Service Northern
Nevada, LLC (Nova) for the purpose of performing geological, geotechnical, environmental
(Phase I and Phase II), engineering and related due diligence studies, analyses, surveys, and
activities on the site of the Gooseberry Mine. The amendment is to extend the current rental
agreement by an additional 180 days due to limitations imposed by the harsh winter. The
staff is not recommending any additional rent charge.

Deputy District Attorney Loomis said the Gooseberry Mine is held by the Clerk-Treasurer’s
Office in trust for both the state and the county for nonpayment of delinquent taxes and are
allowed by state law to rent the property. Had rental agreement to Nova Geotechnical and
Inspection Service Northern Nevada LLC, for 180 days, but they were unable to complete
their work due to the winter.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve the amendment of the rental agreement
between the Storey County Treasurer and Nova for a site evaluation at the location of the
Gooseberry mine for an additional period of 180 days and authorize the Storey County
Treasurer to sign. Seconded by: Lance Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously.



9 

22. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY HIGHWAY BOARD.

23. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Allow the Public Works Director to sign the
quote from Snoquip in the amount of $212,000.00 ordering a new Loader Mounted Larue
D45 235 HP Cummins Tier 4 engine with wireless controls to be paid for out of the
2023/2024 Fiscal Year Budget upon delivery in November to December.

Public Works Director Jason Wierzbicki said with the success of the first snowblower. We
could run both units and remove snow at an even faster rate. This would also serve as backup
in case of breakdown.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Highway Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve the Public Works Director to
sign the Quote from Snoquip in the amount of $212,000.00 for a Larue D45 Loader Mounted
Snowblower. Unit will be ordered now but payment would be in the Fiscal Year Budget of
2023/2024 upon delivery in November/December. Seconded by: Lance Gilman. Vote:
Motion passed unanimously.

24. RECESS TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS

25. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: To authorize the County Manager to accept and
sign a proposal from Clayton Homes for the replacement of the Sheriff's Office Lockwood
Substation at 420 Canyon Way, Lockwood for an amount not to exceed $300,000.00. The
work will include the removal and disposal of the old unit, site preparation, foundations,
production of and placement of the new building unit, and the construction of an entry deck.

Mike Northan, Operations and Projects Coordinator, said after working with the Sheriff’s
Office, got a bid from Clayton Homes.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to authorize the County Manager to accept and
sign a proposal from Clayton Homes for the replacement of the Sheriff's Office Lockwood
Substation at 420 Canyon Way, Lockwood for an amount not to exceed $300,000. The work
will include the removal and disposal of the old unit, site preparation, foundations,
production of and placement of the new building unit, and the construction of an entry deck.
Seconded by: Lance Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously.



10 

26. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION Consideration and possible approval acceptance
of Assignment and Assumption of Lease by Comstock Cemetery Foundation, Inc. (CCF,
Assignor) and Storey County (Assignee) with approval by Consolidated Virginia Mining
Company (Landowner) predicated upon completion of the Memorandum of Understanding
between the CCF and Storey County dated November 2, 2022, for the development and
maintenance of the Silver Terrace Cemeteries and Eastward Expansion Area.

County Manager Osborne in 2022 an MOU was approved, which is predicated on the lease
agreement for 99 years. This is a modification of the agreement approved in April of this
year. This will also allow the county to survey the area for cemetery expansion.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve acceptance of Assignment and
Assumption of Lease by Comstock Cemetery Foundation, Inc. (CCF, Assignor) and Storey
County (Assignee) with approval by Consolidated Virginia Mining Company (Landowner)
predicated upon completion of the Memorandum of Understanding between the CCF and
Storey County dated November 2, 2022, for the development and maintenance of the Silver
Terrace Cemeteries and Eastward Expansion Area. Seconded by: Lance Gilman. Vote:
Motion passed unanimously.

27. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Review and Comment on Storey County RFP
for Franchise Collection Services Draft (Draft RFP). Direct staff to incorporate changes to
Draft RFP, complete the Draft Collection Service Agreement, and bring both documents back
to the board at a future meeting for consideration. 28. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE
ACTION: Consideration and possible approval to appoint county representative to the
Historic Fourth Ward School and Museum Board.

County Manager Osborne said Joe Sloan of Sloan Vazquez McAfee is in attendance, and that
there has been an addendum to the draft that includes thoughts and costs.

Joe Sloan, of Sloan Vazquez McAfee, said that the Draft RFP included the term of the
agreement, including exclusivity, responsibilities of the contractor, collection services and
transfer station management, recyclables, low-income rates for seniors, vacation holds,
animal-resistant carts, multi-family residences, commercial collection services, county
services, costs and prices, requirements for service, billing, customer service, record-keeping
and reporting, and implementation.

Commissioners were comfortable with getting prices for a 5-year agreement and a 10-year
agreement.

Under the draft plan, the contractor would have responsibility for the transfer station and
recyclable bins.



11 

Mr. Sloan said what would happen depends on each proposal. 

The RFP will include no cost to drop off recyclables at the transfer station. 
On Discounted rates for seniors – all this means is that others are subsidizing the discounted 
rate. Fewer are adopting senior rates but do have hardship rates. Gilman wants to leave it in, 
and Lockwood has its own franchise. Commissioners decided contractors can bid either way. 

The commissioners discussed what is required on the RFP and chain of custody issues, and 
what was desirable for each community.  

Public Comment: None 

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to direct staff and the contractor to incorporate 
changes from discussion in this meeting to the draft RFP to complete the Draft Collection 
Service Agreement and to bring both documents back to the board at a future meeting for 
consideration. Seconded by: Lance Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 

28. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval to appoint
county representative to the Historic Fourth Ward School and Museum Board.

County Manager Osborne suggested naming Commissioner Clay Mitchell to the Historic
Fourth Ward School and Museum Board.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve the appointment of myself,
Commissioner Mitchell to serve the remainder of one county representative term on the
Historic Fourth Ward School and Museum Board. Seconded by: Lance Gilman. Vote: Motion
passed unanimously.



12 

29. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: For consideration and possible approval of
business license second readings:

A. Alkalinea LLC – Out of County / 13109 Davos Dr. ~ Truckee, CA
B. Big Bear Springs – General / 184 S. C St. ~ Virginia City, NV
C. Frazier Industrial Company – Contractor / 91 Fairview Avenue ~ Long Valley, NJ
D. Harder Built Construction LLC – Contractor / 1802 N. Carson St. Unit 100 ~ Carson City, NV
E. M&M Excavating & Landscape Services LLC – Contractor / 120 Inventors Pl. ~ Sparks, NV
F. Olivier’s Organic French Crepes–Food Truck / 454 Moran St. ~ Reno, NV
G. Pacific Decorative Concrete Inc. – Contractor / 5421 Stationers Way ~ Sacramento, CA
H. Quality Fence of Nevada – Contractor / 59 Red Rock Rd. ~ Mound House, NV
I. Summit Line Construction Inc. – Contractor / 441 W. Power Line Rd. ~ Heber, UT
J. Superior Installation Services Inc. – Contractor / 1230 Crowley Circle ~ Carrollton, TX
K. Texas Republic Signs, LLC – Contractor / 2211 Pech Rd. ~ Houston, TX
L. Western States Electric – Contractor / 1101 National Dr. Ste. D ~ Sacramento, CA
M. Wikborn Ventures, LLC– Home Business/19 Toll Rd. ~ Virginia City, NV

Public Comment: None 

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, hereby move to approve the second readings of business 
licenses listed A-M. Seconded by: Lance Gilman. Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 

30. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

31. ADJOURNMENT OF ALL ACTIVE AND RECESSED BOARDS ON THE AGENDA
Chairman Carmona adjourned the meeting at 12:19 p.m.

Respectfully submitted, 

____________________________________________ 
Jim Hindle 
Clerk & Treasurer 



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 7/18/2023 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 0-5

Agenda Item Type: Consent Agenda

• Title: For possible action, approval of business license first readings:
• A.     All-Lite Materials LLC – Mining / 3005 Canyon Way – Sparks, NV
• B. Aurora Parts & Accessories LLC – General / 1525 Venice ~ McCarran, NV
• C. B&J Industries, LLC – Out of County / 599 East Nugget Ave ~ Sparks, NV
• D. Boiler & property Consulting – Out of County / 5018 Bristol Ind Way Ste 203 ~

Buford, GA
• E. Brinderson LLC – Contractor / 10343 Sam Houston Park Dr. Ste. 200 ~ Houston, TX
• F. Cal-Nevada Road Services LLC – Out of County / 1408 Pittman Ave ~ Sparks, NV
• G. Clayton homes #890 – Out of County / 10020 Highway 50 East ~ Carson City, NV
• H. Dobbas Railroad Services LLC – Out of County / 300 London Dr ~ McCarran, NV
• I. Faria’s Mobile Repair – Out of County / 8721 Rainbow Trout Ct. ~ Reno, NV
• J. Infinity Painting & Decorating Inc. – Contractor / 200 Canyon Way Ste. B ~ Sparks,

NV
• K. Kona Ice of Sparks Truck # 1 – Food Truck / 4690 Longley Ln # C-126 ~ Reno, NV
• L. Kona Ice of Sparks Truck # 2 – Food Truck / 4690 Longley Ln # C-126 ~ Reno, NV
• M. Las Tapatias Food Truck – Food Truck / 14185 Pyramid Way ~ Reno, NV
• N. Linde Gas & Equipment Inc. – Out of County / 2301 SE Creekview Dr. ~ Ankeny, IA
• O. Maynard Block Properties LLC – General / 1491 Main St. ~ Virginia City, NV
• P. Mountain Vista Roof Systems LLC – Contractor / 19 Glen Carran Cir. ~ Sparks, NV
• Q. Prestige Builders LLC - Contractor / 2009 Lanstar Dr. ~ Sparks, NV
• R. Quench USA Inc. – Out of County / 630 Allendale Rd. ~ King of Prussia, PA
• S. RSAnalysis LLC – Out of County / 1035 Suncast Ln # 130 ~ El Dorado Hills, CA
• T. R. Schneider Cosntruction LLC – Contractor / 53 Bellevue Rd. ~ Carson City, NV
• U. Taber LLC – Contractor / 536 Galveston St. ~ West Sacramento, CA
• V. The Herrick Corporation – Contractor / 3003 E. Hammer Lane ~ Stockton, CA
• W. United Rentals (North America) Inc. – General / 1777 Peru Dr. ~ Sparks, NV

• Recommended motion: None required (if approved as part of the Consent Agenda) I
move to

• approve all first readings (if removed from consent agenda by request).

• Prepared by: Ashley Mead

Department:     Contact Number: 775-847-0966

   6 I



• Staff Summary: First readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved on the consent agenda. The applications are then submitted at the next
Commissioner's meeting for approval.

• Supporting Materials: See attached

• Fiscal Impact: None

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



Storey County Community Development 

110 Toll Road ~ Gold Hill Divide (775) 847-0966  ~  Fax (775) 847-0935
P O Box 526  ~  Virginia City NV 89440 CommunityDevelopment@storeycounty.org 

To: Jim Hindle, Clerk’s office July 10, 2023 

Austin Osborne, County Manager Via Email 

Fr: Ashley Mead 

Please add the following item(s) to the July 18, 2023 COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda: 

FIRST READINGS: 

A. All-Lite Materials LLC – Mining / 3005 Canyon Way – Sparks, NV

B. Aurora Parts & Accessories LLC – General / 1525 Venice ~ McCarran, NV

C. B&J Industries, LLC – Out of County / 599 East Nugget Ave ~ Sparks, NV

D. Boiler & property Consulting – Out of County / 5018 Bristol Ind Way Ste 203 ~ Buford, GA

E. Brinderson LLC – Contractor / 10343 Sam Houston Park Dr. Ste. 200 ~ Houston, TX

F. Cal-Nevada Road Services LLC – Out of County / 1408 Pittman Ave ~ Sparks, NV

G. Clayton homes #890 – Out of County / 10020 Highway 50 East ~ Carson City, NV

H. Dobbas Railroad Services LLC – Out of County / 300 London Dr ~ McCarran, NV

I. Faria’s Mobile Repair – Out of County / 8721 Rainbow Trout Ct. ~ Reno, NV

J. Infinity Painting & Decorating Inc. – Contractor / 200 Canyon Way Ste. B ~ Sparks, NV

K. Kona Ice of Sparks Truck # 1 – Food Truck / 4690 Longley Ln # C-126 ~ Reno, NV

L. Kona Ice of Sparks Truck # 2 – Food Truck / 4690 Longley Ln # C-126 ~ Reno, NV

M. Las Tapatias Food Truck – Food Truck / 14185 Pyramid Way ~ Reno, NV

N. Linde Gas & Equipment Inc. – Out of County / 2301 SE Creekview Dr. ~ Ankeny, IA

O. Maynard Block Properties LLC – General / 1491 Main St. ~ Virginia City, NV

P. Mountain Vista Roof Systems LLC – Contractor / 19 Glen Carran Cir. ~ Sparks, NV

Q. Prestige Builders LLC - Contractor / 2009 Lanstar Dr. ~ Sparks, NV

R. Quench USA Inc. – Out of County / 630 Allendale Rd. ~ King of Prussia, PA

S. RSAnalysis LLC – Out of County / 1035 Suncast Ln # 130 ~ El Dorado Hills, CA

T. R. Schneider Cosntruction LLC – Contractor / 53 Bellevue Rd. ~ Carson City, NV

U. Taber LLC – Contractor / 536 Galveston St. ~ West Sacramento, CA

V. The Herrick Corporation – Contractor / 3003 E. Hammer Lane ~ Stockton, CA

W. United Rentals (North America) Inc. – General / 1777 Peru Dr. ~ Sparks, NV

Ec: Community Development Planning Department Sheriff’s Office 

       Commissioner’s Office Comptroller’s Office  



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 7/18/2023 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 0 min

Agenda Item Type: Consent Agenda

• Title: Approval of claims in the amount of $4,621,077.57.

• Recommended motion: Approval of claims as submitted

• Prepared by: Cory Y Wood

Department:     Contact Number: 7758471133

• Staff Summary: Please find attached  claims

• Supporting Materials: See attached

• Fiscal Impact: N/A

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

    6 II



































































Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 7/18/2023 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 5 mins

Agenda Item Type: Consent Agenda

• Title: Consideration and possible approval of the modifications to Policy 506
establishing a footwear allowance for county employees.

• Recommended motion: I (commissioner) move to approve the modifications made to
Personnel Policy 506 creating a footware allowance for county employees.

• Prepared by: Brandie Lopez

Department:     Contact Number: 775-847-0968

• Staff Summary: The modification to Policy 506 is to establish an allowance to
employees where safety footwear is required.

• Supporting Materials: See attached

• Fiscal Impact: Yes

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

  6 III



Page 1 of 2

STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE            NUMBER      506
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE:        11-10-08

REVISED:         05/05/15;12/15/15; 
05/17/16; 01/02/18

AUTHORITY: BOC
COUNTY MANAGER:         PAW

SUBJECT: Acting Pay, and Field Training Officer Pay, and Footwear Allowance

PURPOSE:  To establish criteria for paying employees for temporarily performing work beyond 
the assigned duties of their current job class, for temporarily assigned to the duties of a 
management or administrative position, and for temporarily performing the duties of a field 
training officer.

POLICY: Employees may occasionally be asked to perform duties beyond the scope of their 
normal position or asked to temporarily assume the duties of a higher level budgeted position or 
a field training officer for a short period. Employees performing work in a higher classification 
for 10 or more days, or performing field training officer duties for one or more days, are entitled 
to premium pay for these duties.
A. Acting Pay

1. Assignments
a. Employees may be temporarily assigned the duties and responsibilities of a

budgeted, higher level position provided the position is currently vacant, or the
employee normally filling the position is on authorized leave, or has been
temporarily relieved of all regular duties to complete a special project approved by
the employer, or because of temporarily increased workload requirements.

b. The same employee shall not be assigned to the higher level duties for more than 6
consecutive months unless specifically approved by the Personnel Director and/or
Administrative Officer, who may extend the assignment for not more than an
additional 6 months.

2. Employee Eligibility

a. Employees must be formally assigned and actually performing the duties of the
higher job class.

b. The salary range for the higher paid class must be at least 5 percent above the range
for the employee’s current job class.

c. Beginning on the 10th consecutive work day of performing the duties of the higher
level position, employees will be paid at a rate 5 percent above their current rate of
pay, or at the entry rate of the higher job class, whichever is greater, but not to
exceed the top step of the higher classification.



Page 2 of 2

d. The provisions of this section shall not be used to authorize additional pay to
provide additional compensation pending action on a request for reclassification of
a position or approval of a recommendation to reclassify a position, or to reward an
employee neither for outstanding service, nor for any purpose other than those
stated in this policy.

B. Field Training Officer Pay
1. Corrections Officers and Communications series employees who are designated by the

department head or supervisor to perform field training officer (FTO) duties shall
receive an additional one dollar ($1.00) per hour for all hours actually spent functioning
as an FTO. The employee is determined to be functioning as an FTO when s/he is
assigned to and actively engaged in training another employee to perform specific
duties applicable to the job and is recording the progress of that trainee for reporting to
the department head or supervisor (e.g., completion of a “Daily Observation Report
[DOR]”). Subject to approval of the Administrative Officer and/or Personnel Director,
the department head or supervisor shall have the discretion to make the FTO
assignment and to remove someone from such assignment.

C. Footwear Allowance
1. Where steel-toed/reinforced toed or safety footwear is required for County duty,

including requirements by OSHA or MSHA, the Employer will provide a footwear  
reimbursement to the Employee of up to $187.50 every year based upon receipts or other 
documentation.  The period will be calculated from the date the Employee last received a 
footwear reimbursement of the full  $187.50 or received that amount cumulatively; 
provided that the Employee will receive up to the full reimbursement at any time his/her 
steel-toed/reinforced-toed or safety footwear is damaged by work-related duty so as to 
render the footwear unserviceable (excluding normal wear and tear as determined by the 
Department Head). The Department Head shall identify the positions which are eligible 
for reimbursement. Footwear purchased under this Section must comply with applicable 
safety standards established by the County or with OSHA or MSHA standards.  The 
Footwear allowance is not applicable to Department Heads or Elected Officials. 

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW:  The County Personnel Director and/or Administrative 
Officer will review this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary.



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 7/18/2023 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 15

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Presentation by the Nevada State Board on Geographic Names (NSBGN) will
present information regarding new State mandates on the NSBGN functions, obligations,
actions, and updates on recent Federal Actions through Secretarial Orders 3404 and
upcoming actions as a result of Secretarial Order 3405 which have and will have impact
on Nevada's landscape. The NSBGN is required to perform public outreach, better Tribal
communications, and seek input from all stakeholders. It is essential for all State of
Nevada County Commissions to know and understand what the NSBGN is tasked with
and how its actions impact the lands associated with each county, and how the
Commission and the Storey County public can be involved in these matters.

• Recommended motion: No Action

• Prepared by: Lyndi Renaud

Department:     Contact Number: 7758471144

• Staff Summary: None

• Supporting Materials: See attached

• Fiscal Impact: None

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

    9



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 7/18/2023 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 5

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and Possible Action of Grant of Easement File No. 2023-029 to NV
Energy for utilities within a portion of the North K Street Right-of-Way, Virginia City,
Nevada, Storey County, Nevada.

• Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff, I
[commissioner] move to approve a Grant of Easement (2023-029) to NV Energy for
utilities located within a portion of the North K Street Right-of-Way, Virginia City,
Storey County, Nevada

• Prepared by: Lyndi Renaud

Department:     Contact Number: 7758471144

• Staff Summary: NV Energy is requesting an easement to facilitate development of a
single family residence at 110 N K Street.  The Public Works Director has reviewed the
easement and has no concerns.  See attached Easement Deed, Legal Description and
Record of Survey

• Supporting Materials: See attached

• Fiscal Impact: None

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

   10



Location: K Street, Virginia City 
RW# 0730-2023 
Proj.# 3010685496 
Project Name: E-110 N. K ST-FP-RES-E-DALY 
GOE_DESIGN_OH_UG  

1 

Location: K Street, Virginia City 

The undersigned hereby affirms that 
 this document, including any exhibits  
hereby submitted for recording does  
not contain the personal information  
of any person or persons (Per NRS 239B.030) 

RECORDING REQUESTED BY: 
WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 
Land Resources 
NV Energy 
P.O. Box 10100 MS S4B20 
Reno, NV 89520 

GRANT OF EASEMENT 

STOREY COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of Nevada, (“Grantor"), for One 
Dollar ($1.00) and other good and valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby 
acknowledged, and on behalf of itself and its successors and assigns, grants and 
conveys to Sierra Pacific Power Company, a Nevada corporation, d/b/a NV Energy 
(“Grantee”) and its successors and assigns a perpetual right and easement: 

1. To construct, operate, add to, modify, maintain, replace and remove
communication facilities and electric line systems for the distribution and
transmission of electricity above ground and underground, consisting of poles,
other structures, wires, cables, bollards, pole-mounted transformers, anchors,
guys and other equipment, fixture, apparatus, and improvements (“Utility
Facilities”), and service boxes/meter panels, cabinets, bollards and other
equipment, fixtures, apparatus, and improvements (“Additional Utility
Facilities”) upon, over, under and through the property legally described in
Exhibit A attached hereto and by this reference made a part of this Grant of
Easement (“Easement Area”);



Location: K Street, Virginia City 
RW# 0730-2023 
Proj.# 3010685496 
Project Name: E-110 N. K ST-FP-RES-E-DALY 
GOE_DESIGN_OH_UG  

2 

2. For ingress and egress to, from, over and across the Easement Area for the
allowed purposes defined in numbered paragraph 1 above and for all other
activities permitted by this agreement;

3. To remove, clear, cut or trim any obstruction or material (including trees, other
vegetation and structures) from the surface or subsurface of the Easement Area
as Grantee may deem necessary or advisable for the safe and proper use and
maintenance of the Utility Facilities or the Additional Utility Facilities within the
Easement Area.

Grantee will be responsible for any damages, proximately caused by Grantee
negligently construction, operating, adding to, maintain, or removing the Utility Facilities 
and/or the Additional Utility Facilities, to any tangible,, personally property or 
improvements owned by Grantor and located on the Easement Area on the date 
Grantor signs the Grant of Easement.  However, this paragraph does not apply to and 
Grantee is not responsible for, any damages caused when Grantee exercises its rights 
under numbered paragraph 3 above so long as it exercises its rights in a prudent and 
non-negligent manner. 

Grantee shall bear the entire cost and expense of installing and maintaining said 
Utility Facilities and Additional Utility Facilities in said Easement Area. 

Grantee shall, at its expense, comply with all applicable laws, regulations, rules 
and orders regardless of when they become or became effective, including, without 
limitation, those relating to health, safety, noise, environmental protection, waste 
disposal, and water and air quality. 

Grantee shall coordinate initial construction and/or maintenance with any existing 
lessees/occupants of the real property and shall use its best efforts not to unreasonably 
interfere with use/access of such lessees/occupants in the course of its construction 
and/or maintenance. 

Grantee agrees that no assessments will be levied against the property of 
Grantor to defray any part of the expense incurred in connection with any construction 
in the Easement Area. 

Grantee agrees to investigate, release, defend, indemnify and hold harmless 
Grantor, its officers, employees, agents, successors and assigns from all claims, 
liability, cost and expense, howsoever same may be caused, including reasonable 
attorney’s fees, for loss of or damage to property for injuries to or death of persons 



Location: K Street, Virginia City 
RW# 0730-2023 
Proj.# 3010685496 
Project Name: E-110 N. K ST-FP-RES-E-DALY 
GOE_DESIGN_OH_UG  

3 

arising out of the construction, reconstruction, maintenance, presence in, or use of the 
Easement Area by Grantee, its employees, agents, licensees, invitees, successors or 
assigns. 

Grantee shall fully pay for all materials installed in the Easement Area and shall 
pay in full all persons who perform labor thereupon. Grantee shall not permit any 
mechanics’ or materialmen’s liens of any kind or nature to be enforced against the 
property for any work done or materials furnished thereon at Grantee’s request. 

Grantor covenants for the benefit of Grantee, its successors and assigns, that no 
building, structure or other real property improvements will be constructed or placed on 
or within the Easement Area without the prior written consent of Grantee, such 
structures and improvements to include, but not be limited to, drainage, trees, bridges, 
signage, roads, fencing, storage facilities, parking canopies, and other covered facilities. 
Grantee and Grantor must document Grantee’s consent by both signing Grantee’s 
standard, recordable use agreement. Grantor retains, for its benefit, the right to 
maintain, use and otherwise landscape the Easement Area for its own purposes; 
provided, however, that all such purposes and uses do not interfere with Grantee’s 
rights herein, Grantee’s electrical practices, and the National Electrical Safety Code. 
Grantee may use this easement to provide service to any of its customers. 

(signatures on next page) 



Location: K Street, Virginia City 
RW# 0730-2023 
Proj.# 3010685496 
Project Name: E-110 N. K ST-FP-RES-E-DALY 
GOE_DESIGN_OH_UG  

4 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor has caused these presents duly to be executed the 
day and year first above written.   

GRANTOR: GRANTEE: 

Accepted for the County of Storey, Sierra Pacific Power Company 
by the Board of County Commissioners 

By: By: 

Name:  Name:  

Title: Title: 

Date: Date: 

(acknowledgements on next page) 



Location: K Street, Virginia City 
RW# 0730-2023 
Proj.# 3010685496 
Project Name: E-110 N. K ST-FP-RES-E-DALY 
GOE_DESIGN_OH_UG  

5 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

STATE OF ) 
) ss. 

COUNTY OF ) 

This instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of 

_____________, 2023, by ______________________ as _______________________ 
of Sierra Pacific Power Company d/b/a NV Energy. 

________________________________ 
  Notary Public 

STATE OF NEVADA ) 
) ss. 

COUNTY OF STOREY ) 

This instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of  

_____________, 2023, by ______________________ as _______________________ 

 of the BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF STOREY COUNTY, a political 
subdivision of the State of Nevada. 

________________________________ 
  Notary Public 









Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 7/18/2023 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 5

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible action for Storey County's acceptance of a Deed of
Dedication from Pure Reno, LLC granting Storey County a parcel of land identified as
Parcel 2017-7 and having Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 005-051-55.  The Parcel is
identified as a portion of Pittsburgh Avenue, located west of intersection with USA
Parkway, within the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center, Storey County, Nevada.

• Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff, I
[Commissioner], hereby move to accept the Deed or Dedication from Pure Development,
LLC, dedicating to Storey County a parcel of land identified as Parcel 2017-7, also
known as a portion of Pittsburgh Avenue, having Assessor’s Parcel Number 005-051-55.

• Prepared by: Lyndi Renaud

Department:     Contact Number: 7758471144

• Staff Summary: See attached staff report, Deed of Dedication and Legal Description

• Supporting Materials: See attached

• Fiscal Impact: None

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

     11



1 

To: Storey County Board of County Commissioners 

From: Storey County Planning Department 

Meeting Date: July 18, 2023  

Meeting Location: Storey County Courthouse, 26 S. B Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada, via Zoom 

Staff Contact:  Kathy Canfield 

File: 2023-031 

Applicants: Storey County Planning Department 

Property Owner:  Pure Reno, LLC  

Property Location: Pittsburgh Avenue, west of USA Parkway, Tahoe Reno Industrial Center, Storey 
County, Nevada, APN 005-051-55 

Request: Storey County acceptance of a Deed of Dedication from Pure Reno, LLC granting 
Storey County a parcel of land identified as Parcel 2017-7 and having Assessor’s 
Parcel Number (APN) 005-051-55.  The Parcel is identified as a portion of 
Pittsburgh Avenue, located west of intersection with USA Parkway, within the 
Tahoe Reno Industrial Center, Storey County, Nevada, to Storey County.   

1. Background & Analysis

This Acceptance is related to a parcel of land identified as Parcel 2017-7 on the Record of Survey
Map 126151 that created a parcel of land associated with Pittsburgh Avenue.  The parcel was
previously undeveloped and the roadway was recently constructed in conjunction with
development on APN 005-051-40.  Storey County Public Works Department has confirmed that the
roadway was constructed to Storey County standards, and it is desired for this portion of roadway to
be dedicated to Storey County.  The applicant is not requesting reimbursement from Storey County
as part of the TRI Public-Private Partnership Capital Improvement Plan outlined in the Development
Agreement between Storey County and the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC and DP Operating
Partnership, L.P.

STOREY COUNTY 
PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

Storey County Courthouse 
26 South B Street, PO Box 176, Virginia City, NV 89440 Phone (775) 

847-1144 – Fax (775) 847-0949
planning@storeycounty.org

mailto:planning@storeycounty.org


2 

. 

Record of Survey Map 126151, highlighted parcel to be dedicated to Storey County 

Vicinity map, Pittsburgh Drive west of USA Parkway 



3 

2. Recommended Motion

In accordance with the recommendation by staff, I [Commissioner], hereby move to accept the Deed
or Dedication from Pure Development, LLC, dedicating to Storey County a parcel of land identified as
Parcel 2017-7, also known as a portion of Pittsburgh Avenue, having Assessor’s Parcel Number 005-
051-55.



4 

Exhibit A 
Deed of Dedication 

Portion of Pittsburgh Avenue 



WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO 
AND MAIL TAX STATEMENTS TO: 

STOREY COUNTY CLERK TREASURER 
26 South B Street 
Virginia City, NV 89440 

APN(s): 005-051-55 

Recorder Affirma�on Statement: The undersigned hereby affirms that this document, including any 
exhibit, hereby submited for recording does not contain the personal informa�on of any person or 
persons (per NRS 239B.030). 

(Space above line for Recorder’s use only) 

DEED OF DEDICATION 
(PORTION OF PITTSBURGH AVENUE) 

This Deed of Dedica�on PURE RENO, LLC, an Indiana limited liability company, referred to as 

“Grantor”, and STOREY COUNTY, a poli�cal subdivision of the State of Nevada, referred to as “Grantee”. 

Grantor hereby dedicates, releases, remises and conveys to Grantee, to have and to hold for public 

use as a roadway and u�lity lines and storm water drainage, all Grantor’s right, �tle and interest in the real 

property located in Storey County, Nevada, more par�cularly described on Exhibit “A” atached hereto and 

incorporated herein by this reference (“Real Property”). 

Reserving and excep�ng unto Grantor and Grantor’s successors and assigns in perpetuity all water 

rights appurtenant to the Real Property, surface or underground, of whatever kind or nature, including all 

permits, applica�ons and cer�ficates regarding said water right, whether such water rights exist at the 

�me of this conveyance or are obtained in the future by Grantor. 

Reserving and excep�ng unto Grantor and Grantor’s successors and assigns in perpetuity all oil, 

gas and mineral rights of whatever kind or nature, whether known or herea�er discovered. 

The Real Property is conveyed subject to all covenants, condi�ons, restric�ons, reserva�ons, 

rights-of-way, easements, and licenses now of record or of which the Grantee has actual or construc�ve 

knowledge, affec�ng the use or occupancy of the Real Property. 



Dated this ________________ day of ________________, 2023. 

GRANTOR: GRANTEE: 

PURE RENO, LLC STOREY COUNTY BY AND THROUGH 
an Indiana limited liability company AND THROUGH THE BOARD OF 

COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

APPROVED AND ACCEPTED 

By: ________________________ By: _______________________ 
Chairman of the Board of 
County Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

By: __________________ County Clerk 

STATE OF INDIANA ) 
)  SS. 

COUNTY OF MARION ) 

The undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the said County, in the State aforesaid, DOES HEREBY 
CERTIFY that __________________, the ________________ of PURE RENO, LLC, who is personally known 
to me to be the same person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument appeared before me 
this day in person and acknowledged that he/she signed and delivered the said instrument as his/her own 
free and voluntary act and as the free and voluntary act of said limited liability company, for the uses and 
purposes therein set forth. 

GIVEN under my hand and notarial seal this _____ day of _______________, 2023. 

___________________________ 
Notary Public 

My Commission Expires: ___________________ 



EXHIBIT “A” 









Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 7/18/2023 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 5 minutes

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Tax Management Contract Amendment to Audit Tesla, Panasonic, and H&T
Nevada. Total Audit $60,000.

• Recommended motion: Approval

• Prepared by: Jana Seddon

Department:     Contact Number: 775-847-0961

• Staff Summary: Tesla, Panasonic, and H&T Nevada will all become taxable for the 24-
25 tax year. This would be a proactive audit to make sure everything gets picked up, put
on the Unsecured Tax Roll, and billed correctly from the start.  I currently have $22,000
budgeted for Tax Management regular Personal Property audits for the 23-24.  We will
not be conducting any regular audits as these 3 accounts are very large accounts and will
already require additional staff from TMA to conduct.

• Supporting Materials: See attached

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

   12





Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 7/18/2023 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 5 minutes

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Sparks NV/CASS NV, LLC refund of $133,691.49 due to retroactive abatement
from GOED.  Parcel # 005-061-59 and Acct #CM001855.

• Recommended motion: At the direction of the board.

• Prepared by: Jana Seddon

Department:     Contact Number: 775-847-0961

• Staff Summary: GOED has approved a 50% Abatement for Real Property and Personal
Property at their March 16,2023 meeting and made the abatement retro active back to the
application date of April 15, 2022.  A tax bill in the amount of $255,994.91 for Real
Property was generated in July of 2022 and was paid in full.  A Personal Property tax bill
in the amount of $11,388.06 was generated and paid for in November of 2022.  Both of
these bills were generated and paid long before we were notified of the abatement
approval.  I am unsure how GOED is allowed to approve a retroactive abatement that
causes such a fiscal impact on the County.  Abatement Contract and Tax Bills attached.

• Supporting Materials: See attached

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

    13



















Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 7/18/2023 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 15 Min

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval for the County Manager to enter into a
contract with The Abbi Agency for public relations services at a cost not to exceed
$200,000.

• Recommended motion: I _(commissioner), move to approve the County Manager to
enter into a contract with The Abbi Agency for public relations services at a cost not to
exceed $200,000.

• Prepared by: Lara Mather

Department:     Contact Number: 7758470986

• Staff Summary: A Request for Proposal for Communications and Public Relations
Services was issued in January of 2023, with a closing date of March 1, 2023. We
received 5 proposals and interviewed 4 firms. The interview committee concluded the
Abbi Agency is best suited to meet the critical role of the county’s expanding public
relations needs.

•
• This contract will include working with the County Manager for day-to-day public

relations and social media, emergency incidents, and legislative preparation and response.
In addition, the firm will work closely with Business Development in the overall
branding of the county and the branding and marketing of the Tahoe-Reno Industrial
Center.   The agency will work with all department to update and streamline the overall
look and information on the county’s website.

• Supporting Materials: See attached

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

    14



• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 7/18/2023 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 10 min

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval for the Storey County Senior Center to enter
contract with the Storey County School District to provide breakfast and lunch to Hugh
Gallagher Elementary School and Virginia City Middle School for the 2023/24 calendar
school year.

• Recommended motion: I (commissioner), move to approve the Storey County Senior
Center to enter contract with the Storey County School District to provide breakfast and
lunch to Hugh Gallagher Elementary School and Virginia City Middle School for the
2023/24 calendar school year.

• Prepared by: Stacy York

Department:     Contact Number: 775-220-7202

• Staff Summary: Last year Senior Services complete a trial lunch program at Hugh
Gallagher Elementary School that fed 120 students free breakfast and lunch. The program
was successful and comes at a time of need for many families struggling to afford
necessities. The school district would like to continue this program, as well as bring it to
the middle school. This contract will allow meals to be provided by the Senior Center for
the 2023/24 calendar school year.

• Supporting Materials: See attached

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

    15



[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



STANDARD AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE FOOD SERVICE

BETWEEN A SPONSOR AND A FOOD SERVICE VENDOR

This agreement ("Agreement") is entered Into on August 1, 2023, by and between Storey County School District a political 
subdivision of the State of Nevada ("Sponsor")  and Storey County also a political subdivision of the State of Nevada 
("Vendor") for school breakfast and lunches. Total contract amount up to $375,000.00 

BACKGROUND 

Whereas, it is not within the capability of the Sponsor to prepare specified meal’s under the National 
School Lunch Program (NSLP); School Breakfast Program (SBP). 

Whereas, the facilities and capabilities of the Vendor by the County employees and facilities located at its Senior center in 
Virginia City, Nevada are adequate to prepare and deliver specified meals to the Sponsor's facility (ies); and whereas, the 
Vendor is willing to provide such services to the Sponsor on a Fixed-fee contract reimbursement basis. 

Whereas, school districts and counties as public agencies are authorized by NRS 277.180 to enter into contracts with each 
other to perform any governmental service, activity or undertaking which either of the public agencies entering into the 
contract is authorized by law to perform. Vendor through its Senior Citizen Center is authorized to prepare and provide 
meals and Sponsor as a school district is authorized to provide meals to its students.

Therefore, both parties agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT 

1. Vendor Responsibilities

1.1. Food Services: The Vendor agrees to prepare specified meals for delivery exclusive of milk to the site specified In
Paragraph 1.2 per the agreed upon menu plan specified In Paragraph 1.6. The Sponsor has approved the menu, 
which Is Incorporated Into this Agreement by this reference, 

1.2. Service Site[s); For the purpose of this Agreement, the Vendor shall make and deliver meals that comply with the 
NSLP/SBP and this Agreement to the food service site at the following location(s): Hugh Gallagher Elementary 
School, 191 South D Street, Virginia City, Nevada 89440 and Virginia City Middle School, 127 South D Street, 
Virginia City, Nevada 89440

1.3. Delivery Requirements: The Vendor shall make deliveries of the meals within the hours and on the days 
designated below. The Vendor shall make deliveries only to the authorized Site(s) at the following day(s) and 
time(s): Monday - Friday/11:00a.m. 

1.4. Price: Vendor's price for SY 23/24 NSLP meals is the cost of food, beverages, and supplies to make and package 
individual meals, billed bi-weekly, except as provided In Paragraph 1.9. The Price shall be firm for the term of the 
contract. Sponsor is responsible for plates, if needed, napkins and utensils for the meals.



1.5. Menu Preparation and Approval: Vendor shall provide the Sponsor, for approval, a proposed 20-day cycle menu 
for the operational period, at least 5 business days prior to the beginning of the period to which the menu 
applies. Any changes to the menu made after Sponsor approval must be agreed upon by the Sponsor and 
documented on the menu records. Menu Items may be adjusted in writing by the mutual consent of both parties. 
However, the Vendor shall adjust the menus at the request of the Sponsor whenever the Sponsor determines 
certain items to be unacceptable. Such items can be determined to be unacceptable because of (1) a 
monotonous diet resulting from items served frequently or the similarity to other items; (2) the nutritional needs 
of the students; (3) susceptibility to spoilage; and (4) excessive waste resulting from unpopularity of items with 
students. Such adjustments shall be made at the earliest convenience of both parties, but in no Instance later 
than one week after request except that in the case of spoilage, adjustment shall be made in such a manner that 
the children in attendance on the day spoilage is discovered shall receive acceptable meals meeting meal 
requirements. 

1.6. Food Preparation: Vendor shall assure that each meal provided to the Sponsor under this Agreement meets the 
minimum requirements for reimbursable meals that meet the Public Law 111-296, the Healthy, Hunger-Free Kids 
Act of 2010 (HHFKA). The Vendor must follow the single Food-Based Menu Planning (FBMP) meal patterns as 
described In 7 CFR §210.10 for NSLP and §220.8 for SBP. The meal shall Include the following components; fruits, 
vegetables, grains, and meat/meat alternates. The Vendor shall meet grade level caloric, saturated fat, sodium 
and trans fat requirements. If the Sponsor participates in SFSP the Vendor shall meet the requirements of §225. 

1.7. Record keeping: Vendor shall maintain full and accurate records/production worksheets that document: (1) the 
menus provided to the Sponsor during the term of this Agreement, (2) a listing of all components of each meal, 
and (3) an Itemization of the quantities and portion sizes of each component used to prepare each meal. The 
Vendor agrees to provide lunch preparation documentation by using yield factors for each food item as listed In 
the United States Department of Agriculture ("USDA") Food Buying Guide when calculating and recording the 
quantity of food prepared for each meal, Vendor shall also maintain and make available:

1.7.1. Recipes, Nutrition Facts labels, and any necessary Child Nutrition (CN) labels or product specification sheets 
related to the menus served;

1.7.2. Such cost records as invoices, receipts or other documentation that exhibit the purchase, or otherwise 
availability to the Vendor, of the meal components and quantities itemized in the meal production records;

1.7.3. On a daily basis, an accurate count of the number of meals, by meal type, prepared for and delivered to the 
Sponsor. Meal count documentation must include the number of meals requested by the Sponsor in writing.

1.8. Estimates: Vendor shall allow the Sponsor to increase or decrease the number of meal orders, as needed, when 
the request is made within 72 hours of the scheduled delivery time.

1.9. Invoicing: Vendor shall present to the Sponsor an invoice accompanied by reports no later than the 10th day of 
each month which itemizes the previous month's delivery.  The Vendor agrees to forfeit payment for meals which 
are not ready within one (1) hour of the agreed upon delivery time, are spoiled or unwholesome at the time of 
delivery, or do not otherwise meet the meal requirements contained in this agreement.  In cases of 
nonperformance or noncompliance on the part of the Vendor, the Vendor shall pay the Sponsor for any excess 
costs the Sponsor incurs by obtaining meals from another source.



1.10.   Certifications: Vendor shall provide the Sponsor with a copy of current health certifications for the food service 
facility in which it prepares meals for NSLP/SBP. The Vendor also agrees to notify the Sponsor of the results of 
any health Inspection that is made during the duration of this Agreement. The Vendor shall maintain proper 
sanitation practices and health standards in conformance with all applicable State and local laws and regulations. 
The Vendor shall assure that wholesome Ingredients are used, and that all food is properly stored, prepared, 
packaged, and transported. In addition, any substance that the food contacts or which is used in conjunction with 
the food shall be so handled as to assure that it does not become contaminated.

1.11.  Record Retention: Vendor shall retain all records related to this Agreement in its possession for five (5) years 
after the expiration of the Agreement. Upon request make all accounts and records pertaining to the Agreement 
available to the certified public accountant hired by the Sponsor, representatives of the Nevada Department of 
Agriculture (NDA), USDA, the US General Accounting Office, and the USDA Office of Inspector General ("OIG") for 
audits or administrative reviews at a reasonable time and place.

1.12.  Subcontracting: Vendor shall not subcontract any portion of this Agreement.

1.13.  Commodities: Vendor agrees to accept commodities from the Sponsor. These commodities will only be used In 
the preparation of meals provided for the NSLP/SBP. The Vendor can only obtain the commodities at the Sponsor 
site.

1.13.1. The Vendor must credit monthly for the value of all donated foods received for use in the school year 
(Including both entitlement and bonus food) and including the market value of donated foods contained in 
processed end products. Credit Issued by the Vendor to the Sponsor for USDA donated commodity foods 
received shall be recorded on the monthly bill/Invoice as a separate line 'item and shall be dearly identified 
and labeled.

1.13.2. The Vendor must ensure that it has a perpetual Inventory record maintained and submitted to the 
Sponsor on a monthly basis. Failure of the Vendor to maintain a perpetual inventory shall be considered as 
evidence of improper distribution or loss of USDA-donated food.

1.13.3. The Vendor shall accept liability for any negligence on its part that results in any loss of, improper use of, 
or damage to USDA-donated foods. The Vendor shall credit the Sponsor for the value of all USDA-donated 
foods received for the use In Sponsor's meal service in the school year, including both entitlement and 
bonus foods, and Including the value of donated foods contained in processed end products.

1.14.  Offer Free and Reduced Meals: Vendor will not offer a la carte food service unless free, reduced price and full 
price reimbursable meals are offered to all eligible children.

1.15.  Buy American: Vendor will Buy American domestic commodities and products for school meals to the maximum 
extent practicable. Domestic products are those that are produced In the United States and those that are 
processed in the United States substantially (51 percent or more) using agricultural commodities produced in the 
United States.

1.16.  Energy Policy and Conservation Act: Vendor shall meet the mandatory standards and policies relating to energy 
efficiency which are contained in the State Energy Conservation Plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy 
and conservation Act. (Pub, L. 94-163, 89 Stat. 871.3016.36)(1)(13)



1.17.  HACCP: Vendor will provide the Sponsor, upon request, evidence of dally worksheets that detail Hazard Analysis 
and Critical control Point (HACCP) compliance from receipt to delivery of the finished product.

1.18.  "Permit To Operate" Health Certification: Vendor shall have State or local "Permit to Operate" health certification 
for any facility outside the school in which it prepares meals. The Vendor shall maintain the "Permit to Operate" 
health certification for the duration of the contract.

1.19.  Food Safety Inspections: Vendor must have Food Safety Inspections completed every school year at the facility in 
which It prepares meals, The Vendor must provide Food Safety Inspection reports to the Sponsor when 
requested.

1.20.  Meal Delivery: The Vendor meal delivery vehicle must be adequately constructed so as to protect the food, 
foodservice equipment, and utensils from contamination at all times during transportation. The delivery vehicle 
Interior surfaces must be clean at all times during transportation of meals.

1.20.1. During the transportation of meals, hot foods that are potentially hazardous must be kept at a minimum 
temperature of 135˚ F at all times. 

1.20.2. During the transportation of meals, cold foods that are potentially hazardous must be kept at or below 
41˚ F at all times and be transported in containers capable of maintaining temperatures at or below 41˚ F.

1.20.3. Vendor must monitor and document temperatures of menu Items prior to transport, upon arrival, and at 
the time of serving. A temperature log for each item on the menu served must be completed daily and 
maintained. The Vendor temperature log must be made available to the Sponsor once requested.

2. Sponsor Responsibilities

2.1. Retain Control of Food Service Program: Sponsor will retain control of the quality, extent, and general nature of
the food service, including counting and claiming meals, and ordering and accounting for USDA commodities.

2.2. Food Service Operation Conformance: Sponsor will ensure that the food service operation is in conformance with 
the School's Agreement with the NDA to participate in Child Nutrition Programs.

2.3. Financial Responsibility: Sponsor will retain control of the nonprofit school food service account and overall 
financial responsibility for the nonprofit food service operation.

2.4. Signature Authority: Sponsor will retain signature authority on the Child Nutrition Programs agreement. Retain 
signature authority for the annual Child Nutrition Programs application and by electronically submitting required 
information to the NDA.

2.5. Price Control: Sponsor will retain control of the establishment of all prices, including price adjustments, for meals 
served under the nonprofit school food service account, e.g., pricing for reimbursable meals, a la carte service 
including vending machines, and adult meals.

2.6. Household Application: Sponsor will review, approve or deny, and verify applications for free and reduced-price 
school meals in accordance with 7 CFR 245. Provide hearings related to eligibility determinations in accordance 



with 7 CFR 245.7. Provide hearings related to adverse actions resulting from verification in accordance with 7 CFR 
245.6a(e).

2.7. Contract Document: Sponsor will prepare all Vendor contract documents.

2.8. Program Monitoring: Sponsor will monitor all meals to ensure the food service is in conformance with program 
regulations.

2.9. Unacceptable Meal: Sponsor shall be responsible for informing the Vendor of its reasons for determining that a 
meal is unacceptable in writing within forty-eight (48) hours of when the meal is delivered to the site.

2.10.  Meal Estimates: Sponsor shall provide in writing, no later than Thursday by 12:30 p.m. before the first day of 
operation, a reasonably accurate estimate of the number of meals to be delivered to Sponsor each day. The 
Sponsor shall notify the Vendor In writing of necessary increases or decreases in the number of meal orders 
within 48 hours of the scheduled delivery time. Errors in meal order counts made by the Sponsor shall be the sole 
responsibility of the Sponsor.

2.11.  Sponsor Representative Duties: Sponsor shall ensure that a Sponsor representative is available at each delivery 
site, at the specified time on each specified delivery day to receive, inspect, and sign for the requested number of 
meals. This individual will verify the temperature, quality, and quantity of each meal delivery. The Sponsor assures 
the Vendor that this individual will be trained and knowledgeable in the record keeping and meal requirements 
of the NSLP/SBP and with local health and safety codes.

2.12.  Cleaning: Sponsor shall be responsible for cleaning the eating areas daily.

2.13.  Approval of Menus: Sponsor shall notify the Vendor in writing within 5 days of receipt of the next month's 
proposed cycle menu, of any changes, additions or deletions.

2.14.  NSLP Compliance: Sponsor shall assure that the Vendor has a copy of 7 CFR Part 210.10, the Meal Planning 
Option that is to be followed; and the USDA Team Nutrition Menu Planner and Food Buying Guide; and all other 
technical assistance materials pertaining to the food service requirements of the NSLP/SBP. The Sponsor will, 
within 24 hours of receipt from the NDA, advise the Vendor of any changes in the food service requirements.

2.15.  Payment: Sponsor shall pay the Vendor by the 4th day of each month the full amount as presented on the 
monthly itemized invoice. The Sponsor shall notify the Vendor within 48 hours of receipt of any discrepancy in 
the invoice. The Sponsor shall pay the Vendor for all meals delivered in accordance with the agreement. Neither 
NDA nor USDA will assume any liability for payment of the difference between the number of meals prepared 
and delivered by the Vendor and the number of meals served by the Sponsor that are eligible for reimbursement. 
In addition, neither NDA nor USDA will be responsible for resolving issues of partial or non-payment per the 
terms of this agreement.

3. General Terms

3.1. Employment: Vendor shall comply with all applicable Federal, State, and local laws and regulations pertaining to
wages, hours, conditions of employment, and nondiscrimination in employment, 7 CFR Section 3016.36 (i)(3). 
USDA is an Equal Opportunity Provider and Employer.



3.2. Payroll Taxes and Costs: Vendor shall pay its employees directly and shall withhold and pay all applicable federal 
and state employment taxes and payroll insurance with respect to its employees, including applicable income, 
social security, Medicare and employment taxes, and workers compensation costs.

3.3. Indemnity:

3.3.1. Vendor shall Indemnify, defend, and hold the Sponsor harmless against any loss or damage (including 
attorney's fees and costs of litigation) caused by the Vendor's negligent act or omission, theft by the 
Vendor's employees, or the negligent or intentional acts or omissions of the Vendor's agents or employees. 
The Vendor shall defend any suit involving Vendor’s negligence or that of its officers, employees or agents 
brought against the Sponsor alleging personal Injury or property damage arising out of the transportation 
of meals or other Items to the site(s) or out of the acts of the Vendor's employees, and any suit alleging 
bodily injury, sickness, or disease arising out of the consumption of the meals delivered by the Vendor to the 
Food Service site(s), and shall be liable for any damages agreed to by the parties or awarded as a result of 
such litigation but only to the extent of the negligence of Vendor, its officers, employees or agents caused 
the damages. 

3.3.2. Sponsor shall promptly notify the Vendor In writing of any claims against the Vendor or the Sponsor and, in 
the event a suit is filed, shall promptly forward to the Vendor all papers in connection therewith. The Vendor 
shall not incur any expense or make any settlement without the Sponsor's consent. However, if the Vendor 
refuses or neglects to defend any such suit, the Sponsor may defend, adjust, or settle any such claim, and 
the costs of such defense, adjustment, or settlement, including reasonable attorney's fees, shall be charged 
to the Vendor.

3.3.3. Sponsor shall indemnify, defend and hold Vendor harmless against any loss or damage (including attorney’s 
fees and costs of litigation, arbitration or mediation) caused by any intentional or negligent acts or 
omissions of Sponsor, its officers, employees and agents. Sponsor shall defend any suit against Vendor, its 
officers, employees or agents notwithstanding Vendor’s right to provide for its own defense. If Vendor 
chooses to provide for its own defense, then Sponsor shall not be responsible for reimbursing Vendor for 
the costs and attorney fees it incurs.

3.3.4. Vendor, as a public agency, is entitled to the limitations on liability set forth in NRS Chapter 41.  Vendor will 
not waive the limitations set forth in that chapter and will assert them whenever Vendor is entitled to.

3.4. Agreement Modification. Nonperformance or Default: 

3.4.1. This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding between the Vendor and the Sponsor with respect to 
the subject matter hereof and there is no other written or oral understandings or agreements with respect 
hereto. No variation or modification of the Agreement and no waiver of its provisions shall be valid unless in 
writing and signed by the duly authorized officers of the Sponsor and the Vendor. No assignment or transfer 
of this Agreement may be made, in whole or In part, without the prior written consent of the Sponsor.

3.4.2. The Sponsor may, upon written notice of default to the Vendor, terminate the whole or any part of this 
Agreement In any one of the following circumstances:

3.4.2.1.  If the Vendor fails to make delivery of meals, other agreed upon Items (i.e. eating utensils, supplies, 
storage equipment), or to perform the services within the time specified herein.



3.4.2.2.  If the Vendor fails to perform any of the other provisions of this Agreement in accordance with its 
terms and does not correct such failure within 48 hours after requested to do so.

3.5. Duration and Termination:

3.5.1. This Agreement shall become effective August 1, 2023, after both parties sign it and NDA approves it. The 
Vendor shall provide meals during the period starting on the Effective Date and ending on May 31, 2024. 
However, either party may, at any time during the life of this Agreement, terminate this Agreement by giving 
thirty (30) day notice in writing to the other party of its intention to do so. The Sponsor may terminate this 
Agreement upon written notice if Vendor falls to fully comply with the terms and conditions. All notices to 
the Sponsor shall be addressed to the Sponsor at the address listed on the signature page, and all notices to 
the Vendor shall be addressed to the Vendor at the address listed on the signature page.

3.6. Audit: Sponsor shall have the right, at its expense, to inspect the books and records of Vendor to verify its 
performance and expenses submitted under this Agreement. Inspection shall take place during normal business 
hours at Vendor's place of business.

3.7. Applicable Law: The law of the State of Nevada shall govern this Agreement.

3.8. Termination without Cause: Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time upon thirty (30) days prior 
written notice to the other of such party's Intention to terminate this Agreement even if it is without cause.

3.9. Unavailability of Funds: The Sponsor and/or Vendor may terminate this Agreement, without penalty, if its 
Governing Board fails to appropriate funds in subsequent fiscal years to support the program that is the subject 
of this Agreement. The Sponsor and/or Vendor shall give each other prompt written notice after it knows that 
funding will not be available.

3.10.  Non-Discrimination: Vendor shall not discriminate in either the provision of services, or in employment, against 
any person because of sex, race, disability, marital or family status, national origin, veteran's status, sexual 
preference, or religion. Vendor agrees to comply with all applicable federal and state laws, rules, regulations, and 
executive orders relating to non-discrimination, affirmative action and equal employment opportunity.

3.11.  Workers Compensation: Vendor shall maintain a system of coverage for workers compensation in conformance 
with applicable state law covering all of its employees who may be employed in connection with food service 
provided to the Sponsor.

3.12.  Insurance: During the term of this Agreement, the Vendor shall maintain Insurance policies described below 
issued through the Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool (Pool) 

3.12.1. Commercial General Liability Insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily 
Injury, property damage, personal Injury, products and completed operations, and blanket contractual 
coverage, including but not limited to, the liability assumed under the Indemnification provisions of this 
Agreement; and

3.12.2. Automobile Liability Insurance with a combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage of not 
less than $1,000,000 each occurrence with respect to the Vendor's owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles.



3.13.  Assignment: This Agreement may not be assigned by either party without the prior written consent of the other 
party.

3.14.Both parties represent that the person signing this agreement is a duly authorized person to bind the parties to 
this Agreement.

4. Vendor Certification Statements

4.1. Certificate of Independent Price Determination: Vendor admits that all prices in this offer have been arrived at
Independently, without consultation, communication or Agreement, for the purpose of restricting competition, as 
to any matter relating to such prices with any other Vendor or with any competitor certification regarding non 
collusion.

4.2. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standard Act: The Vendor is required to follow the Contract Work Hours and 
Safety Standard Act. It requires the Vendor to pay employees overtime (one and one-half times their basic rate of 
pay) for all hours worked over 40 in a workweek. This Act also prohibits unsanitary, hazardous, or dangerous 
working conditions.

4.3. Conflict of Interest: Vendor's signature on this Agreement Indicates there is no conflict of interest associated with 
the award of this Agreement. No one employed by the Sponsor is related to or has any other personal or 
professional relationship with the Senior Center and/or his/her family.

For the Sponsor: 

Storey County School District 
Hugh Gallagher Elementary/ Virginia City Middle School

Name and Title of Representative 

Kristen Chandler, Director of Business Services

Signature

191 South D Street
Mailing Address, Street/PO Box

Virginia City, Nevada 89440
Mailing Address, City, State, Zip Code

775-847-0983
Telephone

krchandler@storeynv.com
Email

___________________________________________________
Date

For the Vendor:

Storey County 

Name and Title of Representative 

Jay Carmona, Chairman, Storey County Board of 
County Commissioners

Signature

26 South B Street P.O. Box 176
Mailing Address, Street/PO Box

Virginia City, Nevada 89440
Mailing Address, City, State, Zip Code

775-847-0968
Telephone

aosborne@storeycounty.org 
Email

Date



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 7/18/2023 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 5 min

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval of agreement between Storey County and VC
Ponderosa Saloon LLC (Old Corner Bar) pertaining to monthly  payments of back utility
payments totalling $8,651.53.

• Recommended motion: I, Commissioner ______,  move to approve the agreement
between Storey County and VC Ponderosa Saloon LLC (Old Corner Bar) pertaining to
monthly payments of back utility payments totaling $8,651.53.

• Prepared by: Jennifer McCain

Department:     Contact Number: 7758471133

• Staff Summary: In 2019 Storey County entered into a rental agreement with VC
Ponderosa Saloon LLC (Old Corner Bar). This rental agreement included a requirement
for the Renters to pay 35% of Piper’s Opera House’s electric bill. Due to a
misunderstanding this was not paid. The total electric bill for Piper's Opera House total
$24,718.56 from Feb 2019 through April 2023, therefore VC Ponderosa's 35% portion
due is $8,651.53. The agreement allows 2 years for repayments; 23 payments of $360.48
and an additional payment of $360.49 with the final payment being August 1, 2025.   VC
Ponderosa Saloon LLC has already paid the July 1, 2023 payment.

• Supporting Materials: See attached

• Fiscal Impact: yes

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

    16



[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



AGREEMENT BETWEEN STOREY COUNTY AND

 VC PONDEROSA SALOON LLC

This Agreement is entered into between Storey County (County)and VC Ponderosa 
Saloon LLC (DBA Old Corner Bar) (Ponderosa Saloon) and is entered into as of the date of the 
last signature affixed to this agreement.

BACKGROUND

The Ponderosa Saloon has leased the Old Corner Bar located in Piper’s Opera House 
from County since February 5, 2019.  Under the terms of the lease Ponderosa Saloon was 
required to pay thirty-five percent (35%) of the electric bill, billed to Piper’s Opera House. Due 
to a misunderstanding, that bill has not been paid by Ponderosa Saloon.  The County is presently 
owed the amount of $8,651.53 from Ponderosa Saloon.  The purpose of this Agreement is to set 
forth the terms by which Ponderosa Saloon will pay that amount to Storey County.

NOW THEREFORE IS IT HEREBY AGREED AS FOLLOWS:

1. Ponderosa Saloon shall make 23 equal payments of  $360.48 plus one additional payment
of $360.49.

2. Payments are due on the first of each month beginning on July 1, 2023, and continuing
until August 1, 2025

3. Payments are past due ten (10) days after the first of each month.  A late payment must
be accompanied by a $25.00 late payment fee.

4. Payments should be made to the Storey County Treasurer.

Dated this ________ day of _______,2023.

____________________________________
Tamara Migan, Managing Member

____________________________________
William Migan Jr. Managing Member

Dated this _________ day of _______, 2023

____________________________________
Jay Carmona, Chairman Storey County Board of Commissioners

Attest:

__________________________
Jim Hindle Storey County Clerk/Treasurer



Board of Storey County Fire Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 7/18/2023 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 15 min.

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Probation completion badge pinning for Fire Marshal Scott Snelling and
promotional badge pinning for Assistant Fire Chief Jim Morgan.

• Recommended motion: No Motion Required.

• Prepared by: Jeremy Loncar

Department:     Contact Number: 7758470954

• Staff Summary: In fire service tradition, a badge pinning and when applicable a reciting
of the oath should occur to celebrate the accomplishments of our staff and publicly
recognize them. Traditionally the spouse, significant other, family member, or friend is
awarded the opportunity to place the new badge on the recently promoted or hired
member.

• Supporting Materials: See attached

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

   18



Board of Storey County Fire Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 7/18/2023 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 5 mins

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval of the revisions to the Fire Chief job
description.

• Recommended motion: I (commissioner) move to approve the revisions made to the
Fire Chief job description.

• Prepared by: Brandie Lopez

Department:     Contact Number: 775-847-0968

• Staff Summary: We have revised the job descriptions for the County Manager and the
Fire Chief. There are no significant content changes, we just made them more consistent
to each other.

• Supporting Materials: See attached

• Fiscal Impact: None

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

   19



1

Storey County Fire Protection District Job Description

Fire Chief

Class Title: Fire Chief
Reports to: Storey County Board of Fire Commissioners
FLSA Status: Exempt
Represented Status: Non-Represented
Created: 05/06/08
Last Revised: 12/28/16 

02/04/20
07/18/23

JOB SUMMARY  

Under the administrative direction of the Storey County Board of Fire Commissioners (Ffire 
Bboard), the incumbent serves as the Storey County Fire Protection District (districtDistrict) Fire 
Chief (Cchief) and performs the duties and responsibilities outlined within NRS 474 all-inclusive. 
In addition to those statutory responsibilities, the Cchief shall ensure that the Ddistrict runs as a 
modern and progressive all-risk/hazard response system through the utilization of a combination 
staffing pattern.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS

Theis position Chief is appointed by the Ffire Bboard and reports to and serves at the pleasure of 
the fFire Bboard in an at-will capacity. This position manages all activities of the Ddistrict and is 
accountable for accomplishing Ddistrict goals and objectives and for furthering the goals and 
objectives of the Ffire Bboard within general policy guidelines. 
The Ddistrict, as a combination fFire Ddistrict, is comprised of volunteer, seasonal/intermittent 
wildland, and permanent full-time staff. All-risk responses include all aspects of fire suppression, 
fire prevention, fire investigation, emergency medical service, hazardous materials response, 
technical rescue, motor vehicle accident and rescue, fire pre-planning, mapping, and all other 
response areas. Programs within the all-risk district may include, but are not limited to, public 
education, community CPR, community fire education, first-aid training, and public fire 
prevention. The chief oversees the inter-local agreement for fire investigation, code adoption, and 
enforcement.
The position is also a critical component of furthering the county’s goals and efforts toward 
economic development and vitality.

EVALUATION OF JOB PERFORMANCE



2

The cChief will be given an annual a yearly evaluation by the fFire Bboard on the Cchief’s annual 
anniversary.  The Ffire Bboard may evaluate the Cchief at other times as deemed appropriate.  The 
Ffire Bboard may consider an increase in salary, including a merit increase consistent with the 
amount given to non-representedunclassified personnel, and a possible performance 
basedperformance-based bonus.  The HR Director (Director) administrative officer and/or 
personnel director is responsible for placing the review on the Ffire Bboard’s agenda, providing 
any legal notice, and providing material for the agenda package including salary comparisons and 
any material requested by the fFire Bboard. In accordance with Storey County (district)Districts 
personnel policy, if a performance evaluation is not completed within 30 days of the employee’s 
anniversary date it shall be considered a satisfactory performance evaluation, and the 
administrative officer and/or personnel dDirector shall authorize a step advancement retroactive 
to the employee’s anniversary date.

EXAMPLES OF ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS

The Chief’s duties are authorized by NRS 474 and action of the Fire Board.  The Fire Board may 
take action to include or eliminate duties for the Chief.  The duties listed below are examples of 
the work typically performed by an employee in this position. Performance The performance of 
these functions is the reason the job exists. An employee may not be assigned all duties listed and 
may be assigned duties which that are not listed below. All duties as listed within NRS 474 are 
inherently part of the essential functions of this position.

1. Develops, coordinates, and oversees all standard operating procedures, rules and
regulations, policies and procedures, and general guidelines involved with a modern and
progressive full servicefull-service Ffire Ddistrict; develops and implements goals, objectives,
policies, procedures, and work standards for the district.

2.1. Develops and maintains the Ddistrict budget; estimates costs and budget needs for 
maintenance operations, construction, purchases, and repairs; prepares funding 
justification requests; monitors expenditures for budget conformance; accounts for budget 
expenditures and variances; prepares and presents information in oral and written form to 
the Ffire Bboard; state, county and agency officials; and the public. Special areas of 
concern include planning for and the purchase of appropriate and sufficient equipment 
necessary, including redundant equipment to combat a fire at any given structure, wildland, 
vehicle, or hazardous materials fire and incidents including, but not limited to, fire hose, 
rolling stock, appropriate PPE, nozzles, and everything required by the Insurance Services 
Organization (ISO), local government, and by state and federal mandates. 

3.2. Manages and directs the activities of Ddistrict staff; coordinates, prioritizes, and assigns 
tasks and projects; tracks and reviews work progress and activities; develops effective work 
teams and motivates individuals to meet district goals, objectives, and policies; directs the 
recruitment and selection of staff; undertakes disciplinary action as required; conducts 
performance evaluations; ensures appropriate scheduling of staff to ensure proper 
operational coverage; trains staff and provides for their professional development.



3

4.3. Confers with the Ffire Bboard, advisory boards, and commissions, citizen groups, Storey 
Ccounty manager, departments, and other agencies to formulate policies and plans related 
to the Ddistrict’s functions, community development, facilities, and other areas where 
needed.

5.4. Directs the procurement of professional contract services in accordance with NRS 332 ; 
negotiates professional services contracts; reviews the performance of contract 
professionals; takes and recommends corrective action to the fire board as appropriate.

6.5. Represents the Ddistrict in local, state, and national forums; makes presentations before 
various advisory committees, legislative, regulatory, and community groups; confers with 
departments and agencies regarding departmental or county-wide operational matters; 
facilitates problem resolutions and coordinated policies.

7.6. Directs and develops analytical studies; reviews reports, findings, alternatives, and 
recommendations; directs the maintenance of accurate records and files; prepares and 
directs the preparation of a variety of written correspondence, reports, procedures, and 
other written materials. 

8.7. Drafts changes to laws and ordinanceordinances; lobbies and assists in lobbying efforts at 
the Nevada State Legislature and other bodies, provides supporting testimony as required.  

9.8. Provides advice and consultation to the Ffire Bboard, Storey cCounty manager, other 
departments and other agencies, and contractors in dDistrict program areas and otherwise 
as needed; investigates and resolves complaints and concerns regarding services and 
facilities; acts as liaison with other counties and regional, state, and federal agencies 
regarding Ddistrict facilities and services.

10.9. Prepares requests for proposals and bid requests for a wide variety of projects, equipment, 
and other purchases and expenditures; administers projects and purchase agreements; 
monitors projects and purchases for conformance with specifications; and authorizes 
payments.

11.10. Acts on behalf of the Ddistrict in meetings with developers, general contractors, engineers, 
architects, planners, land surveyors, prospective private companies, local and state entities, 
and companies proposing to build or locate in Storey County; maintains active involvement 
and coordination with the Storey cCounty team attracting, enhancing, and improving 
private enterprise and private-public partnerships in the county; liaises with community 
groups, property and homeowners associations, general improvement districts, and other 
community groups.

12.11. Stays abreast of all local, state, and federal laws, guidelines, trends, regulations, and any 
external or internal Storey county policy and procedure that may have a direct impact to 
on the Ddistrict; uses this information to meet the Ddistrict goals and objectives as well 
as to protect the county and Ddistrict against being non-compliant with any one of these 
external agencies laws. 

13.12. Oversees and assures that appropriate training programs are developed, implemented, and 
managed to meet all standards, policies/procedures, standing orders, rules and 
regulations, county and Ddistrict policy, county ordinances, local laws, state laws, and 
federal laws.

Commented [JL1]:  We are currently putting together a 
resolution addressing purchasing and following NRS 332



4

14.13. Develops, implements, and manages progressive training systems and quality assurance 
programs to meet the highest performance levels in accordance with Ddistrict goals, 
objectives, and policies.

15.14. Determines staffing requirements, including the number of required firefighters, 
paramedics, captains, battalion chiefs, division chiefs, and other personnel to assure the 
appropriate levels of response; considers public safety needs and economies in 
determining staffing levels.

16.15. Develops and implements a recruitment program, completing security background 
review, testing procedures for each position, and hiring processes; establishes and 
administers written tests, oral examinations, drug tests, physical examinations, physical 
fitness tests; interviews, and other screening programs.

17.16. Acts as a liaison with other districts, agencies, departments, associations, groups, and 
committees, and the public in developing mutual-aid agreements and other inter-local 
programs that meet the goals, objectives, and policies of the district; maintains automatic-
aid agreements, mutual-aid agreements, quad-county hazardous materials response 
agreements, and all other agreements that benefit the Ddistrict and Storey County.

18.17. Plans, develops, administers, and directs programs pertaining to all-hazard responses 
including, but not limited to, structure, wildland, vehicle, hazardous material, and other 
fire incidents; hazardous material spill incidents; fire prevention and protection systems; 
fire investigations; building construction; potential medical hazards; and other related 
matters.

19.18. Ensures that the Ddistrict knows, understands, and strives to meet and exceed the ISO 
structure and community rating systems; strives to reduce the county’s ISO rating when 
making administrative, operational, and other decisions.

20.19. Oversees the inter-local agreement for:   annual, new construction, and alterations to 
existing structure inspections, reports, and corrective actions in accordance with the 
county code, International Fire Code as adopted by the fFire Bboard (inclusive of any 
amendments), Nevada Revised Statutes, Nevada Administrative Codes, Northern Nevada 
Code Amendments, and the National Fire Protection Association; proper storage and 
retention of fire and building plans, and inspection reports; coordination of inspection 
reports, plans, special use permits, variances, and other correspondence necessary to 
ensure the safe construction, use, and occupancy of commercial and non-commercial 
structures.

21.20. Oversees the inter-local agreement for: Ddistrict’s commercial plan review for fire, 
grading, underground workings, life-safety, suppression systems, alarms, monitoring 
systems, and tenant improvements;improvements, technical guidance and code questions 
from contractors, project managers, developers, engineers, architects, owners, prospective 
private companies before, during, and after the project.



5

22.21. Oversee and ensures that there are sufficient staff, equipment, a medical director, policies 
and procedures, standing orders, protocols, hospital support, communications, training 
and supplies to operate a full servicefull-service advanced life support ambulance and 
engine company, intermediate life support ambulance and engine company and basic life 
support ambulance/engine company; works closely with the base station hospital, 
medical advisory board, department of health (EMS division) medical director, and 
adjoining ambulance series to ensure that citizens and visitors receive the highest level of 
treatment possible; oversees the functions of ambulance billing and quality assurance 
reporting.

23.22. Develops and administers the Ddistrict ambulance subscription program; ensures that 
citizens within the county are given the ability to pay an annual subscription and in turn 
not be responsible for any co-payments to their private health care provider; coordinates 
with other agencies in the region to assure that all possibilities of reciprocal agreements 
are obtained with other non Storeynon-Storey County Fire dDistrict ambulance providers. 

24.23. Identifies, publishes, and directs levels of response to technical rescue efforts including, 
but not limited to, rope rescue, motor vehicle rescue and extrication, water rescue, mine 
rescue, confined space rescue, and hazardous materials rescue; establishes whether or not 
the Ddistrict will respond to the awareness level, operations level, or technical rescue; 
enters into mutual agreements with surrounding jurisdictions to facilitate the identified 
level of response; identifies and manages these agreements as required to fulfill its 
identified level of response. 

25.24. Oversees all emergency planning within the county relative to fire; actively ensures 
District participates participation as a member ofin the Local Emergency Planning 
Committee.

26.25. Ensures that all equipment is well maintained and in a state of readiness at all times; 
ensures that redundant equipment is in place as needed; coordinates the maintenance of 
Ddistrict fleets.

27.26. Purchases, write specifications for, and schedules replacement of apparatus; evaluates 
existing equipment to determine usable lifespan; determines appropriate type of 
equipment needed; estimates cost-to-benefit for new apparatus; maintains five to twenty 
yeartwenty-year equipment replacement plan and presents findings and recommendations 
to the Ffire boardBoard.

28.27. Maintains and oversees public education outreach programs including, but not limited to, 
CPR training, fire awareness and prevention courses, EMS education courses, hazardous 
materials facility information, and all other public education of the district. These courses 
may include, but are not limited to, water safety, car seat programs, baby-sitting clinics, 
school safety training, drug/alcohol awareness, and other such courses. 

29.28. Oversees the inter-local agreement regarding the investigation, inspection, and other 
duties of the fire marshal and fire prevention officers to includeincluding determining 

Commented [JL2]:  Not sure where this came from, but 
we do not engage in baby sitting clinics. 



6

origin and cause; reviewing findings and recommendations of fire prevention and 
investigation; and working with law enforcement to assist in the apprehension of 
individuals suspected of committing crimes associated with violations of fire codes and 
laws.

30.29. Ensures the acquisition, maintenance, and repair of facilities including, but not limited to, 
records of equipment, fire hydrants, self-contained breathing apparatus, hoses, ladders, 
equipment, and other such items.

31.30. Maintains required certifications and licenses; attends and participates in professional 
group sessions; engages in continuous education, training, and other professional 
development; stays abreast on of new trends and innovations related to the field.

32.31. Demonstrates a positive attitude and progressive actions through the display of 
professionalism, courtesy, tact, punctuality, attendance, and discretion in all interactions 
with coworkers, supervisors, and the public; use common sense discretion with limited 
supervision; remain safe, socially moral, lawful, affective, adaptive, and efficient.

QUALIFICATIONS FOR EMPLOYMENT

Knowledge of

1. Operations, services, and activities of a comprehensive fire district including fire
suppression, fire prevention, fire investigation, emergency medical service including
advanced life support services, disaster preparedness, hazardous materials response, and 
associated programs, services, and operations.

2. Fire science theory, principles, and practices and their application to a wide variety of
emergency service operations including fire suppression, fire prevention, and fire
investigation.

3. Policies, procedures, laws, and regulations governing fire control, prevention, and
investigation.

4. Principles and practices of public sector budget preparation and administration in accordance
with applicable laws, policies, and generally accepted principles.

5. Administrative principles and practices including goal setting, program development,
implementation and evaluation, and the management of employees through multiple levels of
supervision.

6. Advanced methods and techniques of emergency medical response.

7. Operational characteristics of fire apparatus and equipment; current safety practices as they
related to equipment and procedures involved in the fire service.

8. Hazardous materials and chemical spill response techniques.

9. Mechanical, chemical, and related characteristics of a wide variety of flammable and
explosive materials and objects.



7

10. Principles of building construction and fire protection systems.

11. Emergency medical care and basic life support techniques.

12. Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) regulations applicable to the
workplace.

13. Applicable laws, codes, and regulations; legal, ethical, and professional rules of conduct
for public-sector employees.

14. Correct English usage including spelling, grammar, punctuation, and vocabulary.
Abilityies to

1. Manage and direct a comprehensive fire program including fire suppression, fire prevention,
fire investigation, emergency medical service, disaster preparedness, hazardous materials
response, and associated programs, services, and operations.

2. Administer specific programs and staff through direct and subordinate supervision, including
developing effective work teams and motivating individuals to meet goals and objectives and
provide effective and efficient service.

3. Read, interpret, and apply laws, regulations, and procedures; define problems, collect data,
establish facts, draw valid conclusions, and provide recommendations based on findings of
fact; interpret, apply, and explain complex federal, state, and local regulations and 
organizational policies.

4. Prepare clear and concise technical reports and correspondence; communicate findings
clearly orally and in writing.

5. Effectively use specialized fire suppression tools and equipment including safety equipment.

6. Use initiative and independent judgment within general policy guidelines.

7. Retain the presence of mind and act quickly and calmly in emergency situations.

8. Effectively administer operations consistent with district policies and goals.

9. Work effectively under pressure for deadlines, conflicting demands, and emergencies.

10. Operate all fire and emergency equipment and apparatus; operate telecommunications
equipment; administer medical care and life support procedures; establish and maintain
effective working relationships.

11. Evaluate narrative and statistical data pertaining to policy, fiscal, and Ddistrict operation
matters; analyze policies, regulations, projects, activities, and methods; implement
administrative policies and work programs consistent with regulations of county policies and
goals.

12. Understand, interpret, and apply laws and regulations; present findings,
recommendations, and policies to individuals and groups in an understandable and persuasive
manner; communicate effectively in writing and orally on matters related to Ddistrict
policies, funding, and operations.



8

13. Effectively use basic modern office equipment including, but not limited to, telephones,
fax machines, and copiers; personal computer programs such as Microsoft Windows and
Office; and other applicable programs and software; type at a rate sufficient to perform
assigned duties.

14. Demonstrate a positive attitude and progressive actions through the display of
professionalism, courtesy, tact, punctuality, attendance, and discretion in all interactions with
coworkers, supervisors, and the public; use common sense discretion with limited
supervision; remain safe, socially moral, lawful, affective, adaptive, and efficient.

15. Continue education and training and remain current on the latest policies and practices
and required certifications.

16. Represent the dDistrict in the court of law and testify on matters pertaining to the
Ddistrict.

17. Pass a criminal history background check.

LICENSING, EDUCATION & OTHER REQUIREMENTS

 Any combination of training, education, and experience that would provide the required
knowledge and abilities. A typical way to gain the required knowledge and ability is:

o High school diploma or equivalent (An Associate’s or Bachelor’s Degree in fire
science, business administration, or public administration, or other closely related
fieldother closely related fields may be preferred); and

o Graduation from an approved EMT or higher training program; and
o At least six (6) years of progressively responsible experience in fire-

fightingfirefighting and emergency medical services, three (3) of which must have
been served as a chief officer such as a Battalion Chief level; and

o At least two five (25) years as a company officer such as line Fire Captain.

 IFSAC or State of Nevada Firefighter I and II, and Company Officer, required.

 IFSAC or State of Nevada Fire Officer II or higher

 IFSAC or State of Nevada Fire Service Instructor II or higher

 Leadership I;  and Leadership II required within 1 year of hire.

 Completion of ICS 100, 200, 300, 400, 700, and 800, is required. Up to two of the required
certifications, except 100 and 200, may be obtained within 6 months of hire.

 Hazardous Materials Incident Commander, required.

 Must possess and maintain a Nevada Driver Driver’s License with F Endorsement or a
Nevada Class A or B Commercial Driver Driver’s License.

 Must demonstrate the ability to instruct emergency services.

 Must be certified as an NFPA Incident Safety Officer; ICT 4 minimum.

Commented [JL3]:  Personally, I think it should be a 
minimum of an Associates Degree.  Thoughts?

Commented [JL4]:  A good candidate should have some 
mastery in operations, and as a captain, that’s where we gain 
the most operational knowledge. 

Commented [JL5]:  This class is required for Fire Officer 
1



9

 Must demonstrate current or past certification as a Nevada Emergency Medical
Technician, and current knowledge of the ALS system.

 Must be a resident of and reside within Storey County.

 Military experience applicable to the duties of this position may be preferred.

 Must pass a criminal background investigation.

PHYSICAL REQUIREMENTS & WORK ENVIRONMENT

The requirements described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee to 
successfully perform the essential functions of the job.

 Physical Requirements. Strength, stamina, and dexterity to sit in a vehicle operating on
rough roads, wildland areas, and off-road terrains; walk on uneven or slippery surfaces;
repeatedly bend, stand, or sit; occasional occasionally lifting of items weighing up to 50
pounds; reach for items above the head and below the feet; climb up and down ladders;
enter confined spaces and other areas; visual acuity for field inspections; strength,
dexterity, coordination, and vision to use keyboard and video display terminal for
prolonged periods; dexterity and coordination to handle files and single pieces of paper;
manual dexterity and cognitive ability to operate a personal computer; ability to
communicate via telephone and other telecommunications equipment. In compliance with
applicable disability laws, reasonable accommodations may be provided for qualified
individuals with a disability who require and request such accommodations. Incumbents
and individuals who have been offered employment are encouraged to discuss potential
accommodations with the employer.

 Working Environment. Work is typically performed under the following conditions:
position functions indoors in an office environment where a portion of work is performed
at a desk and on a computer, and work is performed in outdoor environments with
intermittent to frequent exposure to a variety of extreme weather conditions, including heat,
rain, snow, cold, wind, and dust. Possible exposure to excessive smoke, water, hazardous
materials, and hazardous structure conditions. Work is typically performed independently.
Frequent travel by motor vehicle and use of other motorized equipment. Work will include
periodic contact with angry and upset individuals under stressful situations. Frequent
interruptions to planned work activity by telephone calls, office visitors, and response to
unplanned events.

This job descriptionclass specification lists the major duties and requirements of the job and 
is not all-inclusive.  Incumbent(s) may be expected to perform job-related duties other than 
those contained in this document and may be required to have specific job-related knowledge 
and skills.

Employee Signature: ________________________________ Date: ________________



SCFPD Job Description Fire Chief

Page 10 of 10



1

Storey County Job Description 

County Manager

Class Title: County Manager
Reports to: Board of Storey County Commissioners
FLSA Status: Exempt
Represented Status: Non-Represented
Created: March 2007
Last Revised 02/20/2018

02/04/2020
07/18/2023

1. JOB SUMMARY.

TheUnder administrative direction of the Storey County Board of County Commissioners 
(Board), the incumbent serves as the county manager is the Ccounty’s  Manager (Manager) and 
chief administrative officer. and The Manager reports to the Storey County Board of County 
Commissioners (Bboard).  The Bboard considers and sets policy and the county Mmanager is 
tasked with implementing these policies. 

Without limiting the specific duties and responsibilities that the county manager may be assigned 
by the board, the broad activity areas for measured achievement are:

A. Executive leadership and development of goals for the county
B. Managerial and organizational effectiveness
C. Financial planning and preparation of the budget
D. Human resource development
E. Public service and communication
F. Economic development in the county
G. Emergency management
H. Any job duties listed here or set by the board

2. DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS

:  The Manager is appointed by the Board and reports to and serves at the pleasure of the Board 
in an at-will capacity.  The county mManager is responsible for the leadership, supervision, and 
management of county staff, and management of county resources consistent with the 
administrative and policy direction of the Bboard. An employee in this position is unclassified 
and "at-will," serving at the pleasure of the board.  

3. Evaluation of job performance.The county Mmanager will be given an yearly annual
evaluation by the Bboard on the county Mmanager’s annual anniversary. The Bboard may
evaluate the county manager at other times as deemed appropriate. The Bboard may consider an



2

increase in salary, including a merit increase consistent with the amount given unnon-
representedclassified personnel and a possible performance based bonus.  The HRadministrative 
officer and/or personnel Ddirector (Ddirector) is responsible for placing the review on the 
board’s agenda, providing any required legal notice, and providing material for the agenda 
packet including salary comparisons and any material requested by the Bboard. In accordance 
with Storey County personnel policy, if a performance evaluation is not completed within 30 
days of the employee’s anniversary date it shall be considered a satisfactory performance 
evaluation and the Director personnel director/administrative officer shall authorize a step 
advancement retroactive to the employee’s anniversary date.

EXAMPLES OF ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS

The Manager’s duties are authorized by action of the Board.  The Board may take action to 
include or eliminate duties for the Manager.  The duties listed below are examples of the work 
typically performed by an employee in this position. The performance of these functions is the 
reason the job exists. An employee may not be assigned all duties listed and may be assigned 
duties that are not listed below. 

4. Examples of duties:  The county manager’s duties are authorized by action by the board.  The
duties listed below are examples of the work typically performed by an employee in this position
that are authorized by the board. The board may take action to include or elimminate other duties
for the county manager.

1. Assists the Bboard in the development of overall goals of the county.; p
2. Provides leadership and direction in the development of short- and long-range plans for

achieving overall goals.; w
3. Works with the Bboard and others to develop community and economic development

plans.
4. Plans. Organizes, coordinates, and administers through management staff, all County

operating departments and functions.
5. Encourages and facilitates consistent improvement in the provision of services to their

customers by County staff.
6. Develops, evaluates, and implements administrative policies based on federal and state

law and regulations, and the organizational goals and objectives of the Bboard.
7. Recommends policy changes where appropriate to the Bboard for approval.
8. Informs the Bboard of operational problems.

9. Facilitates team management approach for decision making and; promotes opportunities 
for employee involvement in collaborative and participatory problem solving.; 

10. Sselects, directs, develops, and evaluates management personnel and other staff.; a
11. Administers discipline for inadequate performance or improper behavior.
12. Subject to the limitations of law and Bboard direction; is designated the authorized

representative to be responsible for the development, award and proper administration of
all purchases and contracts made pursuant to the local government purchasing law,
negotiates and supervises county contractual agreements, and after approval of the



3

contract by the Bboard, administers the agreements and if authorized by the Bboard, 
enforces agreements.

13. Oversees the development of the annual county budget in conjunction with the
comptroller for approval by the Bboard; monitors expenditures to ensure compliance with
budgets; accounts for variances between projected and actual expenditures, initiates
remedial action, and reports significant variances to the Bboard.

14. Administers the preparation of Bboard meeting agendas; attends Bboard meetings; makes
oral and written presentations to the Bboard of county commissioners and to other public
and private groups.; p

15. Provides information to the news media and the public regarding County operations.;
16. Rrepresent the County with other government agencies and in meetings with the public.

17. Analyzes proposed legislation and administrative regulations for their impact on County
operations; reviews and makes recommendations to the Bboard regarding legislative
activities; participates in the lobbying process by presenting oral and written testimony to
appropriate bodies.

18. Receives, investigates, and resolves complaints and concerns regarding County programs,
services, employees, and facilities.; a

19. Acts as liaison with cities, counties, regional, state, and federal agencies on a broad range
of matters.

20. Works closely with the County policy bodies such as boards, commissions and
committees, a variety of public and private organizations and citizen groups to develop 
and implement programs and meet goals and objectives.

21. Engages with the Ccounty economic development team, transfer knowledge attracting
and enhancing private enterprise and building public-private relationships.

22. Represents the County with dignity, integrity, and a spirit of cooperation in all
relationships with staff and the public.

23. May respond to call out in emergencies, other than during normal working hours, as
needed.  For example, may respond to and actively participate in all hazard Incident
Command Systems.

QUALIFICATIONS FOR EMPLOYMENT: 

Knowledge and Ability: 

The county manager must have knowledge of: 
Knowledge of

 Ppublic administration and public finance principles, practices, procedures, and 
methods.; o

 Organizational principles and relationships., p
 Administrative principles and practices, including goal setting, program development, 

implementation and evaluation, and the management of employees through multiple 
levels of management.



4

 Functions, authority, responsibilities, and limitations of an elected Board.
 Principles and practices of developing teams, motivating employees, and 

managing in a team environment.
 Principles of strategic planning.;
 Principles and practices of budget development and administration. 
 Applicable legal guidelines and standards effecting county government.
 Social, political, economic, environmental, and related issues influencing local 

government functions and activities.
 Techniques for dealing with a variety of individuals from various socio-economic, ethnic, 

and cultural backgrounds.
 Principles and techniques of making effective oral presentations,
 Nevada public finance laws, regulationsregulations, and practices; c
 Conflict resolution techniques; p
 Principles and practices of supervision and employee development.

The county manager must have the ability to: 
Ability to

 Ssynthesize, interpret, and evaluate large volumes of data., interpret and evaluate; e
 Exercise initiative, ingenuity, independent analysisanalysis, and judgment in solving 

difficult and complex administrative, managerial and technical problems.; u
 Understand, and interpret, apply, and explain complex regulations, laws, codes, 

regulations, and policies.; d
 Demonstrate executive leadership and management skills.; s
 upervise effectively; e Plan, organize, administer, coordinate, review, and evaluate a wide 

variety of county programs and services through executive management staff.
 Develop effective work teams and motivate individuals to meet goals and objectives and 

provide customer services in the most cost effective and efficient manner.
 Establish and maintain effective community relations; m
 Make effective oral and written presentations; a
 Advocate effectively for the benefit of the Ccounty's interest; g
 Gain and maintain the confidence and cooperation of elected and appointed officials and 

the public.
 Demonstrate regular, reliable, and punctual attendance.

5. LICENSING, EDUCATION, AND OTHER REQUIREMENTS.
A county manager must have:

 Any combination of training, education, and experience that would provide the required
knowledge and abilities. A typical way to gain the required knowledge and ability is:

o Bachelor’s Degree or equivalent from an accredited college or university with
coursework in public or business administration, management, accounting,
economics, or a similar field. Other education may be considered based on other
qualifications and experience.



5

o Master’s Degree or higher with such major or significant coursework may be
preferred.

o At least 5 years of increasingly responsible professional experience in
management, human resources, or administrative capacity that includes
experience in supervision and/or personnel management in an open political
environment.

o Professional certifications, such as ICMA Credentialed Manager, applicable to the
position may be preferred.

 Must possess a valid Nevada Class C Driver License.

 Ability to pass a criminal background investigation.

6. Physical demands.

PHYSICAL REQUIREMENTS & WORK ENVIRONMENT

The requirements described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee to 
successfully perform the essential functions of the job.

 Physical Requirements. Strength, dexterity, coordination, and vision to use keyboard and
video display terminal for prolonged periods. Strength and stamina to bend, stoop, sit,
and stand for long periods of time.  Dexterity and coordination to handle files and single
pieces of paper; occasional lifting of files, stacks of paper or reports, references, and
other materials. Some reaching for items above and below desk level.  Some reaching,
bending, squatting, and stooping to access files and records is necessary. The manual
dexterity and cognitive ability to operate a personal computer using word processing and
databases. The ability to communicate via telephone. Light lifting (up to 50 pounds) is
occasionally required. In compliance with applicable disability laws, reasonable
accommodations may be provided for qualified individuals with a disability who require
and request such accommodations. Incumbents and individuals who have been offered
employment are encouraged to discuss potential accommodations with the employer.

 Working Environment. Work is typically performed indoors in an office environment
where a portion of work is performed at a desk and on a computer. Work is typically
performed independently with reporting directly to the board of county commissioners as
appropriate. Position may occasionally be required to travel by motor vehicle to on- and
off-site locations. Environment is generally clean with limited exposure to conditions
such as dust, fumes, noise, or odors. Frequent interruptions to planned work activity by
telephone calls, office visitors, and response to unplanned events.

Employee Signature: ________________________________ Date: ____________________



Board of Storey County Fire Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 7/18/2023 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 5 minutes

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval to authorize the Fire Chief to proceed with the
purchase of a new Type 3 engine with the purchase amount not to exceed $500,000
which was previously budgeted at $468,000.

• Recommended motion: I (Fire Commissioner) move to approve the Fire Chief to
proceed with the purchase of a type 3 engine not to exceed $500,000.

• Prepared by: Jeremy Loncar

Department:     Contact Number: 775-847-0954

• Staff Summary: This vehicle was budgeted for in 2023/2024 budget for an amount of
• $468,000 based upon a quote received at the beginning of the calendar year. Since that

time, we have been notified that the cost of this engine went up significantly from
$468,000 to $497,000. We have diverted additional funds to our capital fund for future
purchases and for increased costs on capital items. This additional amount will not
adversely affect any plans following our capital improvement plan.

• Supporting Materials: See attached

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

   20











Board of Storey County Fire Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 7/18/2023 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 5 minutes

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval to authorize the Fire Chief to up fit a newly
purchased command vehicle previously budgeted for in the fiscal year 2022/2023 budget
year for the approximate amount of $17,000.

• Recommended motion: I (Fire Commissioner) move to approve the Fire Chief to up fit
the new command vehicle for the approximate amount of $17,000.

• Prepared by: Jeremy Loncar

Department:     Contact Number: 775-847-0954

• Staff Summary: This vehicle was budgeted for in 2022/2023 for a total amount of
• $79,000. We were able to purchase the vehicle but not have the up fitting of the

emergency lighting, radios, siren, etc. done to the vehicle. The funds carried over from
2022/2023 to our current fund balance in our Capital Project fund, however, we did not
budget for it in the 2023/2024 budget year. Total cost of the vehicle will not exceed the
previously approved and allotted funds within our capital fund.

• Supporting Materials: See attached

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

   21









Board of Storey County Fire Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 7/18/2023 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 5

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval to authorize the Fire Chief to proceed with
purchasing a tractor and trailer, tree shear, and pickup truck utilizing additional funding
provided to the District from NV Energy for an approximate amount of $425,000.

• Recommended motion: I (Fire Commissioner) move to approve the Fire Chief to
proceed with purchasing a tractor and trailer, tree shear, and pickup truck utilizing
additional funding provided to the District from NV Energy for the approximate amount
of $425,000.

• Prepared by: Jeremy Loncar

Department:     Contact Number: 17758470954

• Staff Summary: These vehicles will add to our current fleet of equipment utilized for
fire suppression and fuels reduction within Storey County.  The tractor and trailer will
replace the old District fleet which has become unreliable and requires extensive
maintenance.  The crew cab pickup will serve as a crew member transport and have the
ability to pull our gooseneck trailer with a skid steer loader.  The tree shear will
dramatically speed up the removal of trees on our projects.  This will have no fiscal
impact on the district and will be reimbursed to the District after the purchase of the
equipment within 30 days.

• Supporting Materials: See attached

• Fiscal Impact: N/A

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

    22



• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



Storey County Board of Fire Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 7/18/2023 Estimate of time required:  5 Minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ]   Regular agenda [X ]   Public hearing required [ ]
_______________________________________________________________________________

1. Title:  Consideration and possible approval to authorize the Fire Chief to proceed with
purchasing a tractor and trailer, tree shear, and pickup truck utilizing additional funding
provided to the District from NV Energy for an approximate amount of $425,000.

2. Recommended motion:  I (Fire Commissioner) move to approve the Fire Chief to proceed
with purchasing a tractor and trailer, tree shear, and pickup truck utilizing additional
funding provided to the District from NV Energy for the approximate amount of $425,000.

3. Prepared by: Jeremy Loncar

Department: Fire Telephone: 847-0954

4. Staff summary:  These vehicles will add to our current fleet of equipment utilized for fire
suppression and fuels reduction within Storey County.  The tractor and trailer will replace
the old District fleet which has become unreliable and requires extensive maintenance.  The
crew cab pickup will serve as a crew member transport and have the ability to pull our
gooseneck trailer with a skid steer loader.  The tree shear will dramatically speed up the
removal of trees on our projects.  This will have no fiscal impact on the district and will be
reimbursed to the District after the purchase of the equipment within 30 days.

5. Supporting materials: See attached

6. Fiscal impact:

a. Funds Available: Yes    Fund:  290 Grants  Comptroller: Yes

7. Legal review required:
__ District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
a. _JL_     Department Head Fire District

Other agency review: County Comptroller
9. Board action:

a. [ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modifications
b. [ ] Denied [ ] Continued

Agenda Item No.      







Storey County Liquor Licensing Board
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 7/18/2023 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 5 mins

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: 2nd reading for OnSale liquor License. Applicant is Demetrio Gonzalez-Trujillo,
Jehovah Es Mi Pastor, 727 USA Pkwy, McCarran, NV  89434.

• Recommended motion: I (Insert name) motion to approve the 2nd reading for OnSale
liquor License. Applicant is Demetrio Gonzalez-Trujillo, Jehovah Es Mi Pastor, 727 USA
Pkwy, McCarran, NV  89434.

• Prepared by: Brandy Gavenda

Department:     Contact Number: 775-847-0959

• Staff Summary: 2nd reading for OnSale liquor License. Applicant is Demetrio
Gonzalez-Trujillo, Jehovah Es Mi Pastor, 727 USA Pkwy, McCarran, NV  89434.

• Supporting Materials: See attached

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

   24





Storey County Board of Highway 
Commissioners

Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 7/18/2023 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 10 min.

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Report of public works department regarding roads and highways in Storey
County.

• Recommended motion: Discussion only

• Prepared by: Jason Wierzbicki

Department:     Contact Number: 7758470958

• Staff Summary: Discussion of roads and projects throughout the County.

• Supporting Materials: See attached

• Fiscal Impact:

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

    26



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 7/18/2023 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 15 min

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Approval of a proposal from Lumos and Associates for engineering design for a
repair to the existing rock wall in the B Street right-of-way that was damaged by the
heavy winter and heavy precipitation this spring in the estimated amount of $26,525.00.
Scope of work to include geotechnical investigation, structural design, construction
documents, and construction administration.  The location of the work is near the
intersection of B Street and Sutton Street.

• Recommended motion: I, [commissioner], move to approve the proposal and authorize
the County Manager to sign an agreement with Lumos and Associates for engineering
design for a repair to the existing rock wall in the B Street right-of-way that was damaged
by the heavy winter and heavy precipitation this spring in the estimated amount of
$26,525.00.

• Prepared by: Mike Northan

Department:     Contact Number: 7753356991

• Staff Summary: This work will produce the design and construction documents for the
project to be put out to bid.

• Supporting Materials: See attached

• Fiscal Impact: $26,525

• Legal review required: TRUE

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification

    28



[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



Carson City • El Dorado Hills • Fallon • Lake Tahoe • Reno  www.LumosInc.com 

L:\Marketing\Proposals\2023 Proposals\LA23.531 - Red Dog Saloon Soil Nail Wall\Overall Proposal; 2023.06.16.docx 

Reno 

950 Sandhill Road, Suite 100 
Reno, Nevada 89521 
775.827.6111 

June 16, 2023 

LA23.531 

Mr. Mike Northan 

Operations and Projects Coordinator 

Storey County 

Box 435 

Virginia City, NV 89440 

RE: RED DOG SALOON, VIRGINIA CITY, NV - ROCKERY WALL REPAIRS 

PROPOSAL FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES  

Dear Mike: 

Lumos & Associates, Inc. (Lumos) is pleased to provide you with this proposal for engineering 
services to assist Storey County with the repairs to the existing rockery wall behind the Red Dog 
Saloon. 

Project Description 

As a direct cause of heavy water runoff, a portion of the rockery wall below B street has collapsed 

sending portions of the wall down the relatively steep slope and into a chain like fence at the back 

of the Red Dog Saloon. From our site visit observations, it is our opinion the existing rockery wall is 

beyond repair and that it needs to be removed and replaced.   However, removing and replacing the 

wall is not practicable, nor does it appear to be safe to do so.  

Internal discussions, as well as discussions with you, have led to a repair/mitigation approach of 

placing a soil nail wall in front of the existing rockery wall to stabilize it.  The extents of the new soil 

nail wall will be determined from our geotechnical analysis. 

Scope of Services 

Geotechnical Engineering Services: 

We understand our scope of work is to determine the soil conditions and provide the soil parameters 
for the existing rockery retaining wall so that an assessment can be made with regard to its stability. 
Additionally, as noted above a soil nail wall is being considered to repair/stabilize the existing rockery 
wall. We will recommend soil parameters for the proposed repair.  For the Geotechnical scope of 
work, we will complete a field investigation that will consist of two (2) subsurface borings at the 
proposed site.  Exploration depths will be from 15 to 25 feet below ground surface, or practical 



June 16, 2023 
Page 2 

refusal, whichever comes first.  Samples will be collected from the surface, and at intervals of 
between 2½ and five (5) feet below ground surface.  Lumos & Associates, Inc. will provide the drilling 
and the USA dig clearance.  

Lumos & Associates, Inc. herein proposes to provide sampling of each exploration, classify the 
encountered soils in accordance with the Unified Soil Classification System (USCS), and conduct 
laboratory testing on the samples collected.  Additionally, we propose to perform engineering 
analyses and calculations and develop a Geotechnical Investigation Report that will discuss the 
geologic setting, seismic considerations, exploration and site condition, field and laboratory test data, 
and our conclusions and recommendations from a Geotechnical perspective.  Our Geotechnical 
Investigation will be prepared by a Registered California Civil Engineer and will specifically include 
the following services: 

Field Investigation will include: 

• USA Dig Clearance
• Location of Exploration Borings
• Logging of all Soil Profiles Based on USCS
• Water Table Measurement, if Encountered

Laboratory analysis may include: 

• Atterberg Limits (ASTM D-4318)
• Grain Size Analysis (including fines content) (ASTM C-136)
• Direct Shear (ASTM D-3080)
• Moisture Content and Unit Density (ASTM D-2937)
• ph/Resistivity/Soluble Sulfates

Report, Recommendations, and Conclusions: 

• Exploration Logs
• Soil Types and Classification
• Laboratory Test Results
• Seismic Considerations
• Geotechnical Discussion
• Shear Strength Parameters of Site Soils
• Coefficient of Friction of Site Soils
• Lateral Earth Pressures (active, passive, and at rest)
• Retaining Wall Recommendations for Soil Nail Wall Repair/Stabilization
• Groundwater Level, if encountered

Please note that our scope of services do not include any soil and/or groundwater contamination 
evaluation at the site. 

For the geotechnical services we can begin work within one (1) to two (2) weeks of Authorization to 
Proceed.  Fieldwork for the drilling will take one (1) day to complete.  Laboratory testing will be 
assigned upon completion of the fieldwork and will take one (1) week to two (2) weeks.  The analysis 
and report preparation are anticipated to take up to one (1) week.  Therefore, we have estimated a 



June 16, 2023 
Page 3 

time frame of approximately four (4) to five (5) weeks – from authorization to proceed work – to 
complete this project.  However, verbal results may be provided, as they become available. 

Structural Engineering Services: 

Lumos will design the soil nail wall structure as described above to meet the requirements of the 
2018 International Building Code along with the current Northern Nevada Amendments to the code. 
In providing these services, the following tasks will be performed: 

1. Based on the site-specific design criteria from Lumos’s geotechnical analysis, we will design
the soil nail bracing wall along with its extents.

2. Upon completion of the design, construction documents consisting of soil nail wall drawings,
along with associated detailing of the wall, will be provided for construction.  We will provide
specification sections pertaining to structural items in the form of sheet notes. The drawings
will be produced using AutoCAD, 2024 version.

3. The drawings and structural design calculations will be sealed by a professional engineer from
Lumos for submittal to the building department.  Any plan review comments that might be
issued by the building department will be addressed.

4. Construction Administration services, if required, will include answers to bidders’ questions
pertaining to the structural drawings and specifications, and we will provide addenda as
necessary. Also included is the review of shop drawings and the review of structural
submittals.  We will also respond to structurally related Requests for Information as generated
by the contractor.

Compensation 

We propose to provide our engineering services on a fixed fee basis. Our fees for the scope of services 
outlined above will be as follows: 

Geotechnical Services: $14,525 
Structural Tasks 1-3, Construction Documents: $10,500 
Structural Task 4, Construction Administration: $1,500 

Should this proposal be acceptable, please execute the attached contract and provisions (same 
version as our current on-call contract with Storey County) and return the same to our office. The 
attached Standard Provisions of Agreement are a part of this proposal. 

The design can be scheduled upon receipt of your authorization.  It is anticipated that the structural 
design will be completed within 2 weeks of receiving the geotechnical design criteria.  

Additional Services  

The following services have not been specifically included in our scope of services.  However, if added 
to our scope, they can be provided on a Time and Expense or other negotiated basis: 

a. Site visits during the construction phase to meet with the contractor and review the work.



June 16, 2023 
Page 4 

We appreciate the opportunity, and we look forward to working with you on this project.  Please feel 

free to contact me should you have any questions regarding this proposal.  

Sincerely, 

LUMOS & ASSOCIATES 

ERIC J. HUTCHENS, P.E. 

Director - Structural Engineering Division  

cc: file 

LfHaim



Page 1 of 5



Page 2 of 5



Page 3 of 5



Page 4 of 5



zero 0.00

Page 5 of 5



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 7/18/2023 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 5 mins

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Request budget line item change from 10x20 storage container to 7x14 covered
mobile trailer, not to exceed line item price of $10,000.

• Recommended motion: I, Commissioner ____ approve the change of budget line item
10x20 storage container to 7x14 covered mobile trailer in an amount not to exceed
$10,000.

• Prepared by: James Deane

Department:     Contact Number: 775-847-1152

• Staff Summary: With ongoing office relocations, storage changes in TRI and parking
lots that are due to be paved a mobile storage trailer makes more sense and has more
utility than a container unit.  The Comptroller has reviewed and approves this budget
change.

• Supporting Materials: See attached

• Fiscal Impact: YES

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

   29



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 7/18/2023 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 15 min.

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Discussion and possible consideration allowing the Sheriff’s Office to purchase up
to five patrol pickup trucks instead of sport-utility vehicles in accordance with the
Equipment Acquisition budget for Sheriff’s Office patrol vehicles, due to supply chain
issues and shortage of patrol vehicles, and other related matters. The amount of budgeted
funds will remain unchanged.

• Recommended motion: I (commissioner) motion to approve the Sheriff’s Office
purchase up to five patrol pickup trucks instead of sport-utility-vehicles in accordance
with the Equipment Acquisition budget for Sheriff’s Office patrol vehicles, due to supply
chain issues and shortage of patrol vehicles, and other related matters. The amount of
budgeted funds will remain unchanged.

• Prepared by: Mike Cullen

Department:     Contact Number: 775.847.0968

• Staff Summary: The Sheriff’s Office has encountered supply chain and state purchasing
program delays in obtaining budgeted patrol vehicles. Pickup trucks are reported by
Public Works to be currently less impacted by these conditions than SUVs. The Sheriff’s
Office indicated that both four-wheel-drive vehicles, when properly outfitted, are capable
of handling patrol demands. The pickups may also be suitable for potential rotation into
the general county fleet as they age, and the vehicle type proposed conforms to the Public
Works Service Division fleet program. There are sufficient funds in the Sheriff’s Office
vehicle budget to fulfill this request, including vehicle outfitting. This request has no
impact on the budgeted funds for FY2024.

• Supporting Materials: See attached

• Fiscal Impact: Same as budgeted FY24.

• Legal review required: TRUE

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

    30



____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued





Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 7/18/2023 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 30 min.

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Discussion and possible consideration re-appointing Assistant Sheriff Eric Kern to
represent Storey County on the Nevada Local Justice Reinvestment Coordinating Council
(NLJRCC) for the 2023-2024 term.

• Recommended motion: I (commissioner) motion to re-appoint Assistant Sheriff Eric
Kern to represent Storey County on the Nevada Local Justice Reinvestment Coordinating
Council (NLJRCC) for the 2023-2024 term.

• Prepared by: Austin Osborne

Department:     Contact Number: 775.847.0968

• Staff Summary: NRS 176.014 requires that an appointment be made by each county
under 100,000 population to serve on the NLJRCC. Assistant Sheriff Kern is currently
serving in this capacity, and he is recommended for another term.

• Supporting Materials: See attached

• Fiscal Impact: None

• Legal review required: TRUE

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

    31





Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 7/18/2023 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 30 min.

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval authorizing the County Manager to sign and
approve an extension of a contract with Linda Ritter Consulting not to exceed $5,000 to
complete the countywide and organizational strategic plan.

• Recommended motion: Based on the recommendation by staff, I [county commissioner]
authorize the County Manager to sign and approve an extension of a contract with Linda
Ritter Consulting not to exceed $5,000 to complete the countywide and organizational
strategic plan.

• Prepared by: Austin Osborne

Department:     Contact Number: 775.847.0968

• Staff Summary: This contract extension will provide time for the next stage in the
strategic planning process, that being engagement with each elected statutory office of
the county, and tying together all departments, statutory offices, and overall plan with the
board-directed mission, vision, and goals.

•
• Building a Storey County strategic plan, complete with a vision and mission statement,

goals and policies, will improve Storey County’s ability to provide effective, efficient,
and fiscally responsible public services to the residents, property owners, businesses, and
other stakeholders throughout the county. The plan will be created through collaboration
with the county’s communities and stakeholders, its departments and associates, and its
strategic partners.

•
• This request conforms to the FY 2024 budget.

• Supporting Materials: See attached

• Fiscal Impact: 5,000

• Legal review required: TRUE

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

   32



____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



Independent Contract - Linda Ritter Consulting  1 of 4 

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT 

This Agreement is entered into the __18___ day of ______July_________, 2023, by and between 

Storey County (“the County”) and Linda Ritter Consulting (“the Contractor”).   

1. Independent Contractor.   Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the County

hereby engages the Contractor as an independent contractor to perform the services set forth herein,

and the Contractor hereby accepts such engagement.

2. Duties, Term, and Compensation.  The Contractor’s duties, compensation and provision for

payment shall be set forth in the proposal provided to the County by the Contractor which is

attached as Exhibit A, which may be amended in writing from time to time, or supplemented with

subsequent estimates for services to be rendered by the Contractor and agreed to by the County, and

which collectively are hereby incorporated by reference. This contract will commence on July 1,

2023, and expire on December 31, 2023.

3. Expenses.  During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall bill and the County shall

reimburse her for all reasonable and approved out-of-pocket expenses which are incurred in

connection with the performance of the duties here under.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, expenses

for the time spent by Consultant in traveling to and from County facilities shall not be reimbursable.

4. Conflicts of Interest.  The Contractor represents that she is free to enter into this Agreement,

and that this engagement does not violate the terms of any agreement between the Contractor and

any third party.  During the term of this agreement, the Contractor shall devote as much of her

productive time, energy and abilities to the performance of her duties hereunder as is necessary to

perform the required duties in a timely and productive manner.  The Contractor is expressly free to

perform services for other parties while performing services for the County.

5. Termination.  The County may terminate this Agreement at any time by 10 working days’

written notice to the Contractor.  In addition, if the Contractor is convicted of any crime or offense,

fails or refuses to comply with the written policies or reasonable directive of the County, is guilty of

serious misconduct in connection with the performance here under, or materially breaches of this

Agreement, the County at any time may terminate the engagement of the Contractor immediately

and without prior written notice to the Contractor.

6. Independent Contractor.  The Agreement shall not render the Contractor an employee of the

County for any purpose.  The Contractor is and will remain an independent contractor in her

relationship to the County.  The County shall not be responsible for withholding taxes with respect

to the Contractor’s compensation here under.  The Contractor shall have no claim against the County

hereunder or otherwise for vacation pay, sick leave, retirement benefits, social security, worker’s

compensation, health or disability benefits, unemployment insurance benefits, or employee benefits

of any kind.



Independent Contract - Linda Ritter Consulting  2 of 4 

7. Insurance.  The Contractor will carry liability insurance relative to any service that she

performs for the County.

8. Choice of Law.  The laws of the state of Nevada shall govern the validity of this Agreement,

the construction of its terms and the interpretation of the rights and duties of the parties hereto.

9. Assignment. The Contractor shall not assign any of her rights under this Agreement, or

delegate the performance of any of her duties hereunder, without the prior written consent of the

County.

10. Notices. Any and all notices, demands, or other communications required or desired to 

be given hereunder by any party shall be in writing and shall be validly given or made to another 

party if personally served, or if deposited in the United States mail as follows: 

Contractor: Linda Ritter 

4250 Hobart Road 

Carson City, NV.  89703 

County: Austin Osborne, County Manager 

Box 176 Virginia City, NV.  89440 

Any party hereto may change its address for purposes of this paragraph by written notice given in the 

manner provided above.  

11. Modification or Amendment. No amendment, change or modification of this Agreement

shall be valid unless in writing signed by the parties hereto.

12. Entire Understanding. This document and any exhibit attached constitute the entire

understanding and agreement of the parties, and any and all prior agreements, understandings, and

representations are hereby terminated and canceled in their entirety and are of no further in force

and effect.

13. Unenforceable Provisions. If any provision of this Agreement, or any portion thereof, is 

held to be invalid and unenforceable, then the remainder of this Agreement shall nevertheless 

remain in full force and effect. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Agreement as of the day and year first 

written above.  The parties hereto agree that facsimile signatures shall be as effective as if originals.   

Storey County Linda Ritter Consulting 

By: ________________________________ By: ________________________________ 

Austin Osborne, County Manager Linda Ritter, Owner 



Independent Contract - Linda Ritter Consulting  3 of 4 

Exhibit “A” 

Scope of Work 

Budget 

Contract Term 

Services: 

I. At the Direction of the County Manager:

A. Complete the County-wide Strategic Plan for Storey County.

1. Develop perspectives / goals /objectives in collaboration with the County Manager for

presentation to the Board of County Commission for possible approval.

2. Link County-wide goals / objectives with goals / objectives included in Department level

strategic plans.

3. Work with the County Manager and Department Directors to define strengths,

weaknesses, opportunities and threats affecting each goal and/or objective.

4. Work with the County Manager and Department Directors to identify tactics and

initiatives in support of goals and objectives.

5. Work with the County Manager to define a business review process that reports progress

on tactics and initiatives and provides data (key performance indicators) related to goal

achievement.

B. Facilitate creation of Department level strategic plans as needed.

Budget: 

The proposed budget is a not to exceed amount of $5,000 to be billed at the hourly rate of $85.  



Independent Contract - Linda Ritter Consulting  4 of 4 



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 7/18/2023 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 30 min.

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval authorizing the County Manager to sign and
approve a contract with Linda Ritter Consulting not to exceed $50,000 at an hourly rate
of $95.00 to update and amend the Storey County administrative policies (non-HR
policies) and procedures, and add new policies and procedures as needed and as assigned
by the County Manager, and in conformance with the County Manager’s Office approved
budget.

• Recommended motion: Based on the recommendation by staff, I [county commissioner]
authorize the County Manager to sign and approve a contract with Linda Ritter
Consulting not to exceed $50,000 at an hourly rate of $95.00 to update and amend the
Storey County administrative policies (non-HR policies) and procedures, and add new
policies and procedures as needed and as assigned by the County Manager, and in
conformance with the County Manager’s Office approved budget.

• Prepared by: Austin Osborne

Department:     Contact Number: 775.847.0968

• Staff Summary: The Storey County general administrative policies and procedures need
updating. The updates are needed for proper alignment with changing technology, state
and federal regulations, and current best practices in each respective field.

•
• Linda Ritter Consulting is qualified and experienced in local government policy

development, and is prepared to engage with the County Manager, elected and appointed
officials, and the board to update and develop policies and procedures that are aligned
with the county’s near-complete strategic plan, statutory requirements, and needs of the
county organization.

•
• County policies to be updated include, but are not limited to, use of facilities and

grounds, tobacco and vaping, communications, use of county vehicles and equipment,
information technology and security, website management, security and surveillance
systems, social media use, records management, public information officer procedures,
government relations, public relations, fiscal management, training and education, and
travel.

•

     33



• County personnel (HR) policies have been recently updated and are generally not part of
the scope of this project. A scope of work is contained in Exhibit A of the enclosed
proposed contract.

•
• This project conforms to the County Manager’s Office FY2024 approved budget.

• Supporting Materials: See attached

• Fiscal Impact: Up to 50,000

• Legal review required: TRUE

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



Independent Contract - Linda Ritter Consulting  1 of 4 

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT 

This Agreement is entered into the __18___ day of _______July__________, 2023, by and between 

Storey County (“the County”) and Linda Ritter Consulting (“the Contractor”).   

1. Independent Contractor.   Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the County

hereby engages the Contractor as an independent contractor to perform the services set forth herein,

and the Contractor hereby accepts such engagement.

2. Duties, Term, and Compensation.  The Contractor’s duties, compensation and provision for

payment thereof shall be set forth in the proposal provided to the County by the Contractor which is

attached as Exhibit A, which may be amended in writing from time to time, or supplemented with

subsequent estimates for services to be rendered by the Contractor and agreed to by the County, and

which collectively are hereby incorporated by reference.  This contract will commence on July 1,

2023, and expire on June 30, 2024.

3. Expenses.  During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall bill and the County shall

reimburse her for all reasonable and approved out-of-pocket expenses which are incurred in

connection with the performance of the duties here under.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, expenses

for the time spent by Consultant in traveling to and from County facilities shall not be reimbursable.

4. Conflicts of Interest.  The Contractor represents that she is free to enter into this Agreement,

and that this engagement does not violate the terms of any agreement between the Contractor and

any third party.  During the term of this agreement, the Contractor shall devote as much of her

productive time, energy and abilities to the performance of her duties hereunder as is necessary to

perform the required duties in a timely and productive manner.  The Contractor is expressly free to

perform services for other parties while performing services for the County.

5. Termination.  The County may terminate this Agreement at any time by 10 working days’

written notice to the Contractor.  In addition, if the Contractor is convicted of any crime or offense,

fails or refuses to comply with the written policies or reasonable directive of the County, is guilty of

serious misconduct in connection with the performance here under, or materially breaches of this

Agreement, the County at any time may terminate the engagement of the Contractor immediately

and without prior written notice to the Contractor.

6. Independent Contractor.  The Agreement shall not render the Contractor an employee of the

County for any purpose.  The Contractor is and will remain an independent contractor in her

relationship to the County.  The County shall not be responsible for withholding taxes with respect

to the Contractor’s compensation here under.  The Contractor shall have no claim against the County

hereunder or otherwise for vacation pay, sick leave, retirement benefits, social security, worker’s

compensation, health or disability benefits, unemployment insurance benefits, or employee benefits

of any kind.

7. Insurance.  The Contractor will carry liability insurance relative to any service that she

performs for the County.



Independent Contract - Linda Ritter Consulting  2 of 4 

8. Choice of Law.  The laws of the state of Nevada shall govern the validity of this Agreement,

the construction of its terms and the interpretation of the rights and duties of the parties hereto.

9. Assignment. The Contractor shall not assign any of her rights under this Agreement, or

delegate the performance of any of her duties hereunder, without the prior written consent of the

County.

10. Notices. Any and all notices, demands, or other communications required or desired to 

be given hereunder by any party shall be in writing and shall be validly given or made to another 

party if personally served, or if deposited in the United States mail as follows: 

Contractor: Linda Ritter 

4250 Hobart Road 

Carson City, NV.  89703 

County: Austin Osborne, County Manager 

Box 176 Virginia City, NV.  89440 

Any party hereto may change its address for purposes of this paragraph by written notice given in the 

manner provided above.  

11. Modification or Amendment. No amendment, change or modification of this Agreement

shall be valid unless in writing signed by the parties hereto.

12. Entire Understanding. This document and any exhibit attached constitute the entire

understanding and agreement of the parties, and any and all prior agreements, understandings, and

representations are hereby terminated and canceled in their entirety and are of no further in force

and effect.

13. Unenforceable Provisions. If any provision of this Agreement, or any portion thereof, is 

held to be invalid and unenforceable, then the remainder of this Agreement shall nevertheless 

remain in full force and effect. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Agreement as of the day and year first 

written above.  The parties hereto agree that facsimile signatures shall be as effective as if originals.   

Storey County Linda Ritter Consulting 

By: ________________________________ By: ________________________________ 

Austin Osborne, County Manager Linda Ritter, Owner 



Independent Contract - Linda Ritter Consulting  3 of 4 

Exhibit “A” 

Scope of Work 

Budget 

Contract Term 

Services: 

I. At the Direction of the County Manager:

A. Create and/ or amend administrative policies for Storey County.

1. Research components of policies assigned.

2. Collaborate with Departments responsible for policy implementation to ensure

Department needs are met.

3. Provide opportunities for review by all County Departments prior to presentation of each

policy to the Board of County Commissioners for possible approval.

B. Provide other consulting services as directed by the County Manager and agreed upon by

Linda Ritter Consulting.

Budget: 

The proposed budget is a not to exceed budget of $50,000 to be billed at the hourly rate of 

$95.  



Independent Contract - Linda Ritter Consulting  4 of 4 



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 7/18/2023 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 30 min.

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Presentation and discussion regarding the 2022-2024 County Manager’s Office
Strategic Plan, and consideration of possible direction as needed in accordance with the
vision, mission, and goals set by the board.

• Recommended motion: I (commissioner) motion to propose the following suggestions
regarding the Storey County Strategic Plan.

• Prepared by: Austin Osborne

Department:     Contact Number: 775.847.0968

• Staff Summary: The Storey County Strategic Plan project is in its final stages. The
board established a vision and mission statement, and broad goals for the county to
follow in developing its community and department plans. Appointed department plans
are complete, and statutory elected offices are now developing their plans. Following a
series of public workshops, draft community plans are near complete and ready for public
review. All elements of the strategic plan will be tied together by the end of 2023 and
brought to the board for possible adoption.

• As the plan nears completion, county offices have been following the draft department
plans, as well as the board-adopted vision and mission, when making budgetary and
operational decisions. The County Manager’s Office Strategic Plan demonstrates set
goals and initiatives for FY2023 and FY2024, and what has been accomplished to meet
those goals and initiatives.

• Supporting Materials: See attached

• Fiscal Impact: None

• Legal review required: TRUE

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

    34



• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 7/18/2023 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 30 min.

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval of letter to the Governor’s Office of
Economic Development supporting the continuation of the Economic Development
Authority of Western Nevada (EDAWN) being one of the county’s two official
Economic Development Authorities.

• Recommended motion: I (commissioner) motion to approve and sign the enclosed letter
to the Governor’s Office of Economic Development supporting the continuation of the
Economic Development Authority of Western Nevada (EDAWN) being one of the
county’s two official Economic Development Authorities.

• Prepared by: Austin Osborne

Department:     Contact Number: 775.847.0968

• Staff Summary: Storey County is currently provided prospective company leads, new
company siting and due diligence services, workforce development, and other economic
development services through its two Nevada Regional Development Authorities,
Northern Nevada Development Authority and Economic Development Authority of
Western Nevada. Both RDAs have official jurisdiction for such services throughout
Storey County.

• Supporting Materials: See attached

• Fiscal Impact: Per contract.

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

     35



[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued





 

Page 1 of 1 
In accordance with Federal law and U.S. Department of Agriculture policy, this institution is prohibited from discriminating on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, age, or disability. 

(Not all prohibited bases apply to all programs.) To file a complaint of discrimination, write USDA, Director, Office of Civil Rights, Room 326-W, Whitten Building, 1400 Independence 

Avenue, SW, Washington, D.C. 20250-9410 or call (202) 720-5964 (voice and TDD). USDA is an equal opportunity provider and employer. This institution is an equal opportunity 

provider." 

STOREY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS’ OFFICE 

Storey County Courthouse   

26 South “B” Street 

P.O. Box 176 Virginia City, Nevada 89440 

Phone: 775.847.0968 - Fax: 775.847.0949 

commissioners@storeycounty.org 

Jay Carmona, Chair 

Clay Mitchell, Vice-Chair 

Lance Gilman, Commissioner 

Austin Osborne, County Manager 

July 18, 2023 

Mr. Tom Burns 

Executive Director 

Nevada Governor’s Office of Economic Development 

808 W. Nye Lane 

Carson City, Nevada 89703 

RE: Storey County RDA Support for Economic Development Authority of Western Nevada 

Dear Mr. Burns: 

Please let this letter confirm that the Board of Storey County Commissioners on July 18, 2023, took action 

to recognize the relationship between Storey County and the Economic Development Authority of Western 

Nevada (EDAWN) as one of the two Regional Development Authorities of Storey County. The Northern 

Nevada Development Authority (NNDA) also serves as one of the county’s RDAs. 

We have worked in partnership with EDAWN to expand careers and improve the quality of life for northern 

Nevada families by recruiting and supporting companies, and otherwise diversifying the region’s economy. 

We appreciated working with Mr. Kazmierski and wish him well in his retirement. We look forward to 

working with the organization’s new President and CEO Taylor Adams and continuing our strong 

relationship with the EDAWN team. 

Thank you for recognizing our continued partnership with EDAWN in economic development. 

Respectfully, 

_________________ ____________________ ___________________ 

Jay Carmona  Clay Mitchell  Lance Gilman 

Commission Chair Commission Vice-Chair Commissioner 

C.c.:  Honorable Governor Lombardo

EDAWN President and CEO Taylor Adams 



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 7/18/2023 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 5 min

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval of the revisions to the County Manager job
description.

• Recommended motion: I (commissioner) move to approve the revisions made to the
County Manager job description.

• Prepared by: Brandie Lopez

Department:     Contact Number: 775-847-0968

• Staff Summary: We have revised the job descriptions for the County Manager and the
Fire Chief. There are no significant content changes, we just made them more consistent
to each other.

• Supporting Materials: See attached

• Fiscal Impact: none

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

    36



1

Storey County Job Description 

County Manager

Class Title: County Manager
Reports to: Board of Storey County Commissioners
FLSA Status: Exempt
Represented Status: Non-Represented
Created: March 2007
Last Revised 02/20/2018

02/04/2020
07/18/2023

1. JOB SUMMARY.

TheUnder administrative direction of the Storey County Board of County Commissioners 
(Board), the incumbent serves as the county manager is the Ccounty’s  Manager (Manager) and 
chief administrative officer. and The Manager reports to the Storey County Board of County 
Commissioners (Bboard).  The Bboard considers and sets policy and the county Mmanager is 
tasked with implementing these policies. 

Without limiting the specific duties and responsibilities that the county manager may be assigned 
by the board, the broad activity areas for measured achievement are:

A. Executive leadership and development of goals for the county
B. Managerial and organizational effectiveness
C. Financial planning and preparation of the budget
D. Human resource development
E. Public service and communication
F. Economic development in the county
G. Emergency management
H. Any job duties listed here or set by the board

2. DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS

:  The Manager is appointed by the Board and reports to and serves at the pleasure of the Board 
in an at-will capacity.  The county mManager is responsible for the leadership, supervision, and 
management of county staff, and management of county resources consistent with the 
administrative and policy direction of the Bboard. An employee in this position is unclassified 
and "at-will," serving at the pleasure of the board.  

3. Evaluation of job performance.The county Mmanager will be given an yearly annual
evaluation by the Bboard on the county Mmanager’s annual anniversary. The Bboard may
evaluate the county manager at other times as deemed appropriate. The Bboard may consider an



2

increase in salary, including a merit increase consistent with the amount given unnon-
representedclassified personnel and a possible performance based bonus.  The HRadministrative 
officer and/or personnel Ddirector (Ddirector) is responsible for placing the review on the 
board’s agenda, providing any required legal notice, and providing material for the agenda 
packet including salary comparisons and any material requested by the Bboard. In accordance 
with Storey County personnel policy, if a performance evaluation is not completed within 30 
days of the employee’s anniversary date it shall be considered a satisfactory performance 
evaluation and the Director personnel director/administrative officer shall authorize a step 
advancement retroactive to the employee’s anniversary date.

EXAMPLES OF ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS

The Manager’s duties are authorized by action of the Board.  The Board may take action to 
include or eliminate duties for the Manager.  The duties listed below are examples of the work 
typically performed by an employee in this position. The performance of these functions is the 
reason the job exists. An employee may not be assigned all duties listed and may be assigned 
duties that are not listed below. 

4. Examples of duties:  The county manager’s duties are authorized by action by the board.  The
duties listed below are examples of the work typically performed by an employee in this position
that are authorized by the board. The board may take action to include or elimminate other duties
for the county manager.

1. Assists the Bboard in the development of overall goals of the county.; p
2. Provides leadership and direction in the development of short- and long-range plans for

achieving overall goals.; w
3. Works with the Bboard and others to develop community and economic development

plans.
4. Plans. Organizes, coordinates, and administers through management staff, all County

operating departments and functions.
5. Encourages and facilitates consistent improvement in the provision of services to their

customers by County staff.
6. Develops, evaluates, and implements administrative policies based on federal and state

law and regulations, and the organizational goals and objectives of the Bboard.
7. Recommends policy changes where appropriate to the Bboard for approval.
8. Informs the Bboard of operational problems.

9. Facilitates team management approach for decision making and; promotes opportunities 
for employee involvement in collaborative and participatory problem solving.; 

10. Sselects, directs, develops, and evaluates management personnel and other staff.; a
11. Administers discipline for inadequate performance or improper behavior.
12. Subject to the limitations of law and Bboard direction; is designated the authorized

representative to be responsible for the development, award and proper administration of
all purchases and contracts made pursuant to the local government purchasing law,
negotiates and supervises county contractual agreements, and after approval of the



3

contract by the Bboard, administers the agreements and if authorized by the Bboard, 
enforces agreements.

13. Oversees the development of the annual county budget in conjunction with the
comptroller for approval by the Bboard; monitors expenditures to ensure compliance with
budgets; accounts for variances between projected and actual expenditures, initiates
remedial action, and reports significant variances to the Bboard.

14. Administers the preparation of Bboard meeting agendas; attends Bboard meetings; makes
oral and written presentations to the Bboard of county commissioners and to other public
and private groups.; p

15. Provides information to the news media and the public regarding County operations.;
16. Rrepresent the County with other government agencies and in meetings with the public.

17. Analyzes proposed legislation and administrative regulations for their impact on County
operations; reviews and makes recommendations to the Bboard regarding legislative
activities; participates in the lobbying process by presenting oral and written testimony to
appropriate bodies.

18. Receives, investigates, and resolves complaints and concerns regarding County programs,
services, employees, and facilities.; a

19. Acts as liaison with cities, counties, regional, state, and federal agencies on a broad range
of matters.

20. Works closely with the County policy bodies such as boards, commissions and
committees, a variety of public and private organizations and citizen groups to develop 
and implement programs and meet goals and objectives.

21. Engages with the Ccounty economic development team, transfer knowledge attracting
and enhancing private enterprise and building public-private relationships.

22. Represents the County with dignity, integrity, and a spirit of cooperation in all
relationships with staff and the public.

23. May respond to call out in emergencies, other than during normal working hours, as
needed.  For example, may respond to and actively participate in all hazard Incident
Command Systems.

QUALIFICATIONS FOR EMPLOYMENT: 

Knowledge and Ability: 

The county manager must have knowledge of: 
Knowledge of

 Ppublic administration and public finance principles, practices, procedures, and 
methods.; o

 Organizational principles and relationships., p
 Administrative principles and practices, including goal setting, program development, 

implementation and evaluation, and the management of employees through multiple 
levels of management.



4

 Functions, authority, responsibilities, and limitations of an elected Board.
 Principles and practices of developing teams, motivating employees, and 

managing in a team environment.
 Principles of strategic planning.;
 Principles and practices of budget development and administration. 
 Applicable legal guidelines and standards effecting county government.
 Social, political, economic, environmental, and related issues influencing local 

government functions and activities.
 Techniques for dealing with a variety of individuals from various socio-economic, ethnic, 

and cultural backgrounds.
 Principles and techniques of making effective oral presentations,
 Nevada public finance laws, regulationsregulations, and practices; c
 Conflict resolution techniques; p
 Principles and practices of supervision and employee development.

The county manager must have the ability to: 
Ability to

 Ssynthesize, interpret, and evaluate large volumes of data., interpret and evaluate; e
 Exercise initiative, ingenuity, independent analysisanalysis, and judgment in solving 

difficult and complex administrative, managerial and technical problems.; u
 Understand, and interpret, apply, and explain complex regulations, laws, codes, 

regulations, and policies.; d
 Demonstrate executive leadership and management skills.; s
 upervise effectively; e Plan, organize, administer, coordinate, review, and evaluate a wide 

variety of county programs and services through executive management staff.
 Develop effective work teams and motivate individuals to meet goals and objectives and 

provide customer services in the most cost effective and efficient manner.
 Establish and maintain effective community relations; m
 Make effective oral and written presentations; a
 Advocate effectively for the benefit of the Ccounty's interest; g
 Gain and maintain the confidence and cooperation of elected and appointed officials and 

the public.
 Demonstrate regular, reliable, and punctual attendance.

5. LICENSING, EDUCATION, AND OTHER REQUIREMENTS.
A county manager must have:

 Any combination of training, education, and experience that would provide the required
knowledge and abilities. A typical way to gain the required knowledge and ability is:

o Bachelor’s Degree or equivalent from an accredited college or university with
coursework in public or business administration, management, accounting,
economics, or a similar field. Other education may be considered based on other
qualifications and experience.



5

o Master’s Degree or higher with such major or significant coursework may be
preferred.

o At least 5 years of increasingly responsible professional experience in
management, human resources, or administrative capacity that includes
experience in supervision and/or personnel management in an open political
environment.

o Professional certifications, such as ICMA Credentialed Manager, applicable to the
position may be preferred.

 Must possess a valid Nevada Class C Driver License.

 Ability to pass a criminal background investigation.

6. Physical demands.

PHYSICAL REQUIREMENTS & WORK ENVIRONMENT

The requirements described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee to 
successfully perform the essential functions of the job.

 Physical Requirements. Strength, dexterity, coordination, and vision to use keyboard and
video display terminal for prolonged periods. Strength and stamina to bend, stoop, sit,
and stand for long periods of time.  Dexterity and coordination to handle files and single
pieces of paper; occasional lifting of files, stacks of paper or reports, references, and
other materials. Some reaching for items above and below desk level.  Some reaching,
bending, squatting, and stooping to access files and records is necessary. The manual
dexterity and cognitive ability to operate a personal computer using word processing and
databases. The ability to communicate via telephone. Light lifting (up to 50 pounds) is
occasionally required. In compliance with applicable disability laws, reasonable
accommodations may be provided for qualified individuals with a disability who require
and request such accommodations. Incumbents and individuals who have been offered
employment are encouraged to discuss potential accommodations with the employer.

 Working Environment. Work is typically performed indoors in an office environment
where a portion of work is performed at a desk and on a computer. Work is typically
performed independently with reporting directly to the board of county commissioners as
appropriate. Position may occasionally be required to travel by motor vehicle to on- and
off-site locations. Environment is generally clean with limited exposure to conditions
such as dust, fumes, noise, or odors. Frequent interruptions to planned work activity by
telephone calls, office visitors, and response to unplanned events.

Employee Signature: ________________________________ Date: ____________________



1

Storey County Fire Protection District Job Description

Fire Chief

Class Title: Fire Chief
Reports to: Storey County Board of Fire Commissioners
FLSA Status: Exempt
Represented Status: Non-Represented
Created: 05/06/08
Last Revised: 12/28/16 

02/04/20
07/18/23

JOB SUMMARY  

Under the administrative direction of the Storey County Board of Fire Commissioners (Ffire 
Bboard), the incumbent serves as the Storey County Fire Protection District (districtDistrict) Fire 
Chief (Cchief) and performs the duties and responsibilities outlined within NRS 474 all-inclusive. 
In addition to those statutory responsibilities, the Cchief shall ensure that the Ddistrict runs as a 
modern and progressive all-risk/hazard response system through the utilization of a combination 
staffing pattern.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS

Theis position Chief is appointed by the Ffire Bboard and reports to and serves at the pleasure of 
the fFire Bboard in an at-will capacity. This position manages all activities of the Ddistrict and is 
accountable for accomplishing Ddistrict goals and objectives and for furthering the goals and 
objectives of the Ffire Bboard within general policy guidelines. 
The Ddistrict, as a combination fFire Ddistrict, is comprised of volunteer, seasonal/intermittent 
wildland, and permanent full-time staff. All-risk responses include all aspects of fire suppression, 
fire prevention, fire investigation, emergency medical service, hazardous materials response, 
technical rescue, motor vehicle accident and rescue, fire pre-planning, mapping, and all other 
response areas. Programs within the all-risk district may include, but are not limited to, public 
education, community CPR, community fire education, first-aid training, and public fire 
prevention. The chief oversees the inter-local agreement for fire investigation, code adoption, and 
enforcement.
The position is also a critical component of furthering the county’s goals and efforts toward 
economic development and vitality.

EVALUATION OF JOB PERFORMANCE



2

The cChief will be given an annual a yearly evaluation by the fFire Bboard on the Cchief’s annual 
anniversary.  The Ffire Bboard may evaluate the Cchief at other times as deemed appropriate.  The 
Ffire Bboard may consider an increase in salary, including a merit increase consistent with the 
amount given to non-representedunclassified personnel, and a possible performance 
basedperformance-based bonus.  The HR Director (Director) administrative officer and/or 
personnel director is responsible for placing the review on the Ffire Bboard’s agenda, providing 
any legal notice, and providing material for the agenda package including salary comparisons and 
any material requested by the fFire Bboard. In accordance with Storey County (district)Districts 
personnel policy, if a performance evaluation is not completed within 30 days of the employee’s 
anniversary date it shall be considered a satisfactory performance evaluation, and the 
administrative officer and/or personnel dDirector shall authorize a step advancement retroactive 
to the employee’s anniversary date.

EXAMPLES OF ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS

The Chief’s duties are authorized by NRS 474 and action of the Fire Board.  The Fire Board may 
take action to include or eliminate duties for the Chief.  The duties listed below are examples of 
the work typically performed by an employee in this position. Performance The performance of 
these functions is the reason the job exists. An employee may not be assigned all duties listed and 
may be assigned duties which that are not listed below. All duties as listed within NRS 474 are 
inherently part of the essential functions of this position.

1. Develops, coordinates, and oversees all standard operating procedures, rules and
regulations, policies and procedures, and general guidelines involved with a modern and
progressive full servicefull-service Ffire Ddistrict; develops and implements goals, objectives,
policies, procedures, and work standards for the district.

2.1. Develops and maintains the Ddistrict budget; estimates costs and budget needs for 
maintenance operations, construction, purchases, and repairs; prepares funding 
justification requests; monitors expenditures for budget conformance; accounts for budget 
expenditures and variances; prepares and presents information in oral and written form to 
the Ffire Bboard; state, county and agency officials; and the public. Special areas of 
concern include planning for and the purchase of appropriate and sufficient equipment 
necessary, including redundant equipment to combat a fire at any given structure, wildland, 
vehicle, or hazardous materials fire and incidents including, but not limited to, fire hose, 
rolling stock, appropriate PPE, nozzles, and everything required by the Insurance Services 
Organization (ISO), local government, and by state and federal mandates. 

3.2. Manages and directs the activities of Ddistrict staff; coordinates, prioritizes, and assigns 
tasks and projects; tracks and reviews work progress and activities; develops effective work 
teams and motivates individuals to meet district goals, objectives, and policies; directs the 
recruitment and selection of staff; undertakes disciplinary action as required; conducts 
performance evaluations; ensures appropriate scheduling of staff to ensure proper 
operational coverage; trains staff and provides for their professional development.



3

4.3. Confers with the Ffire Bboard, advisory boards, and commissions, citizen groups, Storey 
Ccounty manager, departments, and other agencies to formulate policies and plans related 
to the Ddistrict’s functions, community development, facilities, and other areas where 
needed.

5.4. Directs the procurement of professional contract services in accordance with NRS 332 ; 
negotiates professional services contracts; reviews the performance of contract 
professionals; takes and recommends corrective action to the fire board as appropriate.

6.5. Represents the Ddistrict in local, state, and national forums; makes presentations before 
various advisory committees, legislative, regulatory, and community groups; confers with 
departments and agencies regarding departmental or county-wide operational matters; 
facilitates problem resolutions and coordinated policies.

7.6. Directs and develops analytical studies; reviews reports, findings, alternatives, and 
recommendations; directs the maintenance of accurate records and files; prepares and 
directs the preparation of a variety of written correspondence, reports, procedures, and 
other written materials. 

8.7. Drafts changes to laws and ordinanceordinances; lobbies and assists in lobbying efforts at 
the Nevada State Legislature and other bodies, provides supporting testimony as required.  

9.8. Provides advice and consultation to the Ffire Bboard, Storey cCounty manager, other 
departments and other agencies, and contractors in dDistrict program areas and otherwise 
as needed; investigates and resolves complaints and concerns regarding services and 
facilities; acts as liaison with other counties and regional, state, and federal agencies 
regarding Ddistrict facilities and services.

10.9. Prepares requests for proposals and bid requests for a wide variety of projects, equipment, 
and other purchases and expenditures; administers projects and purchase agreements; 
monitors projects and purchases for conformance with specifications; and authorizes 
payments.

11.10. Acts on behalf of the Ddistrict in meetings with developers, general contractors, engineers, 
architects, planners, land surveyors, prospective private companies, local and state entities, 
and companies proposing to build or locate in Storey County; maintains active involvement 
and coordination with the Storey cCounty team attracting, enhancing, and improving 
private enterprise and private-public partnerships in the county; liaises with community 
groups, property and homeowners associations, general improvement districts, and other 
community groups.

12.11. Stays abreast of all local, state, and federal laws, guidelines, trends, regulations, and any 
external or internal Storey county policy and procedure that may have a direct impact to 
on the Ddistrict; uses this information to meet the Ddistrict goals and objectives as well 
as to protect the county and Ddistrict against being non-compliant with any one of these 
external agencies laws. 

13.12. Oversees and assures that appropriate training programs are developed, implemented, and 
managed to meet all standards, policies/procedures, standing orders, rules and 
regulations, county and Ddistrict policy, county ordinances, local laws, state laws, and 
federal laws.

Commented [JL1]:  We are currently putting together a 
resolution addressing purchasing and following NRS 332



4

14.13. Develops, implements, and manages progressive training systems and quality assurance 
programs to meet the highest performance levels in accordance with Ddistrict goals, 
objectives, and policies.

15.14. Determines staffing requirements, including the number of required firefighters, 
paramedics, captains, battalion chiefs, division chiefs, and other personnel to assure the 
appropriate levels of response; considers public safety needs and economies in 
determining staffing levels.

16.15. Develops and implements a recruitment program, completing security background 
review, testing procedures for each position, and hiring processes; establishes and 
administers written tests, oral examinations, drug tests, physical examinations, physical 
fitness tests; interviews, and other screening programs.

17.16. Acts as a liaison with other districts, agencies, departments, associations, groups, and 
committees, and the public in developing mutual-aid agreements and other inter-local 
programs that meet the goals, objectives, and policies of the district; maintains automatic-
aid agreements, mutual-aid agreements, quad-county hazardous materials response 
agreements, and all other agreements that benefit the Ddistrict and Storey County.

18.17. Plans, develops, administers, and directs programs pertaining to all-hazard responses 
including, but not limited to, structure, wildland, vehicle, hazardous material, and other 
fire incidents; hazardous material spill incidents; fire prevention and protection systems; 
fire investigations; building construction; potential medical hazards; and other related 
matters.

19.18. Ensures that the Ddistrict knows, understands, and strives to meet and exceed the ISO 
structure and community rating systems; strives to reduce the county’s ISO rating when 
making administrative, operational, and other decisions.

20.19. Oversees the inter-local agreement for:   annual, new construction, and alterations to 
existing structure inspections, reports, and corrective actions in accordance with the 
county code, International Fire Code as adopted by the fFire Bboard (inclusive of any 
amendments), Nevada Revised Statutes, Nevada Administrative Codes, Northern Nevada 
Code Amendments, and the National Fire Protection Association; proper storage and 
retention of fire and building plans, and inspection reports; coordination of inspection 
reports, plans, special use permits, variances, and other correspondence necessary to 
ensure the safe construction, use, and occupancy of commercial and non-commercial 
structures.

21.20. Oversees the inter-local agreement for: Ddistrict’s commercial plan review for fire, 
grading, underground workings, life-safety, suppression systems, alarms, monitoring 
systems, and tenant improvements;improvements, technical guidance and code questions 
from contractors, project managers, developers, engineers, architects, owners, prospective 
private companies before, during, and after the project.



5

22.21. Oversee and ensures that there are sufficient staff, equipment, a medical director, policies 
and procedures, standing orders, protocols, hospital support, communications, training 
and supplies to operate a full servicefull-service advanced life support ambulance and 
engine company, intermediate life support ambulance and engine company and basic life 
support ambulance/engine company; works closely with the base station hospital, 
medical advisory board, department of health (EMS division) medical director, and 
adjoining ambulance series to ensure that citizens and visitors receive the highest level of 
treatment possible; oversees the functions of ambulance billing and quality assurance 
reporting.

23.22. Develops and administers the Ddistrict ambulance subscription program; ensures that 
citizens within the county are given the ability to pay an annual subscription and in turn 
not be responsible for any co-payments to their private health care provider; coordinates 
with other agencies in the region to assure that all possibilities of reciprocal agreements 
are obtained with other non Storeynon-Storey County Fire dDistrict ambulance providers. 

24.23. Identifies, publishes, and directs levels of response to technical rescue efforts including, 
but not limited to, rope rescue, motor vehicle rescue and extrication, water rescue, mine 
rescue, confined space rescue, and hazardous materials rescue; establishes whether or not 
the Ddistrict will respond to the awareness level, operations level, or technical rescue; 
enters into mutual agreements with surrounding jurisdictions to facilitate the identified 
level of response; identifies and manages these agreements as required to fulfill its 
identified level of response. 

25.24. Oversees all emergency planning within the county relative to fire; actively ensures 
District participates participation as a member ofin the Local Emergency Planning 
Committee.

26.25. Ensures that all equipment is well maintained and in a state of readiness at all times; 
ensures that redundant equipment is in place as needed; coordinates the maintenance of 
Ddistrict fleets.

27.26. Purchases, write specifications for, and schedules replacement of apparatus; evaluates 
existing equipment to determine usable lifespan; determines appropriate type of 
equipment needed; estimates cost-to-benefit for new apparatus; maintains five to twenty 
yeartwenty-year equipment replacement plan and presents findings and recommendations 
to the Ffire boardBoard.

28.27. Maintains and oversees public education outreach programs including, but not limited to, 
CPR training, fire awareness and prevention courses, EMS education courses, hazardous 
materials facility information, and all other public education of the district. These courses 
may include, but are not limited to, water safety, car seat programs, baby-sitting clinics, 
school safety training, drug/alcohol awareness, and other such courses. 

29.28. Oversees the inter-local agreement regarding the investigation, inspection, and other 
duties of the fire marshal and fire prevention officers to includeincluding determining 

Commented [JL2]:  Not sure where this came from, but 
we do not engage in baby sitting clinics. 



6

origin and cause; reviewing findings and recommendations of fire prevention and 
investigation; and working with law enforcement to assist in the apprehension of 
individuals suspected of committing crimes associated with violations of fire codes and 
laws.

30.29. Ensures the acquisition, maintenance, and repair of facilities including, but not limited to, 
records of equipment, fire hydrants, self-contained breathing apparatus, hoses, ladders, 
equipment, and other such items.

31.30. Maintains required certifications and licenses; attends and participates in professional 
group sessions; engages in continuous education, training, and other professional 
development; stays abreast on of new trends and innovations related to the field.

32.31. Demonstrates a positive attitude and progressive actions through the display of 
professionalism, courtesy, tact, punctuality, attendance, and discretion in all interactions 
with coworkers, supervisors, and the public; use common sense discretion with limited 
supervision; remain safe, socially moral, lawful, affective, adaptive, and efficient.

QUALIFICATIONS FOR EMPLOYMENT

Knowledge of

1. Operations, services, and activities of a comprehensive fire district including fire
suppression, fire prevention, fire investigation, emergency medical service including
advanced life support services, disaster preparedness, hazardous materials response, and 
associated programs, services, and operations.

2. Fire science theory, principles, and practices and their application to a wide variety of
emergency service operations including fire suppression, fire prevention, and fire
investigation.

3. Policies, procedures, laws, and regulations governing fire control, prevention, and
investigation.

4. Principles and practices of public sector budget preparation and administration in accordance
with applicable laws, policies, and generally accepted principles.

5. Administrative principles and practices including goal setting, program development,
implementation and evaluation, and the management of employees through multiple levels of
supervision.

6. Advanced methods and techniques of emergency medical response.

7. Operational characteristics of fire apparatus and equipment; current safety practices as they
related to equipment and procedures involved in the fire service.

8. Hazardous materials and chemical spill response techniques.

9. Mechanical, chemical, and related characteristics of a wide variety of flammable and
explosive materials and objects.



7

10. Principles of building construction and fire protection systems.

11. Emergency medical care and basic life support techniques.

12. Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) regulations applicable to the
workplace.

13. Applicable laws, codes, and regulations; legal, ethical, and professional rules of conduct
for public-sector employees.

14. Correct English usage including spelling, grammar, punctuation, and vocabulary.
Abilityies to

1. Manage and direct a comprehensive fire program including fire suppression, fire prevention,
fire investigation, emergency medical service, disaster preparedness, hazardous materials
response, and associated programs, services, and operations.

2. Administer specific programs and staff through direct and subordinate supervision, including
developing effective work teams and motivating individuals to meet goals and objectives and
provide effective and efficient service.

3. Read, interpret, and apply laws, regulations, and procedures; define problems, collect data,
establish facts, draw valid conclusions, and provide recommendations based on findings of
fact; interpret, apply, and explain complex federal, state, and local regulations and 
organizational policies.

4. Prepare clear and concise technical reports and correspondence; communicate findings
clearly orally and in writing.

5. Effectively use specialized fire suppression tools and equipment including safety equipment.

6. Use initiative and independent judgment within general policy guidelines.

7. Retain the presence of mind and act quickly and calmly in emergency situations.

8. Effectively administer operations consistent with district policies and goals.

9. Work effectively under pressure for deadlines, conflicting demands, and emergencies.

10. Operate all fire and emergency equipment and apparatus; operate telecommunications
equipment; administer medical care and life support procedures; establish and maintain
effective working relationships.

11. Evaluate narrative and statistical data pertaining to policy, fiscal, and Ddistrict operation
matters; analyze policies, regulations, projects, activities, and methods; implement
administrative policies and work programs consistent with regulations of county policies and
goals.

12. Understand, interpret, and apply laws and regulations; present findings,
recommendations, and policies to individuals and groups in an understandable and persuasive
manner; communicate effectively in writing and orally on matters related to Ddistrict
policies, funding, and operations.



8

13. Effectively use basic modern office equipment including, but not limited to, telephones,
fax machines, and copiers; personal computer programs such as Microsoft Windows and
Office; and other applicable programs and software; type at a rate sufficient to perform
assigned duties.

14. Demonstrate a positive attitude and progressive actions through the display of
professionalism, courtesy, tact, punctuality, attendance, and discretion in all interactions with
coworkers, supervisors, and the public; use common sense discretion with limited
supervision; remain safe, socially moral, lawful, affective, adaptive, and efficient.

15. Continue education and training and remain current on the latest policies and practices
and required certifications.

16. Represent the dDistrict in the court of law and testify on matters pertaining to the
Ddistrict.

17. Pass a criminal history background check.

LICENSING, EDUCATION & OTHER REQUIREMENTS

 Any combination of training, education, and experience that would provide the required
knowledge and abilities. A typical way to gain the required knowledge and ability is:

o High school diploma or equivalent (An Associate’s or Bachelor’s Degree in fire
science, business administration, or public administration, or other closely related
fieldother closely related fields may be preferred); and

o Graduation from an approved EMT or higher training program; and
o At least six (6) years of progressively responsible experience in fire-

fightingfirefighting and emergency medical services, three (3) of which must have
been served as a chief officer such as a Battalion Chief level; and

o At least two five (25) years as a company officer such as line Fire Captain.

 IFSAC or State of Nevada Firefighter I and II, and Company Officer, required.

 IFSAC or State of Nevada Fire Officer II or higher

 IFSAC or State of Nevada Fire Service Instructor II or higher

 Leadership I;  and Leadership II required within 1 year of hire.

 Completion of ICS 100, 200, 300, 400, 700, and 800, is required. Up to two of the required
certifications, except 100 and 200, may be obtained within 6 months of hire.

 Hazardous Materials Incident Commander, required.

 Must possess and maintain a Nevada Driver Driver’s License with F Endorsement or a
Nevada Class A or B Commercial Driver Driver’s License.

 Must demonstrate the ability to instruct emergency services.

 Must be certified as an NFPA Incident Safety Officer; ICT 4 minimum.

Commented [JL3]:  Personally, I think it should be a 
minimum of an Associates Degree.  Thoughts?

Commented [JL4]:  A good candidate should have some 
mastery in operations, and as a captain, that’s where we gain 
the most operational knowledge. 

Commented [JL5]:  This class is required for Fire Officer 
1



9

 Must demonstrate current or past certification as a Nevada Emergency Medical
Technician, and current knowledge of the ALS system.

 Must be a resident of and reside within Storey County.

 Military experience applicable to the duties of this position may be preferred.

 Must pass a criminal background investigation.

PHYSICAL REQUIREMENTS & WORK ENVIRONMENT

The requirements described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee to 
successfully perform the essential functions of the job.

 Physical Requirements. Strength, stamina, and dexterity to sit in a vehicle operating on
rough roads, wildland areas, and off-road terrains; walk on uneven or slippery surfaces;
repeatedly bend, stand, or sit; occasional occasionally lifting of items weighing up to 50
pounds; reach for items above the head and below the feet; climb up and down ladders;
enter confined spaces and other areas; visual acuity for field inspections; strength,
dexterity, coordination, and vision to use keyboard and video display terminal for
prolonged periods; dexterity and coordination to handle files and single pieces of paper;
manual dexterity and cognitive ability to operate a personal computer; ability to
communicate via telephone and other telecommunications equipment. In compliance with
applicable disability laws, reasonable accommodations may be provided for qualified
individuals with a disability who require and request such accommodations. Incumbents
and individuals who have been offered employment are encouraged to discuss potential
accommodations with the employer.

 Working Environment. Work is typically performed under the following conditions:
position functions indoors in an office environment where a portion of work is performed
at a desk and on a computer, and work is performed in outdoor environments with
intermittent to frequent exposure to a variety of extreme weather conditions, including heat,
rain, snow, cold, wind, and dust. Possible exposure to excessive smoke, water, hazardous
materials, and hazardous structure conditions. Work is typically performed independently.
Frequent travel by motor vehicle and use of other motorized equipment. Work will include
periodic contact with angry and upset individuals under stressful situations. Frequent
interruptions to planned work activity by telephone calls, office visitors, and response to
unplanned events.

This job descriptionclass specification lists the major duties and requirements of the job and 
is not all-inclusive.  Incumbent(s) may be expected to perform job-related duties other than 
those contained in this document and may be required to have specific job-related knowledge 
and skills.

Employee Signature: ________________________________ Date: ________________



SCFPD Job Description Fire Chief

Page 10 of 10



Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 7/18/2023 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 30 mins

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: Consideration and possible approval of the annual review and evaluation of the
performance of Austin Osborne, County Manager for the time period of July 1, 2022
through June 30, 2023. The Board may, without further notice, take administrative action
against Austin Osborne, County Manager, if the Board determines that such
administrative action is warranted after considering the character, alleged misconduct,
professional competence, or physical or mental health of Mr. Osborne. At the end of the
annual performance evaluation, the Board has the right to make changes to the existing
goals and objectives of the position, the right to determine whether or not to provide a
merit increase, bonus, or other compensation adjustment, the right to take adverse
administrative action up to and including termination, or any other such action deemed
warranted by the Board.

• Recommended motion: Take action as the Board deems appropriate.

• Prepared by: Brandie Lopez

Department:     Contact Number: 775-847-0968

• Staff Summary: In the Board’s deliberations, the character, competence, and
performance of the County Manager may be discussed and the Board may consider the
job description, job duties, and other matters connected to this agenda item. The County
Manager may be present at the meeting and may present evidence relating to his
character, alleged misconduct, professional competence, or physical or mental health.
The County Manager may also provide a self-evaluation.  At the end of the annual
performance evaluation, the Board may modify existing goals and objectives of the
County Manager’s job; determine whether or not to provide a merit increase, bonus, or
other compensation adjustment; take adverse administrative action up to and including
termination; or any other such action deemed warranted by the Board.

• Supporting Materials: See attached

• Fiscal Impact: Unknown

• Legal review required: False

    37



• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



Storey County Manager Annual Evaluation 
Evaluation Period: 7-1-2022 to 6-30-2023

Page 1 of 10

Storey County Manager’s Self-Evaluation
July 18, 2023

A. County Manager job description essential function elements:
 Develops goals and objectives
 Motivates staff
 Fosters team management
 Administrates policies
 Advises appropriate policies
 Administers contracts
 Evaluates staff
 Administers the budget
 Promotes economic development

 Resolves issues and complaints
 Assist the board
 Fosters team management
 Oversees the budget
 Serves as a public information officer
 Investigates
 Legislative representative
 Lobbyist
 Responds to emergencies

B. Primary elements of the County Manager’s duties being evaluated in accordance
with job description:

 Leadership
 Organizational Management
 Financial Management
 Human Resources Development
 Public Service

 Economic Development
 Personal Character
 Emergency Management
 Code of Ethics ICMA

C. Rating scale for each evaluation element. For each category, check which most
closely applies. This self-evaluation will be considered by the board during its
evaluation.

 Distinguished: The County Manager is so successful at this job criterion that
special note should be made. This performance rank is in the top 10 percent.

 Excellent: Performance at this level is one of better performance in the
organization, given the common standards and results. This is better than average
performance.

 Satisfactory: Performance is at or above minimum standards. This level of
performance is what one would expect from the most experience and competent
manager.

 Needs Improvement: Performance is somewhat below what would be expected
of an experienced and competent manager. However, there appears to be potential
to improve the rating within a reasonable timeframe.

 Unsatisfactory: Performance is well below standards and there is serious
question as to whether the person can improve to meet the minimum standard.

1. Leadership
a. Motivates and encourages teamwork, innovation, and problem-solving
b. Instills confidence and promotes initiative through support and encouragement
c. Delegates authority appropriately



Storey County Manager Annual Evaluation 
Evaluation Period: 7-1-2022 to 6-30-2023

Page 2 of 10

d. Affective advocate of county programs
e. Communicates clearly with board, staff, and departments
f. Leads in accordance with policies and board directives
g. Leads according to strategic goals, objectives, and policies
h. Positive relationship with board
i. Positive relationship with staff, departments, and elected offices
j. Represents board’s interest in local and regional issues and projects
k. Positive relationship with residents, businesses, and public
l. Takes ownership of error
m. Builds inter-local relations (local, state, federal)

____Distinguished
____Excellent
____Satisfactory
____Needs Improvement
____Unsatisfactory

Comments:

New or additional goals for the future:

2. Organizational Management
a. Implements and enforces board directives
b. Follows organization policies and programs



Storey County Manager Annual Evaluation 
Evaluation Period: 7-1-2022 to 6-30-2023

Page 3 of 10

c. Responds timely to board requests
d. Reports are accurate, comprehensive, concise, and persuasive
e. Effective Public Information Officer (PIO)
f. Understands, supports, and enforces policies
g. Reviews policies and recommends improvements
h. Efficient and effective
i. Detail oriented and avoids errors
j. Resolves problems
k. Delivers product

____Distinguished
____Excellent
____Satisfactory
____Needs Improvement
____Unsatisfactory

Comments:

New or additional goals for the future:

3. Financial Management
a. Directs preparation of balanced budget
b. Provides service at levels consistent with board policies and directives
c. Keeps board apprised of major financial issues



Storey County Manager Annual Evaluation 
Evaluation Period: 7-1-2022 to 6-30-2023

Page 4 of 10

d. Monitors budget expenditures to ensure funds are spent correctly
e. Evaluates programs and services and makes appropriate adjustments
f. Meets board policies, guidelines, and directives
g. Exhibits responsible and appropriate expenditures
h. Uses labor and resources efficiently
i. Exhibits financial competency
j. Anticipates and plans for future financial needs
k. Utilizes federal and state grant and funding opportunities

____Distinguished
____Excellent
____Satisfactory
____Needs Improvement
____Unsatisfactory

Comments:

New or additional goals for the future:

4. Human Resources Development
a. Ensures personnel policies conform to law
b. Carries out personnel policies
c. Professional manages the compensation and benefits plan



Storey County Manager Annual Evaluation 
Evaluation Period: 7-1-2022 to 6-30-2023

Page 5 of 10

d. Promotes training and professional development
e. Maintains staffing according to organizational needs and budget limits
f. Retains and recruits competent personnel
g. Treats all employees fairly and equitably
h. Promptly addresses disciplinary problems
i. Takes appropriate corrective action
j. Monitors and evaluates performance
k. Evaluates and coaches consistently and fairly

____Distinguished
____Excellent
____Satisfactory
____Needs Improvement
____Unsatisfactory

Comments:

New or additional goals for the future:

5. Public Service
a. Positive impression by citizens
b. Visible, approachable,  accessible, and responsive
c. Displays diplomacy when responding to others



Storey County Manager Annual Evaluation 
Evaluation Period: 7-1-2022 to 6-30-2023

Page 6 of 10

d. Displays positive public image of the county
e. Outgoing to meet with citizens and communities
f. Communicates with citizens
g. Citizen and customer oriented
h. Responds timely to citizen complaints

____Distinguished
____Excellent
____Satisfactory
____Needs Improvement
____Unsatisfactory

Comments:

New or additional goals for the future:

6. Economic Development
a. Builds private-public partnerships
b. Fosters inter-jurisdictional cooperation



Storey County Manager Annual Evaluation 
Evaluation Period: 7-1-2022 to 6-30-2023

Page 7 of 10

c. Responds quickly to stakeholder needs
d. Adapts to changing economic environment
e. Knows county assets, strengths, weaknesses, and opportunities
f. Builds positive image of county based on facts
g. Demonstrates consistency and integrity

____Distinguished
____Excellent
____Satisfactory
____Needs Improvement
____Unsatisfactory

Comments:

New or additional goals for the future:

7. Personal Character
a. Shows originality in approaching problems



Storey County Manager Annual Evaluation 
Evaluation Period: 7-1-2022 to 6-30-2023

Page 8 of 10

b. Takes rational, impersonal, and unbiased approach based on facts and qualified
opinions

c. Energetic and willing to spend time to do exceptional work
d. Reaches quality decisions in timely fashion
e. Honest and forthcoming in professional capacities
f. Reputation in community for honesty and integrity
g. Accepts constructive criticism and takes ownership for mistakes

____Distinguished
____Excellent
____Satisfactory
____Needs Improvement
____Unsatisfactory

Comments:

New or additional goals for the future:

8. Emergency Management
a. Leads and manages effectively during crises
b. Inter-jurisdictional cooperation



Storey County Manager Annual Evaluation 
Evaluation Period: 7-1-2022 to 6-30-2023

Page 9 of 10

c. Supports emergency management planning
d. Maintains conformance with emergency management requirements

____Distinguished
____Excellent
____Satisfactory
____Needs Improvement
____Unsatisfactory

Comments:

New or additional goals for the future:

9. ICMA Code of Ethics: The County Manager has exhibited excellent conformance with
the Code of Ethics of the International County Manager’s Association ICMA



Storey County Manager Annual Evaluation 
Evaluation Period: 7-1-2022 to 6-30-2023

Page 10 of 10

____ Conformed to the ICMA Code of Ethics

____ Did not conform to one or more of the ICMA Code of Ethics (Circle which of the 
tenant(s) above with which conformance did not occur.)

ICMA Code of Ethics

Tenet 1 – Be dedicated to the concepts of effective and democratic local government by 
responsible elected officials and believe that professional general management is essential to the 
achievement of this objective.
Tenet 2 – Affirm the dignity and worth of the services rendered by government and maintain a 
constructive, creative, and practical attitude toward local government affairs and a deep sense of 
social responsibility as a trusted public servant
Tenet 3 – Demonstrate by word and action the highest standards of ethical conduct and integrity 
in all public, professional, and personal relationships in order that the member may merit the 
trust and respect of the elected and appointed officials, employees, and the public.
Tenet 4 – Recognize that the chief function of local government at all times is to serve the best 
interests of all people.
Tenet 5 – Submit policy proposals to elected officials; provide them with facts and advice on 
matters of policy as a basis for making decisions and setting community goals; and uphold and 
implement local government policies adopted by elected officials.
Tenet 6 – Recognize that elected representatives of the people are entitled to the credit for the 
establishment of local government policies; responsibility for policy execution rests with the 
members.
Tenet 7 – Refrain from all political activities which undermine public confidence in professional 
administrators.  Refrain from participation in the election of the members of the employing 
legislative body.
Tenet 8 – Make it a duty continually to improve the member's professional ability and to 
develop the competence of associates in the use of management techniques.
Tenet 9 – Keep the community informed on local government affairs; encourage communication 
between the citizens and all local government officers; emphasize friendly and courteous service 
to the public; and seek to improve the quality and image of public service.
Tenet 10 – Resist any encroachment on professional responsibilities, believing the member 
should be free to carry out official policies without interference, and handle each problem 
without discrimination on the basis of principle and justice.
Tenet 11 – Handle all matters of personnel on the basis of merit so that fairness and impartiality 
govern a member's decisions, pertaining to appointments, pay adjustments, promotions, and 
discipline.
Tenet 12 – Public office is a public trust. A member shall not leverage his or her position for 
personal gain or benefit.



Page 1 of 10

County Commissioner’s
Annual Evaluation of the
Storey County Manager

Date of Evaluation:  July 18, 2023

County Manager Being Evaluated:   Austin Osborne

Evaluator:

Evaluation Period: 7-1-2022 to 6-30-23

A. County Manager job description essential function elements:
 Develops goals and objectives
 Motivates staff
 Fosters team management
 Administrates policies
 Advises appropriate policies
 Administers contracts
 Evaluates staff
 Administers the budget
 Promotes economic development

 Resolves issues and complaints
 Assist the board
 Fosters team management
 Oversees the budget
 Serves as a public information officer
 Investigates
 Legislative representative
 Lobbyist
 Responds to emergencies

B. Primary elements of the County Manager’s duties being evaluated in accordance
with job description:

 Leadership
 Organizational Management
 Financial Management
 Human Resources Development
 Public Service

 Economic Development
 Personal Character
 Emergency Management
 Code of Ethics ICMA

C. Rating scale for each evaluation element. For each category, check which most
closely applies. The commissioners should discuss each element collaboratively and
individually decide what rating to assign for that element. The commissioners should also
review and consider the ratings in the County Manager’s self-evaluation.

 Distinguished: The County Manager is so successful at this job criterion that
special note should be made. This performance rank is in the top 10 percent.

 Excellent: Performance at this level is one of better performance in the
organization, given the common standards and results. This is better than average
performance.

 Satisfactory: Performance is at or above minimum standards. This level of
performance is what one would expect from the most experience and competent
manager.

 Needs Improvement: Performance is somewhat below what would be expected
of an experienced and competent manager. However, there appears to be potential
to improve the rating within a reasonable timeframe.

 Unsatisfactory: Performance is well below standards and there is serious
question as to whether the person can improve to meet the minimum standard.



Page 2 of 10

1. Leadership
a. Motivates and encourages teamwork, innovation, and problem-solving
b. Instills confidence and promotes initiative through support and encouragement
c. Delegates authority appropriately
d. Affective advocate of county programs
e. Communicates clearly with board, staff, and departments
f. Leads in accordance with policies and board directives
g. Leads according to strategic goals, objectives, and policies
h. Positive relationship with board
i. Positive relationship with staff, departments, and elected offices
j. Represents board’s interest in local and regional issues and projects
k. Positive relationship with residents, businesses, and public
l. Takes ownership of error
m. Builds inter-local relations (local, state, federal)

____Distinguished
____Excellent
____Satisfactory
____Needs Improvement
____Unsatisfactory

Comments:

New or additional goals for the future:



Page 3 of 10

2. Organizational Management
a. Implements and enforces board directives
b. Follows organization policies and programs
c. Responds timely to board requests
d. Reports are accurate, comprehensive, concise, and persuasive
e. Effective Public Information Officer (PIO)
f. Understands, supports, and enforces policies
g. Reviews policies and recommends improvements
h. Efficient and effective
i. Detail oriented and avoids errors
j. Resolves problems
k. Delivers product

____Distinguished
____Excellent
____Satisfactory
____Needs Improvement
____Unsatisfactory

Comments:

New or additional goals for the future:



Page 4 of 10

3. Financial Management
a. Directs preparation of balanced budget
b. Provides service at levels consistent with board policies and directives
c. Keeps board apprised of major financial issues
d. Monitors budget expenditures to ensure funds are spent correctly
e. Evaluates programs and services and makes appropriate adjustments
f. Meets board policies, guidelines, and directives
g. Exhibits responsible and appropriate expenditures
h. Uses labor and resources efficiently
i. Exhibits financial competency
j. Anticipates and plans for future financial needs
k. Utilizes federal and state grant and funding opportunities

____Distinguished
____Excellent
____Satisfactory
____Needs Improvement
____Unsatisfactory

Comments:

New or additional goals for the future:



Page 5 of 10

4. Human Resources Development
a. Ensures personnel policies conform to law
b. Carries out personnel policies
c. Professional manages the compensation and benefits plan
d. Promotes training and professional development
e. Maintains staffing according to organizational needs and budget limits
f. Retains and recruits competent personnel
g. Treats all employees fairly and equitably
h. Promptly addresses disciplinary problems
i. Takes appropriate corrective action
j. Monitors and evaluates performance
k. Evaluates and coaches consistently and fairly

____Distinguished
____Excellent
____Satisfactory
____Needs Improvement
____Unsatisfactory

Comments:

New or additional goals for the future:



Page 6 of 10

5. Public Service
a. Positive impression by citizens
b. Visible, approachable,  accessible, and responsive
c. Displays diplomacy when responding to others
d. Displays positive public image of the county
e. Outgoing to meet with citizens and communities
f. Communicates with citizens
g. Citizen and customer oriented
h. Responds timely to citizen complaints

____Distinguished
____Excellent
____Satisfactory
____Needs Improvement
____Unsatisfactory

Comments:

New or additional goals for the future:



Page 7 of 10

6. Economic Development
a. Builds private-public partnerships
b. Fosters inter-jurisdictional cooperation
c. Responds quickly to stakeholder needs
d. Adapts to changing economic environment
e. Knows county assets, strengths, weaknesses, and opportunities
f. Builds positive image of county based on facts
g. Demonstrates consistency and integrity

____Distinguished
____Excellent
____Satisfactory
____Needs Improvement
____Unsatisfactory

Comments:

 New or additional goals for the future:



Page 8 of 10

7. Personal Character
a. Shows originality in approaching problems
b. Takes rational, impersonal, and unbiased approach based on facts and qualified

opinions
c. Energetic and willing to spend time to do exceptional work
d. Reaches quality decisions in timely fashion
e. Honest and forthcoming in professional capacities
f. Reputation in community for honesty and integrity
g. Accepts constructive criticism and takes ownership for mistakes

____Distinguished
____Excellent
____Satisfactory
____Needs Improvement
____Unsatisfactory

Comments:

New or additional goals for the future:



Page 9 of 10

8. Emergency Management
a. Leads and manages effectively during crises
b. Inter-jurisdictional cooperation
c. Supports emergency management planning
d. Maintains conformance with emergency management requirements

____Distinguished
____Excellent
____Satisfactory
____Needs Improvement
____Unsatisfactory

Comments:

New or additional goals for the future:



Page 10 of 10

9. ICMA Code of Ethics: The County Manager has exhibited excellent conformance with
the Code of Ethics of the International County Manager’s Association ICMA

____ Conformed to the ICMA Code of Ethics

____ Did not conform to one or more of the ICMA Code of Ethics (Circle which of the
tenant(s) above with which conformance did not occur.)

ICMA Code of Ethics

Tenet 1 – Be dedicated to the concepts of effective and democratic local government by 
responsible elected officials and believe that professional general management is essential to the 
achievement of this objective.
Tenet 2 – Affirm the dignity and worth of the services rendered by government and maintain a 
constructive, creative, and practical attitude toward local government affairs and a deep sense of 
social responsibility as a trusted public servant
Tenet 3 – Demonstrate by word and action the highest standards of ethical conduct and integrity 
in all public, professional, and personal relationships in order that the member may merit the 
trust and respect of the elected and appointed officials, employees, and the public.
Tenet 4 – Recognize that the chief function of local government at all times is to serve the best 
interests of all people.
Tenet 5 – Submit policy proposals to elected officials; provide them with facts and advice on 
matters of policy as a basis for making decisions and setting community goals; and uphold and 
implement local government policies adopted by elected officials.
Tenet 6 – Recognize that elected representatives of the people are entitled to the credit for the 
establishment of local government policies; responsibility for policy execution rests with the 
members.
Tenet 7 – Refrain from all political activities which undermine public confidence in professional 
administrators.  Refrain from participation in the election of the members of the employing 
legislative body.
Tenet 8 – Make it a duty continually to improve the member's professional ability and to 
develop the competence of associates in the use of management techniques.
Tenet 9 – Keep the community informed on local government affairs; encourage communication 
between the citizens and all local government officers; emphasize friendly and courteous service 
to the public; and seek to improve the quality and image of public service.
Tenet 10 – Resist any encroachment on professional responsibilities, believing the member 
should be free to carry out official policies without interference, and handle each problem 
without discrimination on the basis of principle and justice.
Tenet 11 – Handle all matters of personnel on the basis of merit so that fairness and impartiality 
govern a member's decisions, pertaining to appointments, pay adjustments, promotions, and 
discipline.
Tenet 12 – Public office is a public trust. A member shall not leverage his or her position for 
personal gain or benefit.



RESOLUTION NO.  23-693

A RESOLUTION SETTING SALARIES OF EMPLOYEES FIXED 
BY ORDINANCE OR RESOLUTION PER NRS 245.045 FOR 
APPOINTED OFFICIALS.  

BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE STOREY COUNTY 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, STOREY COUNTY, 
NEVADA:

WHEREAS, for the purposes of NRS 245.045, the Storey County Board of County 
Commissioners has authority to establish the salaries of all appointed and non-
represented County employees by the enactment of a resolution.

WHEREAS, the salaries of all appointed officials and non-represented county 
employees, except certain Sheriff’s Office employees set by collective 
bargaining agreement, are consistently to be derived from a similar step and 
grade range salary system shown in the General Salary Schedule (Attachment 
A) for appointed officials and non-represented employees of the county.

WHEREAS, the General Salary Schedule step and grade ranges (Attachment A) 
will be consistent with the AFSCME general employees salary schedule and will be 
adjusted accordingly on a year-by-year basis to account for cost-of-living and to 
maintain consistency in the county’s classification plan.

WHEREAS, the salary grade range of appointed officials and non-represented 
employees shall be as follows for the 2023-24 fiscal period:

Position Salary Grade
Administrative Assistant I Grade 110
Administrative Assistant II Grade 116
Administrative Assistant III Grade 119
Assistant Sheriff Grade 148
Automotive/Equipment Manager Grade 133
Bailiff/Court Services Officer Grade 124
Buildings and Grounds Manager Grade 133
Building Official Grade 144
Business Development Officer Grade 140
Chief Deputy District Attorney Grade 153
Community Development Director Grade 152
Community Services Coordinator Grade 130
Comptroller Grade 154
Corrections Officer Grade 117
County Manager Grade 161
Culinary Coordinator Grade 117
Cyber Security Officer Grade 133
Deputy District Attorney Grade 152



Dispatch Manager Grade 140
Emergency Management Director Grade 144
Tourism and Event Manager Grade 135
Event and Site Manager Grade 124
Grants Manager Grade 135
HR Director Grade 144
HR Generalist Grade 124
Information Technology Director Grade 152
Information Technology Officer Grade 140
Kitchen Aide Grade 108
Management Analyst Grade 131
Meals on Wheels Coordinator Grade 110
Planning Manager Grade 144
Public Works Director Grade 152
Roads Manager Grade 133
Senior Center Site Manager Grade 119
Senior Services Director Grade 140
Tourism Director Grade 152

WHEREAS, the salary grade and step range of casual intermittent less-than part-time 
positions in the General Salary Schedule (Attachment A) shall be as follows for the 
2023-24 fiscal period:

IPT Administrative Assistant I Grade 110
IPT Administrative Assistant II Grade 116
IPT Deputy Deputy
IPT Evidence Custodian Grade 115
IPT Facilities Maintenance Worker Grade 110
IPT Homemaker Grade 102
IPT Inmate Work Crew Coordinator Grade 117
IPT Lifeguard Grade 100
IPT Maintenance Worker/Heavy Equipment 
Operator

Grade 118

IPT Park Maintenance Worker Grade 105
IPT Pool Maintenance Worker Grade 110
IPT Pool Supervisor Grade 108
IPT Program Coordinator (Senior Services) Grade 104
IPT Road Worker Grade 110
IPT Volunteer Coordinator (Sheriff Office) Grade 117
IPT Tourism Assistant Grade 110
IPT Tourism Transportation Driver Grade 110
IPT Transportation Driver Grade 102
IPT Visitor Liaison Grade 110

WHEREAS, the flat-rate salaries for the positions below shall be set by the Storey County 
Board of Commissioners as follows:

$30,000 
Government Affairs Director

(salary split 50/50 with SCSD)



Justice of the Peace $ 89,500 

WHEREAS, salaries are set by the Nevada Legislature and County Commissioners 
for elected positions as follows:

Assessor $71,361 
Commissioners $30,806.31 
Clerk/Treasurer $71,361 
District Attorney $122,678 
Recorder $71,361 
Sheriff $96,937 

WHEREAS, if there is a PERS increase, said increase will be shared equally between Storey 
County and the employee in accordance with NRS 286.421 (3) (a) (1). 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD   
OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, by unanimous vote, to adopt Resolution 23-693 
providing for the setting of salaries for the appointed officials and non-represented employees.

This resolution shall be effective on the 1st day of July 2023.

PROPOSED AND ADOPTED this 20th day of June 2023.

THOSE VOTING AYE:

_____________________________

          _________________________________________

THOSE VOTING NAY:

      ________________________

      ________________________
STOREY COUNTY

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS:    ______________________________

     Jay Carmona, Chairman    

ATTEST: ______________________________
      CLERK TO THE BOARD



AFSCME and NON-Rep chart
1  (7/2023) Hourly

Step 1 2 Hourly
Step 2 3 Hourly

Step 3 4 Hourly
Step 4 5 Hourly

Step 5 6

97 28,545.73 $ 13.72 29,544.83 $ 14.20 30,578.90 $ 14.70 31,649.16 $ 15.22 32,756.88 $ 15.75 33,903.37
98 29,274.17 $ 14.07 30,298.76 $ 14.57 31,359.22 $ 15.08 32,456.79 $ 15.60 33,592.78 $ 16.15 34,768.53
99 30,025.37 $ 14.44 31,076.26 $ 14.94 32,163.93 $ 15.46 33,289.67 $ 16.00 34,454.81 $ 16.56 35,660.72
100 30,799.34 $ 14.81 31,877.32 $ 15.33 32,993.02 $ 15.86 34,147.78 $ 16.42 35,342.95 $ 16.99 36,579.95
101 31,596.07 $ 15.19 32,701.93 $ 15.72 33,846.50 $ 16.27 35,031.13 $ 16.84 36,257.22 $ 17.43 37,526.22
102 32,415.56 $ 15.58 33,550.11 $ 16.13 34,724.36 $ 16.69 35,939.72 $ 17.28 37,197.61 $ 17.88 38,499.52
103 33,257.82 $ 15.99 34,421.85 $ 16.55 35,626.61 $ 17.13 36,873.54 $ 17.73 38,164.12 $ 18.35 39,499.86
104 34,100.08 $ 16.39 35,293.58 $ 16.97 36,528.86 $ 17.56 37,807.37 $ 18.18 39,130.63 $ 18.81 40,500.20
105 34,965.10 $ 16.81 36,188.88 $ 17.40 37,455.49 $ 18.01 38,766.44 $ 18.64 40,123.26 $ 19.29 41,527.57
106 35,852.89 $ 17.24 37,107.74 $ 17.84 38,406.51 $ 18.46 39,750.74 $ 19.11 41,142.02 $ 19.78 42,581.99
107 36,763.44 $ 17.67 38,050.16 $ 18.29 39,381.91 $ 18.93 40,760.28 $ 19.60 42,186.89 $ 20.28 43,663.43
108 37,696.75 $ 18.12 39,016.14 $ 18.76 40,381.70 $ 19.41 41,795.06 $ 20.09 43,257.89 $ 20.80 44,771.92
109 38,675.59 $ 18.59 40,029.24 $ 19.24 41,430.26 $ 19.92 42,880.32 $ 20.62 44,381.13 $ 21.34 45,934.47
110 39,679.13 $ 19.08 41,067.90 $ 19.74 42,505.27 $ 20.44 43,992.96 $ 21.15 45,532.71 $ 21.89 47,126.36
111 40,671.11 $ 19.55 42,094.59 $ 20.24 43,567.90 $ 20.95 45,092.78 $ 21.68 46,671.03 $ 22.44 48,304.51
112 41,687.86 $ 20.04 43,146.94 $ 20.74 44,657.08 $ 21.47 46,220.08 $ 22.22 47,837.78 $ 23.00 49,512.11
113 42,730.09 $ 20.54 44,225.64 $ 21.26 45,773.54 $ 22.01 47,375.61 $ 22.78 49,033.76 $ 23.57 50,749.94
114 43,798.33 $ 21.06 45,331.27 $ 21.79 46,917.87 $ 22.56 48,559.99 $ 23.35 50,259.59 $ 24.16 52,018.68
115 44,893.28 $ 21.58 46,464.54 $ 22.34 48,090.80 $ 23.12 49,773.98 $ 23.93 51,516.07 $ 24.77 53,319.13
116 46,015.62 $ 22.12 47,626.16 $ 22.90 49,293.08 $ 23.70 51,018.34 $ 24.53 52,803.98 $ 25.39 54,652.12
117 47,166.00 $ 22.68 48,816.81 $ 23.47 50,525.40 $ 24.29 52,293.79 $ 25.14 54,124.07 $ 26.02 56,018.42
118 48,345.16 $ 23.24 50,037.24 $ 24.06 51,788.54 $ 24.90 53,601.14 $ 25.77 55,477.18 $ 26.67 57,418.88
119 49,553.79 $ 23.82 51,288.18 $ 24.66 53,083.26 $ 25.52 54,941.18 $ 26.41 56,864.12 $ 27.34 58,854.36
120 50,792.64 $ 24.42 52,570.38 $ 25.27 54,410.35 $ 26.16 56,314.71 $ 27.07 58,285.72 $ 28.02 60,325.72
121 52,062.44 $ 25.03 53,884.62 $ 25.91 55,770.58 $ 26.81 57,722.55 $ 27.75 59,742.84 $ 28.72 61,833.84
122 53,364.01 $ 25.66 55,231.75 $ 26.55 57,164.86 $ 27.48 59,165.63 $ 28.45 61,236.43 $ 29.44 63,379.71
123 54,698.11 $ 26.30 56,612.54 $ 27.22 58,593.98 $ 28.17 60,644.77 $ 29.16 62,767.34 $ 30.18 64,964.19
124 56,065.56 $ 26.95 58,027.86 $ 27.90 60,058.83 $ 28.87 62,160.89 $ 29.89 64,336.52 $ 30.93 66,588.30
125 57,467.19 $ 27.63 59,478.55 $ 28.60 61,560.30 $ 29.60 63,714.91 $ 30.63 65,944.93 $ 31.70 68,253.00
126 58,903.89 $ 28.32 60,965.52 $ 29.31 63,099.32 $ 30.34 65,307.79 $ 31.40 67,593.57 $ 32.50 69,959.34
127 60,376.48 $ 29.03 62,489.65 $ 30.04 64,676.79 $ 31.09 66,940.48 $ 32.18 69,283.40 $ 33.31 71,708.31
128 61,885.87 $ 29.75 64,051.88 $ 30.79 66,293.69 $ 31.87 68,613.97 $ 32.99 71,015.46 $ 34.14 73,501.00
129 63,433.05 $ 30.50 65,653.21 $ 31.56 67,951.07 $ 32.67 70,329.36 $ 33.81 72,790.89 $ 35.00 75,338.57
130 65,018.86 $ 31.26 67,294.52 $ 32.35 69,649.83 $ 33.49 72,087.57 $ 34.66 74,610.64 $ 35.87 77,222.01
131 66,644.33 $ 32.04 68,976.88 $ 33.16 71,391.07 $ 34.32 73,889.76 $ 35.52 76,475.90 $ 36.77 79,152.56
132 68,310.44 $ 32.84 70,701.31 $ 33.99 73,175.85 $ 35.18 75,737.01 $ 36.41 78,387.80 $ 37.69 81,131.38
133 70,018.19 $ 33.66 72,468.83 $ 34.84 75,005.24 $ 36.06 77,630.42 $ 37.32 80,347.49 $ 38.63 83,159.65
134 71,768.66 $ 34.50 74,280.56 $ 35.71 76,880.38 $ 36.96 79,571.19 $ 38.26 82,356.19 $ 39.59 85,238.65
135 73,562.87 $ 35.37 76,137.57 $ 36.60 78,802.38 $ 37.89 81,560.47 $ 39.21 84,415.08 $ 40.58 87,369.61



136 75,401.95 $ 36.25 78,041.02 $ 37.52 80,772.46 $ 38.83 83,599.50 $ 40.19 86,525.48 $ 41.60 89,553.87
137 77,287.00 $ 37.16 79,992.04 $ 38.46 82,791.76 $ 39.80 85,689.48 $ 41.20 88,688.61 $ 42.64 91,792.71
138 79,219.18 $ 38.09 81,991.85 $ 39.42 84,861.57 $ 40.80 87,831.72 $ 42.23 90,905.83 $ 43.70 94,087.54
139 81,199.67 $ 39.04 84,041.66 $ 40.40 86,983.12 $ 41.82 90,027.53 $ 43.28 93,178.49 $ 44.80 96,439.74
140 83,229.67 $ 40.01 86,142.71 $ 41.41 89,157.70 $ 42.86 92,278.22 $ 44.36 95,507.96 $ 45.92 98,850.74
141 85,310.38 $ 41.01 88,296.25 $ 42.45 91,386.62 $ 43.94 94,585.15 $ 45.47 97,895.63 $ 47.07 101,321.98
142 87,443.16 $ 42.04 90,503.67 $ 43.51 93,671.30 $ 45.03 96,949.79 $ 46.61 100,343.03 $ 48.24 103,855.04
143 89,629.24 $ 43.09 92,766.26 $ 44.60 96,013.08 $ 46.16 99,373.54 $ 47.78 102,851.61 $ 49.45 106,451.42
144 91,869.96 $ 44.17 95,085.41 $ 45.71 98,413.40 $ 47.31 101,857.87 $ 48.97 105,422.90 $ 50.68 109,112.70
145 94,166.71 $ 45.27 97,462.55 $ 46.86 100,873.74 $ 48.50 104,404.32 $ 50.19 108,058.47 $ 51.95 111,840.51
146 96,520.89 $ 46.40 99,899.12 $ 48.03 103,395.59 $ 49.71 107,014.44 $ 51.45 110,759.94 $ 53.25 114,636.54
147 98,933.91 $ 47.56 102,396.60 $ 49.23 105,980.48 $ 50.95 109,689.80 $ 52.74 113,528.94 $ 54.58 117,502.45
148 101,407.23 $ 48.75 104,956.48 $ 50.46 108,629.96 $ 52.23 112,432.01 $ 54.05 116,367.13 $ 55.95 120,439.98
149 103,942.43 $ 49.97 107,580.41 $ 51.72 111,345.73 $ 53.53 115,242.83 $ 55.41 119,276.32 $ 57.34 123,451.00
150 106,540.98 $ 51.22 110,269.91 $ 53.01 114,129.36 $ 54.87 118,123.89 $ 56.79 122,258.23 $ 58.78 126,537.26
151 109,204.52 $ 52.50 113,026.67 $ 54.34 116,982.61 $ 56.24 121,077.00 $ 58.21 125,314.69 $ 60.25 129,700.71
152 111,934.63 $ 53.81 115,852.35 $ 55.70 119,907.18 $ 57.65 124,103.93 $ 59.67 128,447.57 $ 61.75 132,943.23
153 114,733.01 $ 55.16 118,748.66 $ 57.09 122,904.87 $ 59.09 127,206.54 $ 61.16 131,658.76 $ 63.30 136,266.82
154 117,601.32 $ 56.54 121,717.36 $ 58.52 125,977.47 $ 60.57 130,386.68 $ 62.69 134,950.22 $ 64.88 139,673.48
155 120,541.35 $ 57.95 124,760.30 $ 59.98 129,126.91 $ 62.08 133,646.35 $ 64.25 138,323.97 $ 66.50 143,165.31
156 123,554.90 $ 59.40 127,879.32 $ 61.48 132,355.10 $ 63.63 136,987.53 $ 65.86 141,782.09 $ 68.16 146,744.46
157 126,643.76 $ 60.89 131,076.29 $ 63.02 135,663.96 $ 65.22 140,412.20 $ 67.51 145,326.62 $ 69.87 150,413.06
158 129,809.85 $ 62.41 134,353.19 $ 64.59 139,055.56 $ 66.85 143,922.50 $ 69.19 148,959.79 $ 71.62 154,173.38
159 133,055.10 $ 63.97 137,712.03 $ 66.21 142,531.95 $ 68.52 147,520.57 $ 70.92 152,683.79 $ 73.41 158,027.72
160 136,381.49 $ 65.57 141,154.85 $ 67.86 146,095.27 $ 70.24 151,208.60 $ 72.70 156,500.90 $ 75.24 161,978.43
161 139,791.02 $ 67.21 144,683.71 $ 69.56 149,747.64 $ 71.99 154,988.80 $ 74.51 160,413.41 $ 77.12 166,027.88
162 143,285.79 $ 68.89 148,300.80 $ 71.30 153,491.32 $ 73.79 158,863.52 $ 76.38 164,423.74 $ 79.05 170,178.57
163 146,867.95 $ 70.61 152,008.32 $ 73.08 157,328.62 $ 75.64 162,835.12 $ 78.29 168,534.35 $ 81.03 174,433.05
164 150,539.64 $ 72.37 155,808.53 $ 74.91 161,261.83 $ 77.53 166,905.99 $ 80.24 172,747.70 $ 83.05 178,793.87
165 154,303.14 $ 74.18 159,703.75 $ 76.78 165,293.38 $ 79.47 171,078.65 $ 82.25 177,066.40 $ 85.13 183,263.72

1  (7/2023) Hourly
Step 1 2 Hourly

Step 2 3 Hourly
Step 3 4 Hourly

Step 4 5 Hourly
Step 5 6



Hourly
Step 6 7 Hourly

Step 7 8 Hourly
Step 8 9 Hourly

Step 9 10 Hourly
Step 10

$ 16.30 35,089.99 $ 16.87 36,318.14 $ 17.46 37,589.27 $ 18.07 38,904.90 $ 18.70
$ 16.72 35,985.43 $ 17.30 37,244.92 $ 17.91 38,548.49 $ 18.53 39,897.69 $ 19.18
$ 17.14 36,908.85 $ 17.74 38,200.66 $ 18.37 39,537.68 $ 19.01 40,921.50 $ 19.67
$ 17.59 37,860.25 $ 18.20 39,185.36 $ 18.84 40,556.85 $ 19.50 41,976.34 $ 20.18
$ 18.04 38,839.64 $ 18.67 40,199.02 $ 19.33 41,605.99 $ 20.00 43,062.20 $ 20.70
$ 18.51 39,847.01 $ 19.16 41,241.65 $ 19.83 42,685.11 $ 20.52 44,179.09 $ 21.24
$ 18.99 40,882.36 $ 19.65 42,313.24 $ 20.34 43,794.20 $ 21.05 45,327.00 $ 21.79
$ 19.47 41,917.71 $ 20.15 43,384.83 $ 20.86 44,903.30 $ 21.59 46,474.91 $ 22.34
$ 19.97 42,981.04 $ 20.66 44,485.38 $ 21.39 46,042.36 $ 22.14 47,653.85 $ 22.91
$ 20.47 44,072.36 $ 21.19 45,614.89 $ 21.93 47,211.41 $ 22.70 48,863.81 $ 23.49
$ 20.99 45,191.65 $ 21.73 46,773.36 $ 22.49 48,410.43 $ 23.27 50,104.79 $ 24.09
$ 21.52 46,338.93 $ 22.28 47,960.80 $ 23.06 49,639.42 $ 23.87 51,376.80 $ 24.70
$ 22.08 47,542.18 $ 22.86 49,206.16 $ 23.66 50,928.37 $ 24.48 52,710.86 $ 25.34
$ 22.66 48,775.78 $ 23.45 50,482.93 $ 24.27 52,249.83 $ 25.12 54,078.58 $ 26.00
$ 23.22 49,995.17 $ 24.04 51,745.00 $ 24.88 53,556.08 $ 25.75 55,430.54 $ 26.65
$ 23.80 51,245.03 $ 24.64 53,038.61 $ 25.50 54,894.96 $ 26.39 56,816.28 $ 27.32
$ 24.40 52,526.19 $ 25.25 54,364.60 $ 26.14 56,267.36 $ 27.05 58,236.72 $ 28.00
$ 25.01 53,839.33 $ 25.88 55,723.71 $ 26.79 57,674.04 $ 27.73 59,692.63 $ 28.70
$ 25.63 55,185.30 $ 26.53 57,116.78 $ 27.46 59,115.87 $ 28.42 61,184.93 $ 29.42
$ 26.28 56,564.94 $ 27.19 58,544.72 $ 28.15 60,593.78 $ 29.13 62,714.56 $ 30.15
$ 26.93 57,979.06 $ 27.87 60,008.33 $ 28.85 62,108.62 $ 29.86 64,282.42 $ 30.91
$ 27.61 59,428.54 $ 28.57 61,508.54 $ 29.57 63,661.34 $ 30.61 65,889.49 $ 31.68
$ 28.30 60,914.27 $ 29.29 63,046.27 $ 30.31 65,252.88 $ 31.37 67,536.74 $ 32.47
$ 29.00 62,437.13 $ 30.02 64,622.42 $ 31.07 66,884.21 $ 32.16 69,225.16 $ 33.28
$ 29.73 63,998.03 $ 30.77 66,237.96 $ 31.85 68,556.29 $ 32.96 70,955.76 $ 34.11
$ 30.47 65,598.00 $ 31.54 67,893.93 $ 32.64 70,270.21 $ 33.78 72,729.67 $ 34.97
$ 31.23 67,237.94 $ 32.33 69,591.27 $ 33.46 72,026.96 $ 34.63 74,547.91 $ 35.84
$ 32.01 68,918.89 $ 33.13 71,331.06 $ 34.29 73,827.64 $ 35.49 76,411.61 $ 36.74
$ 32.81 70,641.85 $ 33.96 73,114.32 $ 35.15 75,673.32 $ 36.38 78,321.89 $ 37.65
$ 33.63 72,407.92 $ 34.81 74,942.20 $ 36.03 77,565.17 $ 37.29 80,279.95 $ 38.60
$ 34.48 74,218.11 $ 35.68 76,815.74 $ 36.93 79,504.29 $ 38.22 82,286.94 $ 39.56
$ 35.34 76,073.54 $ 36.57 78,736.11 $ 37.85 81,491.87 $ 39.18 84,344.09 $ 40.55
$ 36.22 77,975.42 $ 37.49 80,704.56 $ 38.80 83,529.22 $ 40.16 86,452.74 $ 41.56
$ 37.13 79,924.78 $ 38.43 82,722.15 $ 39.77 85,617.43 $ 41.16 88,614.04 $ 42.60
$ 38.05 81,922.90 $ 39.39 84,790.20 $ 40.76 87,757.86 $ 42.19 90,829.38 $ 43.67
$ 39.01 83,970.97 $ 40.37 86,909.96 $ 41.78 89,951.81 $ 43.25 93,100.12 $ 44.76
$ 39.98 86,070.24 $ 41.38 89,082.70 $ 42.83 92,200.59 $ 44.33 95,427.61 $ 45.88
$ 40.98 88,222.01 $ 42.41 91,309.78 $ 43.90 94,505.62 $ 45.44 97,813.32 $ 47.03
$ 42.00 90,427.55 $ 43.47 93,592.51 $ 45.00 96,868.25 $ 46.57 100,258.64 $ 48.20

97
98
99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135



$ 43.05 92,688.25 $ 44.56 95,932.34 $ 46.12 99,289.98 $ 47.74 102,765.12 $ 49.41
$ 44.13 95,005.45 $ 45.68 98,330.65 $ 47.27 101,772.22 $ 48.93 105,334.25 $ 50.64
$ 45.23 97,380.60 $ 46.82 100,788.92 $ 48.46 104,316.53 $ 50.15 107,967.61 $ 51.91
$ 46.37 99,815.13 $ 47.99 103,308.66 $ 49.67 106,924.46 $ 51.41 110,666.82 $ 53.21
$ 47.52 102,310.51 $ 49.19 105,891.38 $ 50.91 109,597.58 $ 52.69 113,433.49 $ 54.54
$ 48.71 104,868.24 $ 50.42 108,538.63 $ 52.18 112,337.49 $ 54.01 116,269.30 $ 55.90
$ 49.93 107,489.97 $ 51.68 111,252.12 $ 53.49 115,145.94 $ 55.36 119,176.05 $ 57.30
$ 51.18 110,177.22 $ 52.97 114,033.42 $ 54.82 118,024.59 $ 56.74 122,155.45 $ 58.73
$ 52.46 112,931.64 $ 54.29 116,884.25 $ 56.19 120,975.20 $ 58.16 125,209.33 $ 60.20
$ 53.77 115,754.93 $ 55.65 119,806.35 $ 57.60 123,999.58 $ 59.62 128,339.56 $ 61.70
$ 55.11 118,648.82 $ 57.04 122,801.53 $ 59.04 127,099.58 $ 61.11 131,548.07 $ 63.24
$ 56.49 121,615.04 $ 58.47 125,871.57 $ 60.52 130,277.07 $ 62.63 134,836.77 $ 64.83
$ 57.90 124,655.38 $ 59.93 129,018.32 $ 62.03 133,533.96 $ 64.20 138,207.65 $ 66.45
$ 59.35 127,771.78 $ 61.43 132,243.79 $ 63.58 136,872.33 $ 65.80 141,662.86 $ 68.11
$ 60.84 130,966.07 $ 62.96 135,549.88 $ 65.17 140,294.13 $ 67.45 145,204.42 $ 69.81
$ 62.36 134,240.23 $ 64.54 138,938.64 $ 66.80 143,801.49 $ 69.14 148,834.54 $ 71.56
$ 63.92 137,596.24 $ 66.15 142,412.11 $ 68.47 147,396.54 $ 70.86 152,555.42 $ 73.34
$ 65.51 141,036.16 $ 67.81 145,972.43 $ 70.18 151,081.46 $ 72.64 156,369.31 $ 75.18
$ 67.15 144,562.05 $ 69.50 149,621.72 $ 71.93 154,858.48 $ 74.45 160,278.53 $ 77.06
$ 68.83 148,176.09 $ 71.24 153,362.26 $ 73.73 158,729.94 $ 76.31 164,285.48 $ 78.98
$ 70.55 151,880.52 $ 73.02 157,196.34 $ 75.58 162,698.21 $ 78.22 168,392.65 $ 80.96
$ 72.31 155,677.51 $ 74.84 161,126.23 $ 77.46 166,765.64 $ 80.18 172,602.44 $ 82.98
$ 74.12 159,569.45 $ 76.72 165,154.38 $ 79.40 170,934.78 $ 82.18 176,917.50 $ 85.06
$ 75.97 163,558.69 $ 78.63 169,283.25 $ 81.39 175,208.16 $ 84.23 181,340.45 $ 87.18
$ 77.87 167,647.68 $ 80.60 173,515.35 $ 83.42 179,588.38 $ 86.34 185,873.98 $ 89.36
$ 79.82 171,838.86 $ 82.61 177,853.22 $ 85.51 184,078.08 $ 88.50 190,520.81 $ 91.60
$ 81.82 176,134.83 $ 84.68 182,299.54 $ 87.64 188,680.03 $ 90.71 195,283.83 $ 93.89
$ 83.86 180,538.20 $ 86.80 186,857.04 $ 89.84 193,397.04 $ 92.98 200,165.93 $ 96.23
$ 85.96 185,051.65 $ 88.97 191,528.46 $ 92.08 198,231.96 $ 95.30 205,170.08 $ 98.64
$ 88.11 189,677.95 $ 91.19 196,316.68 $ 94.38 203,187.77 $ 97.69 210,299.34 $ 101.11

136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160
161
162
163
164
165

Hourly
Step 6 7 Hourly

Step 7 8 Hourly
Step 8 9 Hourly

Step 9 10 Hourly
Step 10















Board of Storey County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 7/18/2023 10:00 AM - 
BOCC Meeting

Estimate of Time Required: 0-5

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

• Title: For consideration and possible approval of business license second readings:
• A. American Battery Technology Company – General / 2500 Peru Dr. ~ McCarran, NV
• B. Hoffman Plumbing LLC – Contractor / 1517 Church St ~ Gardnerville, NV
• C. I & E Electric Inc. – Contractor / 1425 Doerr Dr. ~ Elko, NV
• D. Standvast Fulfillment LLC – General / 1025 Waltham Way, McCarran, NV
• E. ThompsonGas LLC – Out of County / 5260 Westview Dr. Ste 200 ~ Frederick, MD

• Recommended motion: Approval

• Prepared by: Ashley Mead

Department:     Contact Number: 775-847-0966

• Staff Summary: Second readings of submitted business license applications are
normally approved unless, for various reasons, requested to be continued to the next
meeting. A follow-up letter noting those to be continued or approved will be submitted
prior to the

• Commission Meeting. The business licenses are then printed and mailed to the new
business license holder.

• Supporting Materials: See attached

• Fiscal Impact: None

• Legal review required: False

• Reviewed by:

____  Department Head Department Name:

____  County Manager Other Agency Review: 

• Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification

     38



[ ] Denied [ ] Continued



Storey County Community Development 

110 Toll Road ~ Gold Hill Divide (775) 847-0966  ~  Fax (775) 847-0935
P O Box 526  ~  Virginia City NV 89440 CommunityDevelopment@storeycounty.org 

To: Jim Hindle, Clerk’s office July 10, 2023 

Austin Osborne, County Manager Via Email 

Fr: Ashley Mead 

Please add the following item(s) to the July 18, 2023 COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda: 

SECOND READINGS: 

A. American Battery Technology Company – General / 2500 Peru Dr. ~ McCarran, NV

B. Hoffman Plumbing LLC – Contractor / 1517 Church St ~ Gardnerville, NV

C. I & E Electric Inc. – Contractor / 1425 Doerr Dr. ~ Elko, NV

D. Standvast Fulfillment LLC – General / 1025 Waltham Way, McCarran, NV

E. ThompsonGas LLC – Out of County / 5260 Westview Dr. Ste 200 ~ Frederick, MD

Ec: Community Development Planning Department Sheriff’s Office 

       Commissioner’s Office Comptroller’s Office  


	Consideration and possible approval of the agenda for the July 18, 2023, meeting.
	Consideration and possible approval of the minutes from the May 16th, 2023, meeting.
	Business License First Readings -- Approval
	Approval of claims in the amount of $4,621,077.57.
	Consideration and possible approval of the addition to Policy 506 establishing a footware allowance for county employees.
	Presentation by the Nevada State Board on Geographic Names (NSBGN) will present information regarding new State mandates on the NSBGN functions, obligations, actions, and updates on recent Federal Actions through Secretarial Orders 3404
	Consideration and Possible Action of Grant of Easement File No. 2023-029 to NV Energy for utilities within a portion of the North K Street Right-of-Way, Virginia City, Nevada, Storey County, Nevada.
	Consideration and possible action for Storey County's acceptance of a Deed of Dedication from Pure Reno, LLC granting Storey County a parcel of land identified as Parcel 2017-7 and having Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 005-051-55.  The Parcel is
	Tax Management Contract Amendment to Audit Personal Property for Tesla, Panasonic, and H&T Nevada. Total Audit $60,000.
	Sparks NV/CASS NV, LLC  refund of $133,691.49 due to retroactive abatement from GOED.
	Consideration and possible approval for the County Manager to enter into a contract with The Abbi Agency for public relations services at a cost not to exceed $200,000.
	Consideration and possible approval for the Storey County Senior Center to enter contract with the Storey County School District to provide breakfast and lunch to Hugh Gallagher Elementary School and Virginia City Middle School for the 2023/24 calendar sc
	Consideration and possible approval of agreement between Storey County and VC Ponderosa Saloon LLC (Old Corner Bar) pertaining to monthly  payments of back utility payments totalling $8,651.53.
	Probation completion badge pinning for Fire Marshal Scott Snelling and promotional badge pinning for Assistant Fire Chief Jim Morgan.
	Consideration and possible approval of the revisions to the Fire Chief job description.
	Consideration and possible approval to authorize the Fire Chief to proceed with the purchase of a new Type 3 engine with the purchase amount not to exceed $500,000 which was previously budgeted at $468,000.
	Consideration and possible approval to authorize the Fire Chief to up fit a newly purchased command vehicle previously budgeted for in the fiscal year 2022/2023 budget year for the approximate amount of $17,000.
	Consideration and possible approval to authorize the Fire Chief to proceed with purchasing a tractor and trailer, tree shear, and pickup truck utilizing additional funding provided to the District from NV Energy for an approximate amount of $425,000.
	2nd reading for OnSale liquor License. Applicant is Demetrio Gonzalez-Trujillo, Jehovah Es Mi Pastor, 727 USA Pkwy, McCarran, NV  89434.
	Report of public works department regarding roads and highways in Storey County.
	Approval of a proposal from Lumos and Associates
	Request budget line item change from 10x20 storage container to 7x14 covered mobile trailer, mot to exceed line item price of $10,000.
	Discussion and possible consideration allowing the Sheriff’s Office to purchase up to five patrol pickup trucks instead of sport-utility-vehicles in accordance with the Equipment Acquisition budget for Sheriff’s Office patrol vehicles, due to supply chain
	Discussion and possible consideration re-appointing Assistant Sheriff Eric Kern to represent Storey County on the Nevada Local Justice Reinvestment Coordinating Council (NLJRCC) for the 2023-2024 term.
	Consideration and possible approval authorizing the County Manager to sign and approve an extension of a contract with Linda Ritter Consulting not to exceed $5,000 to complete the countywide and organizational strategic plan.
	Consideration and possible approval authorizing the County Manager to sign and approve a contract with Linda Ritter Consulting not to exceed $50,000 at an hourly rate of $95.00 to update and amend the Storey County administrative policies (non-HR policies
	Presentation and discussion regarding the 2022-2024 County Manager’s Office Strategic Plan, and consideration of possible direction as needed in accordance with the vision, mission, and goals set by the board.
	Consideration and possible approval of letter to the Governor’s Office of Economic Development supporting the continuation of the Economic Development Authority of Western Nevada (EDAWN) being one of the county’s two official Economic Development Authorit
	Consideration and possible approval of the revisions to the County Manager job description.
	Consideration and possible approval of the annual review and evaluation of the performance of Austin Osborne, County Manager for the time period of July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023. The Board may, without further notice, take administrative action again
	For consideration and possible approval of business license second readings



